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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue from
continuing operations
(HK$ million)

Profit for the year from
continuing operations
(HK$ million)

Profit/(loss) for the year from a
discontinued operation
(HK$ million)

Profit/(loss) attributable to
owners of the Company
(HK$ million)

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company
(HK$ million)

Earnings/(loss) per share
(HK cents)
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Profit/(loss) for the year from
a discontinued operation
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Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to share with you the annual results of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“New Century” or the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (the “Year").

2022/23 has been a trying year characterised by a multitude
of external factors beyond our control with the world economy
facing unprecedented uncertainties from heightened inflation,
banking crisis, ongoing rate hikes by central banks and

escalating geopolitical tensions.

TACKLING UNPREDICTABLE ECONOMIC TERRAIN

Thanks to the strong recovery of inbound tourism and
domestic demand, Hong Kong's economy grew 2.7% year-on-
year in the first quarter of 2023, leading the uptick in
confidence led by pent-up demand for Hong Kong properties.
During the Year, the Group’s money lending business
recorded an increase in revenue of 18.7% to HK$72,491,000,
and the interest income from mortgage loans alone increased

20.4% to HK$69,384,000.

While there were certainly positive aspects of our performance
over the course of the Year, the difficult external environment
meant that this did not translate into overall profitability,
causing a slight drop of 0.8% in our revenue from continuing
operations, from HK$80,741,000 (Restated) last year to
HK$80,068,000 for the Year.

FHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2023 F3k

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
EFEHES

In particular, the prolonged economic downturn triggered by
the COVID-19 outbreak significantly impacted the revenue
streams and operational costs of our cruise ship charter
services business. After thorough review and deliberations, we
regrettably realised that the costs to keep the cruise ship
charter services business running became prohibitive, posing a
risk to our overall profitability in future. Therefore, on 28 April
2023, the Group entered into an agreement with a third party
to dispose of all of its interest in an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, which held 100% beneficial ownership in the
cruise ship “Aegean Paradise”. Following the completion of
disposal on 28 April 2023, the Group has ceased the business
of cruise ship charter services and will no longer hold any

cruise ship.

With downward pressures still weighing on the Hong Kong
economy amid uncertainties, we have divested all of our
securities investments during the Year to reduce exposure to
unpredictable market volatility and maintain our commitment

to secure investments bringing in steady cash flows.

We believe, ceasing the cruise ship charter services business
and divesting from securities investments represented the
most appropriate course of action given the prevailing
environment, allowing us to focus on bolstering profitability

across core segments and propel us forward strategically.

HHELEEEEERLA

LEHRE20198RESHBEEBE 2 RKEM
KETRR BREZEINETHHEERS
EBZWARRREERAE - LBTFHER
REREE BMERMEHIEFBHRAE
REEBEEZKACEGEEETRR  HA
SERKRNEBRMENDEKRER - ALt -
RZTZZ=FNWA=+N\B KREBEFE=
FEIL ek AR EH R —HEEIEREM
BRARz2E R - ZARFAERAegean
Paradise | Z100%EmHERE R _T =
FOA-Z+TNBRKEESEEE  KEEE
BRIETHHBEERBZER B TBRHA
ERCIEN

A THARRREELS R ELEBRNTTE
N AEEERAFEHEBRTMEREFK
B DAL A B AN R FECRI 6 T 35 K B 1 B 2
e WHEEBNRBRIRE AERIBER

A2
ST/ IV

BABEE EBAZRET  KUEBGHE
MEZEBANEEEFRERREBEHT
B BEAMEHFTIRNESRLOETZEF
BEN - YRS EHEBHRFIATE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

EMBRACING CHANGE FOR LONG-TERM SUCCESS

In recent times, we have seen volatility affecting many
industries worldwide. Nonetheless, we view these challenges
as an opportunity to refocus efforts and find our ways to adapt

to changing circumstances.

Moving forward, we will remain nimble yet prudent to seek
emerging opportunities to diversify our income streams and
increase operational efficiencies. While short-term profits may
fluctuate, we believe that we will achieve sustainable success
over the long term by staying true to our core values and

mission.

Lastly, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to
everyone who makes up the fabric of our organisation. From
our loyal employees, whose dedication and talent bring our
plans to life, to our valued stakeholders, who stand beside us
through both triumphs and adversity, you are what set us
apart from others and what enable us to grow and succeed
now and in the future. So once again, thank you for making

our journey a sustainable one.

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEtmE S T

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue from continuing operations was slightly
reduced by 0.8% from HK$80,741,000 (Restated) last year to
HK$80,068,000 for the Year. The decrease in revenue from
continuing operations was mainly attributable to an increase in
fair value losses on listed equity investments by
HK$11,907,000 from HK$1,671,000 last year to
HK$13,578,000 for the Year, which was partially offset by an
increase in interest income by HK$11,431,000 from money
lending business from HK$61,060,000 last year to
HK$72,491,000 for the Year.

Other Income

Other income amounted to HK$7,386,000 for the Year
(2022: HK$796,000). The increase in other income was
mainly due to (i) an increase in bank interest income from
HK$699,000 last year to HK$6,044,000 for the Year; (ii)
government grants amounting to HK$911,000 from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund
of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government of the HKSAR") (2022: Nil); and
(iii) a government grant of HK$360,000 from the Technology
Voucher Programme under the Innovation and Technology
Fund of the Government of the HKSAR (2022: Nil).

Administrative and Operating Expenses

The administrative and operating expenses mainly comprised
of (i) employee benefit expense (including directors’
remuneration); (ii) depreciation of property, plant and
equipment; (iii) advertising and promotion expenses; (iv)
auditor's remuneration; (v) building management fee; (vi)
government rent and rate; and (vii) other administrative

expenses.

HHELEEEEERLA

B % Bl B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative and operating expenses of HK$44,104,000
were incurred by the Group for the Year, which increased by
5.3% as compared to HK$41,865,000 (Restated) last year.
The increase in administrative and operating expenses was
mainly due to an increase in employee benefit expense
(including directors’ remuneration) by 6.4% from
HK$19,456,000 last year to HK$20,704,000 for the Year and
an increase in advertising and promotion expenses by 30.8%
from HK$4,203,000 last year to HK$5,499,000 for the Year.

Gain on Disposal of a Non-current Asset Held for Sale

In the previous year, the cruise ship “Leisure World", under
cruise ship charter services business, was disposed of at a
consideration of approximately US$3,592,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,909,000) on 25 May 2021. A gain on
disposal of HK$714,000 was recorded and the Group's share
of relevant aggregate revaluation surplus realised of
HK$4,730,000 included in the asset revaluation reserve was

transferred to retained profits in the same year.

Fair Value Gains/(Losses) on Investment Properties,
Net

The Group recorded fair value losses on investment properties
of HK$12,292,000 in property investment business for the
Year (2022: fair value gains of HK$15,502,000), which was
the net effect of the fair value gains of HK$8,008,000 (2022:
HK$15,002,000) on the investment properties in Singapore
and the fair value losses of HK$20,300,000 (2022: fair value
gains of HK$500,000) on the investment properties in Hong
Kong.

EEET RS

RAFE AEBELATREEERS
44,104,000/ 7T » 8 = F [E 241,865,000/
TL (KR EFI) 18 IN5.300 ° 17 B o 4% & B9 ¢ 18
MNEEHREERIAZ (BEESHE)
M 2= F € 219,456,000/ 7T 1 I16.4%ZE &
F 8 220,704,000/ 7T - AR EE R IEER
% /B & F € 24,203,000/ 7T 3 1130.8%F
N 25,499,000/ JT AT ER

HERESGENERDEEN WS
REFE - BimiEERE 2 B[ Leisure
World ER = -—FRHA-+HHURE
413,592,000 7T (18 % 7 4927,909,0007%
Jo) HE o 8115 1 E W EE714,0008 T - e
REAESHRBNASERENEBRDE
IR E A B 48 %54,730,0008 TE R R —F
[N ARB R AF

RENMEZAFEERE (FR) -
FE

RAFE  AEB2MEREXEBHREGRE
M2 RN FEEEBER/2,292,000% T (=
T AT EMEWEE15,502,000%7T)
HDDREFMERENEZ AT EE KR
8,008,000/ 7T (=& — — 4 : 15,002,000/8
T)RBEAREMEZATEEER
20,300,000 T (ZE - —_F : A FEBEWK
#2500,000/87T) 2 HHE ©

11



12

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
Annual Report 2023 3§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEtmE S T

Reversal of/(Provision for) Impairment Losses on
Loan and Interest Receivables, Net

The impairment losses represented the expected credit losses
("ECLs") on loan and interest receivables in money lending
business. The measurement of ECLs is based on probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default), historical delinquency ratio of loan and
interest receivables, collateral values, economic indicators on
forward-looking information and adjusted for factors that are

specific to the debtors.

The Group recognised a net provision for impairment losses of
HK$2,794,000 on loan and interest receivables for the Year
(2022: a net reversal of impairment losses of HK$498,000).

Below is the breakdown of reversal of/(provision for)
impairment losses on loans and interest receivables, net,
incurred from mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans

for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022:

s 2

Mortgage loans RIBE X

Unsecured personal loans EEMALAER
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Reversal of/(Provision for) Impairment Losses on
Repossessed Assets

The Group recorded a provision of HK$1,941,000 for
impairment losses on repossessed assets of mortgage loans in
money lending business for the Year (2022: a reversal of
overprovision of HK$11,000).

Loss for the Year from a Discontinued Operation

Subsequent to the reporting period, the cruise ship "Aegean
Paradise” was disposed of on 28 April 2023. Since the Group
decided to discontinue the business of cruise ship charter
services in March 2023 and will not hold any cruise ship after
the disposal of “Aegean Paradise”, the cruise ship charter
services segment has been classified as a discontinued
operation as at 31 March 2023. The Group recorded a loss of
HK$60,743,000 from the discontinued operation for the Year
(2022: HK$56,449,000). Increase in loss was mainly due to
an increase in deficit on revaluation of the cruise ship "Aegean
Paradise” by HK$23,579,000 to HK$35,580,000 for the Year
(2022: HK$12,001,000), which was partially offset by (i)
cruise ship charter service income of HK$2,746,000 for the
Year (2022: Nil) and (ii) a decrease in special subsidies paid
to the charterer of the cruise ships by HK$15,617,000 to
HK$20,809,000 for the Year (2022: HK$36,426,000).

EEET RS
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Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group recorded a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$36,866,000 for the Year (2022:
HK$1,501,000). Such significant increase in loss was mainly
attributable to (i) fair value losses on investment properties of
HK$12,292,000 (2022: fair value gains of HK$15,502,000) in
property investment business; (i) an increase in fair value
losses on listed equity investments by HK$11,907,000 to
HK$13,578,000 for the Year (2022: HK$1,671,000) in
securities trading business; and (iii)) an increase in loss by
HK$4,294,000 to HK$60,743,000 for the Year (2022:
HK$56,449,000) in cruise ship charter services business (the
discontinued operation). The loss was partially offset by (i) an
increase in interest income from money lending business by
HK$11,431,000 to HK$72,491,000 for the Year (2022:
HK$61,060,000) and (ii) an increase in bank interest income
by HK$5,345,000 to HK$6,044,000 for the Year (2022:
HK$699,000).

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Money Lending

The Group focuses on the provision of mortgage loans which
are secured by first legal charge against real estates located in
Hong Kong, including residential, commercial, industrial
properties, village houses and car parking spaces, to
individuals or corporations. During the Year, the Group had
granted mortgage loans to individuals or corporations with
principal amounts ranging from HK$130,000 to
HK$49,000,000 (2022: HK$400,000 to HK$66,200,000) at
interest rates ranging from 8.0% to 13.5% per annum (2022:
8.0% to 12.5% per annum) with the maturity profiles from
12 to 240 months (2022: 12 to 240 months).
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The Group also provides a small portion of unsecured
personal loans to individuals who are mainly owners of real
estate assets under the Home Ownership Scheme and the
Tenant Purchase Scheme as well as private residential
properties. During the Year, the Group had granted unsecured
personal loans to individuals with principal amounts ranging
from HK$300,000 to HK$1,200,000 (2022: HK$200,000 to
HK$1,000,000) at the interest rates ranging from 18.0% to
21.0% per annum (2022: 18.0% to 24.0% per annum) with
the maturity profiles from 36 to 120 months (2022: 48 to
120 months).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had loan and interest
receivables of HK$823,423,000, representing an increase of
11.7% as compared with HK$737,298,000 as at 31 March
2022. Among of which, there were 115 mortgage loan
customers (2022: 118 customers) with loan and interest
receivables of HK$810,733,000 (2022: HK$725,087,000)
and 28 unsecured personal loan customers (2022: 32
customers) with loan and interest receivables of
HK$12,690,000 (2022: HK$12,211,000), representing 98.5%
(2022: 98.3%) and 1.5% (2022: 1.7%) respectively.

In terms of the Group's loan and interest receivables of
HK$823,423,000 as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
HK$737,298,000), the loan and interest receivables from the
largest customer and the five largest customers accounted for
8.19% (2022: 9.0%) and 26.0% (2022: 24.1%) respectively.
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The Group recorded an increase of 18.7% in interest income
from money lending business to HK$72,491,000 for the Year,
as compared to HK$61,060,000 last year. The increase was
due to the increase in interest income from mortgage loans by
20.4% from HK$57,618,000 last year to HK$69,384,000 for
the Year, which was partially offset by the decrease in interest
income from unsecured personal loans by 9.7% from
HK$3,442,000 last year to HK$3,107,000 for the Year. The
increase in interest income from mortgage loans was primarily
due to an increase in average balance of mortgage loan
receivables. The decrease in interest income from unsecured
personal loans was due to a decrease in average balance of

unsecured personal loan receivables.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer to assess the provision for
impairment losses on loan and interest receivables under the
ECLs model of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments. As there was decrease in the fair value
of the mortgaged properties due to the weakening property
market in Hong Kong and an increase in unsecured personal
loans classified under stage 3 (credit-impaired), the Group
recorded a net provision for impairment losses of
HK$2,265,000 (2022: Nil) and HK$529,000 (2022: net
reversal of impairment losses of HK$498,000) on mortgaged
loans and unsecured personal loans during the Year,

respectively.

The money lending segment recorded an increase in profit by
11.7% to HK$54,730,000 for the Year (2022:
HK$49,005,000).

Property Investment

The Group’s segment revenue from property investment
reduced by 4.6% to HK$15,530,000 (2022: HK$16,275,000),
which comprised of HK$13,256,000 (2022: HK$14,418,000)
from investment properties in Hong Kong and HK$2,274,000
(2022: HK$1,857,000) from investment properties in

Singapore.
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The decrease in rental income by HK$1,162,000 from Hong
Kong investment properties was mainly due to (i) lower rental
rates to subsequent new individual tenants after the expiry of
the tenancy agreement in June 2022 with the largest tenant
of various shop units at Kwai Chung Plaza, Kwai Chung and
(ii) a decrease in rental rate to the tenant of an office unit at
Katherine House, Tsim Sha Tsui effective upon renewal of
tenancy agreement in April 2022. The effect was partially
offset by an increase in rental income resulting from shorter
period of temporary rental reduction granted to the tenant of
a shop unit at Chi Fu Building, Mongkok as compared to that

of last year.

Resulting from the increase in rental rates charged to tenants
of certain conservation shophouses upon the renewal of
tenancy agreements, the Group recorded an increase in rental
income by HK$417,000 from Singapore investment

properties.

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties were
revalued at fair value. Net fair value losses of HK$12,292,000
on investment properties were recorded for the Year (2022:
fair value gains of HK$15,502,000). The investment properties
in Hong Kong recorded fair value losses of HK$20,300,000
for the Year (2022: fair value gains of HK$500,000) while fair
value gains of HK$8,008,000 were recorded for the
investment properties in Singapore for the Year (2022:
HK$15,002,000).

As a result, the property investment segment recorded a
turnaround from a profit of HK$28,284,000 last year to a loss
of HK$389,000 for the Year.

For the Year, the Group's investment properties achieved an
average occupancy rate of 99.5% (2022: 98.8%) with an
average annual rental yield of 2.8% (2022: 3.0%).
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Securities Trading

The Group's portfolio of securities consisted of the blue chips
in the Hong Kong stock market. During the Year, all securities
were disposed of in December 2022 and there was no further
transaction of purchase or sale of securities afterwards. As at
31 March 2023, the Group did not hold any securities (2022:
HK$80,075,000).

The securities trading segment recorded a loss of
HK$7,963,000 for the Year (2022: a profit of HK$3,385,000)
which was mainly attributable to the fair value losses of
HK$13,578,000 (2022: HK$1,671,000) on equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, netting off the
dividend income of HK$5,625,000 (2022: HK$5,077,000)

from equity investment at fair value through profit or loss.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Cruise Ship Charter Services

Despite the sailing of the cruise ship “Aegean Paradise”
resumed on 22 January 2022, there were only 24 days with
at least 960 persons (including crew staff and passengers)
onboarded and generated charter service income of
HK$2,746,000 during the Year (2022: Nil). Simultaneously,
the Group was required to pay special subsidies of
HK$20,809,000 to the charterer for the Year (2022:
HK$36,426,000) for routine maintenance of the cruise ship in

accordance with the charter agreement.

During the Year, the cruise ship “Aegean Paradise” went into
dry dock and capital expenditure of HK$7,366,000 was
incurred (2022: Nil).
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group engaged an
independent professional valuer to perform the valuation of
the cruise ship. Revaluation deficit of HK$35,580,000 was
recognised for the Year (2022: HK$12,001,000).

Due to an increase in the revaluation deficit of the cruise ship
which was partly offset by the decrease in special subsidies
paid to the charterer, the cruise ship charter services business
recorded an increase in loss by 7.6% from HK$56,449,000
last year to HK$60,743,000 for the Year.

After carefully considering its long-term prospect and
continuing expenses, the board of directors of the Company
(the "Board") decided to discontinue the cruise ship charter
services business in March 2023 and entered into an
agreement with an independent third party on 28 April 2023
to dispose of all of its equity and beneficial interest in an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary, which is solely engaged
in cruise ship charter services with the principal asset of the
cruise ship “Aegean Paradise”. Completion of the disposal took
place immediately after the execution of the agreement and
the Group will no longer hold any cruise ship. By doing so, the
Group can generate operating funds through the disposal and
allocate resources more effectively towards other potentially

profitable activities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had outstanding
guarantee of HK$70,000,000 (2022: HK$130,000,000) given
to a bank to secure general credit facility for a subsidiary. No
credit facility was utilised by that subsidiary from such

guarantee at the end of the reporting period (2022: Nil).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 March 2023, the Group's self-occupied office units

and a car park at Shun Tak Centre with an aggregate net book
value of HK$113,378,000 (2022: HK$118,075,000) were
pledged to a bank for a loan facility worth HK$70,000,000
(2022: HK$70,000,000) granted to the Group. As at 31
March 2022, investment properties at Kwai Chung Plaza with
fair value of HK$183,000,000, securities with fair value of
HK$80,075,000 and rental receivables with carrying amount
of HK$121,000 were pledged to banks and securities dealers
for aggregate loan facilities of HK§101,610,000 granted to the
Group.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not use any loan facility
(2022: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintained a sound financial condition. As at 31
March 2023, the Group had net current assets of
HK$1,060,608,000 (2022: HK$921,104,000) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company worth HK$1,548,147,000
(2022: HK$1,579,704,000).

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate cash and cash
equivalents of the Group (including cash at bank of
HK$17,000 of a disposal group classified as held for sale)
were approximately HK$456,027,000 (2022:
HK$401,548,000), which were held predominately in Hong
Kong dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar.

A loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the
Group's subsidiary as at 31 March 2023 was approximately
HK$71,823,000 (2022: HK$71,823,000). The loan was
denominated in United States dollar, which was unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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As at 31 March 2023, the Group had an amount due to a
non-controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary of
approximately HK$7,598,000 (2022: Nil) included in liabilities
directly associated with the assets classified as held for sale.
The amount was denominated in Singapore dollar, which was

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had an amount due to an
intermediate holding company of HK$80,000,000 (2022:
HK$40,000,000) which was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

Stringent cost control measures have already been in place to
monitor the day-to-day operational and administrative
expenses. The management will continue to closely review the
Group's financial resources in a cautious manner and explore
opportunities in potential financial institutions financing and
equity funding. Taking into consideration the Group’s current
financial resources, the directors believe that the Group will
have adequate fund for its continuing operations and

development.

GEARING RATIO

The Group's gearing ratio, calculated as total indebtedness
divided by equity attributable to owners of the Company, was
9.8% as at 31 March 2023 (2022: 7.1%). Total indebtedness
represents a loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary, amount due to an intermediate

holding company and lease liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Capital expenditure of HK$7,366,000 (2022: Nil) and
HK$52,000 (2022: HK$296,000) were incurred for dry
docking of the cruise ship “Aegean Paradise” and office

equipment, respectively, during the Year.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Equity Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in securities, which are listed on the stock
exchange of Hong Kong and are valued at quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting period. The management
manages this exposure by monitoring the price movements
and the changes in market conditions that may affect the
value of the securities and will consider taking appropriate

actions to minimise the risk.

Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group's revenue and costs were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar and Singapore dollar. The Group's cash and
cash equivalents were held predominately in Hong Kong
dollar, Singapore dollar and United States dollar. A loan
advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's
subsidiary was denominated in United States dollar. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should that need arise.

Credit Risk

The Group mainly focuses on entering into loan and/or lease
transactions with high quality customers and obtaining
sufficient collaterals and/or deposits as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. Before entering into the
transactions, the Group will conduct due diligence, including
but not limited to, the identity checking, credit report and legal
search on the customers, together with land search and latest

valuation on the mortgaged properties (if applicable).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has loan committees of different levels comprising
directors and senior management to approve and grant
different loan products with various loan-to-value ratios and
loan amount requirements. The Group continues to monitor
the property market and the collateral value of the underlying
mortgage loan portfolio on an ongoing basis and will take
appropriate risk response. Through the audit committee of the
Company, the Group has conducted a review on the internal
control system and identified no significant areas of concern
which could affect the operation of the money lending

business.

The Group will consider taking legal actions, when necessary,
as a means to recover the debts in default. In addition, the
Group reviews the recovery of each individual debt, including
but not limited to, rental receivables, mortgage loan and
interest receivables and unsecured personal loan and interest
receivables at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are provided for irrecoverable
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the Group's internal

control system was effective and adequate.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any significant investments held and
did not conduct any material acquisitions and disposals of

subsidiaries and associates during the Year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 4 September 2012 (the “Share
Option Scheme") for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operation. Participants are any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors (professional or
otherwise), consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, promoters, service providers of any member of the
Group who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have

contributed or will contribute to the Group.

The Share Option Scheme expired on 3 September 2022. No
further share options shall thereafter be offered under the
Share Option Scheme but the share options which had been
granted is still valid, unless otherwise lapse or expiry of the

share options.

During the Year, 16,600,000 share options had lapsed under
the Share Option Scheme. An aggregate amount of
HK$794,000 was transferred from the share option reserve to

retained profits upon lapse of the share options.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had 116,200,000
outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme.
Should they be fully exercised, the Company will receive
additional share capital of HK$291,000 and share premium of
HK$22,579,000 (before issue expenses). The total of
116,200,000 share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme, representing approximately 2.0% of the total

issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2023.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total of 31 staff
(2022: 31 staff), including executive directors but excluding
independent non-executive directors. The employee benefit
expense (including directors’ emoluments) was
HK$20,704,000 for the Year (2022: HK$19,456,000).
Remuneration packages for employees and directors are
periodically reviewed according to market conditions as well as
individual's and the Group's performance. Benefits plans
maintained by the Group include salary increment, mandatory
provident fund scheme, medical insurance, share option

scheme and discretionary bonuses.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Disposal of Kingston Maritime Limited (“KML")
On 28 April 2023, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company as vendor entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party as purchaser,
pursuant to which the vendor agreed to sell and the purchaser
agreed to acquire the entire issued share capital (the “Sale
Share"”) of KML and the shareholder’s loan (the “Sale Loan")
owed by KML to the vendor at a consideration of S$7,650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$44,982,000). KML was solely
engaged in cruise ship charter service and the principal asset
of which was the cruise ship “Aegean Paradise”. It is expected
that the Group will record a gain from the disposal of
approximately HK$9,834,000. The disposal of the Sale Share
and the Sale Loan constituted a disclosable transaction and
was subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. For details of the
disposal, please refer to the Company's announcement dated
28 April 2023.

EEET RS

EERFHM

RZE_=F=ZA=+—H XEBZES
AHEINZ(ZEZ_F 1 314)  BIFERT
EE EBETEREBIYFATES RNAF
E EERBINMAX(BEEEME) A
20,704,000 7t (=& = =4 : 19,456,000
BL) EBEREZRZHFMEMNIZ2ENS
AR A R B A Re AN 82 (B 2 = 3R M E HA AR AT o
REBEHZETEANTEBE NS - &5
MRERE - BERRE  BRIESERE
TBEIEAL -

WEHRSEE

tH £Kingston Maritime Limited ([KML)
RZEBEZ=FWA=Z+N\RB ARAZE#%
FErEMBAR (HEAER) BB E=7 ({F
REFILEERE Bt BFREL
EMEBEARERBMLZ 2P ETRA
([HERDD BKMLEXRE R Z2BREE R
(THEEK]) » KB /7,650,000% 7T (185
72 #744,982,00078 7T) ° KML{E 1t % % & 78
ERT MAEXEZEERIBEH [ Aegean
Paradise ] - AL EFEH K15 HE W H L
9,834,000 L - HEHLERND K HEER
FHBEKN —BETHEENRS  BHiLAESE
ERBMERSGBRARESR LMAAIET
ERRBRAEZRTE ARALEFHEZF
B MELHARRABHA-S-_=FWNA
ZHNBZRAE -

25



26

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
Annual Report 2023 3§

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEST R 5T

Following the disposal on 28 April 2023, the Group did not
hold any equity and beneficial interest in KML.

Since the Group decided to discontinue the business of cruise
ship charter services in March 2023 and will not hold any
cruise ship after the completion of disposal of the cruise ship
“Aegean Paradise” on 28 April 2023, the cruise ship charter
services segment has been classified as a discontinued

operation as at 31 March 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company is scheduled on
Tuesday, 19 September 2023 (the “Annual General
Meeting"). For determining the entitlement to attend and vote
at the Annual General Meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Thursday, 14 September 2023
to Tuesday, 19 September 2023, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all transfers of shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at 17/F., Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 13 September 2023.
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices at all times. The Board
believes that good corporate governance helps the Company
to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to enhance

the performance of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the year ended 31 March
2023.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Year.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance. The Board has delegated to the
senior management of the Company the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of
the Group. These responsibilities include implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating day-to-day
operation and management of the Company in accordance
with the management strategies and plans approved by the
Board, formulating and monitoring the operation and budgets,

and supervising and monitoring the control systems.

Board Composition

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board comprises eleven members as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng
Ms. Chen Ka Chee
Mr. Yu Wai Man
(resigned on 1 July 2022)
(appointed on 1 November 2022)
Ms. Huang Si Teng
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Composition (continued)

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board has at all times met the requirements of rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one of the independent non-executive
directors possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise and the
appointment of independent non-executive directors

representing at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a written confirmation of their
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers that each of them is independent in

accordance with the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the directors (including the relationships
among members of the Board) are set out under the section
headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 82 to 88 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed on pages 82 to 88 of this
annual report, the Board members do not have any family,

financial or business relationship with each other.

In compliance with code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code, the
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its directors. The insurance

coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings and
General Meeting

During the Year, the Company held four regular board
meetings to review and approve annual and interim results

and to review quarterly management accounts.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance of Board and Committee Meetings and
General Meeting (continued)

The attendance of each director at the meetings of the Board,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee, the
Audit Committee and the annual general meeting during the

Year is set out as below:

Directors Board
B Ezg
Executive Directors HTES

Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEREALE 4/4
Ms. Sio lon Kuan FEELT 4/4
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda EBERL 4/4
Ms. Lilian Ng BAFEXL 4/4
Ms. Chen Ka Chee (Note 1) BRiE S+ (MEET) 4/4
Mr. Yu Wai Man (Note 2) RESULE (F32) 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok REE LS 4/4
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth BRELE 4/4
Mr. Ho Yau Ming MRALE 4/4

Notes:

1. Ms. Chen Ka Chee was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee on 1
July 2022.

2. Mr. Yu Wai Man resigned as an executive director and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
on 1 July 2022 and was appointed as an executive director on 1
November 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed directors will receive formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness
of director's responsibilities and obligations under the Listing

Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in order to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed

and relevant.

During the Year, all directors have participated various external
webinars relevant to the directors’ duties and responsibilities
or the accounting issues. The Company has received from
each of the directors their individual training record for the

Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles

of chairman and chief executive should be separate. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 2 March 2012. During the Year, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, the chairman of the Board, provided leadership to
the Board to ensure that the Board worked effectively and all
important issues were discussed and dealt with in a timely
manner. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness of
the Group's structure as business continues to grow and
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including the

appointment of a chief executive officer, are necessary.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of three years and are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years as referred to the bye-law
84(1) of the Company where provides that at each annual
general meeting one-third of the directors of the Company for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three
(3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation. The Company has received from
each of Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth
and Mr. Ho Yau Ming an annual confirmation of independence
and also from Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung a confirmation of
independence on his appointment pursuant to rule 3.13 of

the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To oversee particular aspects of the Group's affairs and to
assist in the execution of its responsibilities, the Board has
established three board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee (collectively the “Committees”) with clearly-
defined written terms of references. The Board delegated the
authority to the Committees and provided the Committees
with sufficient resources to perform their duties. Upon
reasonable request, they are able to seek independent

professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued) EEXEgETWZEE (#E)

Remuneration Committee FMEES
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the RAEEREBEANERBB AL HFMES
Remuneration Committee Members are as follows: @ EmnT

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat
Mr. Yu Wai Man
(resigned on 1 July 2022)
Ms. Chen Ka Chee
(appointed on 1 July 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the

Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive

directors and senior management.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management’'s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals

and objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the

remuneration of non-executive directors;

4. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group;

5. to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair

and not excessive;

6. to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and

appropriate;

7. to ensure that no director or any of their associates is

involved in deciding that director's own remuneration; and

8. to review and/or approve matters relating to share

schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. to review the remuneration package of the directors;

2. to review discretionary long service bonus to a certain

director; and

3. to recommend to the Board on the year-end bonus of

executive directors.

The remuneration of members of the senior management for

the Year is set out below:

In the band of

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

Nomination Committee

Number of individuals

N WO

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Nomination Committee Members are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Wai Man
(resigned on 1 July 2022)
Ms. Chen Ka Chee
(appointed on 1 July 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee

are:

to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the

Company's corporate strategy;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for

directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or reappointment of directors and
succession planning for directors, in particular the

chairman and the chief executive.

The following is a summary of work performed by the

Nomination Committee during the Year:

1.

to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

to assess the independence of independent non-

executive directors; and

to recommend to the Board on the reappointment of the
retiring directors and the appointment of the new

director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Diversity

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in September
2013, which set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. All board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to, gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that

the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
The Board consists of a diverse mix of the members with
different appropriate skills, knowledge, experience and gender

to promote and achieve better performance of the Company.

The gender ratio of the directors of the Company as at 31

March 2023 is set out as follow:

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

directors directors

Male 5 56
Female 4 44

The Nomination Committee reviewed the composition of the
Board. After assessing the suitability of the directors’ skills and
experience to the Company's business, the Nomination
Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured and no change was required. The
Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
Diversity (continued)

In addition, the total workforce (including senior management)

by gender of the Group as at 31 March 2023 is set out as

follows:
Percentage of
Number of the Group's
employees employees
Male 13 42
Female 18 58

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
20109.

Objective

The objective of the nomination policy is to provide a
framework and set standards to assist the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship so as to ensure the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the

requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection criteria
The Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria (as reference) in assessing the suitability of a proposed

candidate for directorships:

1. character and integrity;

2. qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the

Company's business and corporate strategy;

3. willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a Board member and other directorships and

significant commitments;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Selection criteria (continued)

4. requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidates would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules; and

5. board diversity policy and any measure objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving

diversity on the Board.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has the

discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information in a prescribed form, together with their
written consent to be appointed as a director of the Company
and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any
documents or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in

relation to their standing for election as a director.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to
provide additional information and documents, if considered

necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Nomination procedure

1.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a
meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to
its meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board

members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to
stand for election or re-election at a general meeting, the
Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the

Board for its consideration and recommendation.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the Board to stand for election at a general
meeting, and to invite nominations from shareholders, a
circular will be sent to shareholders. The circular will set
out the lodgment period for shareholders to make the
nominations. The names, brief biographies (including
qualifications and relevant experience), independence,
proposed remuneration and any other information, as
required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included

in the circular to shareholders.

The shareholder of the Company may also propose a
person for election as a director, details of which are set
out in the “Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director by Shareholders” which is also available on

the website of the Company.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand for

election or re-election at any general meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Policy (continued)

Review and disclosure of the nomination policy

1. The Board will from time to time review the Nomination

Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the

Nomination Policy.

The Company shall disclose this nomination policy in its
corporate governance report in compliance with the

Listing Rules.

Audit Committee

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the

Audit Committee Members are as follows:

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok (Chairman)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

One of the independent non-executive directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules. Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

to review and monitor the external auditor's

independence and objectivity;

to develop and implement policy on engaging an external

auditor to supply non-audit services;

to monitor integrity of the Company'’s financial statements
and annual report and accounts, half-year report, and to
review significant financial reporting judgements

contained in them;

to review the Company’s financial controls, the risk

management and internal control systems;

to review the Group's financial and accounting policies

and practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter and to
ensure that Board will provide a timely response to the

issues raised in the external auditor's management letter.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit

Committee during the Year:

1. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022 and to recommend

them to the Board for approval;

2. to review with the management and auditor of the
Company the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, to discuss the unaudited interim financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September
2022 and to recommend them to the Board for approval;

and

3. to review the risk management and internal control

systems of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions as required under the CG
Code:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies and
practices on corporate governance and make

recommendations to the Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

3. to review and monitor the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (continued)

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

directors; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code

and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the above corporate governance functions
have been performed and executed by the Board and the
Board has reviewed the Company's compliance with the CG
Code.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the Year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company's auditor, Ernst & Young for audit and non-

audit services to the Group, is set out as below:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$

Audit services 1,850,000
Non-audit services

— Interim Review 438,000

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2023.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about
its responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” on pages 97 to 107 of this

annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks
it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems for the Group. The
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established internal
audit function. Procedures have been designed for
safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules

and regulations.

The Board has overseen the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems which covered all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls has been
conducted, and considered that the systems are effective and
adequate. The review is conducted at least annually. For the
year ended 31 March 2023, the Board has conducted a
review on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications,
experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions and considered that they are adequate.

Whistleblowing Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted a whistleblowing policy on 14 March 2023. It
provides employees and the relevant third parties who deal
with the Group (e.g., customers and suppliers) with guidance
and reporting channels on reporting any suspected
improprieties in any matters related to the Group directly
addressed to the Audit Committee. All information received
from a whistleblower and its identity will be kept confidential.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Anti-fraud and Anti-corruption Policy

In compliance with code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code, the
Board adopted the code of conduct which provides guidance
and the standards of behaviour in relation to the anti-
corruption and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees
to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against corrupt
practices and to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud
and corruption or any attempts thereof, to the management or
through an appropriate reporting channel. The Group would
not tolerate all forms of fraud and corruption among all
employees and those acting in an agency or fiduciary capacity
on behalf of the Group, and in its business dealing with third

parties.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Group is fully aware of its obligation of handling and
dissemination of inside information under the Listing Rules
and the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFQ"). The Group has a policy on
disclosure of inside information which sets out the system in
place for monitoring the developments of our business so that
potential inside information can be escalated to the Board so
as to decide whether announcement in relation to such inside
information is to be made, in order to comply with the Listing
Rules and SFO. In addition, all employees are required to
follow the guidelines of the code of conduct and the staff
handbook to keep unpublished inside information strictly

confidential.
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COMPANY SECRETARY
The company secretary of the Company, Ms. Ng Suet Vi, is

responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance

matters.

During the Year, Ms. Ng Suet Yi has complied with the
relevant professional training under rule 3.29 of the Listing

Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convene a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company, shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business or
resolution specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held in the form of a physical meeting only and within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists may
themselves convene such physical meeting in accordance with
the provisions of section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda.

Send Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board as follows:

Unit 3808, 38th Floor,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central,

Hong Kong

Telephone  : (852) 2530 1668
Fax : (852) 2530 1233
Email . info@ncgrp.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the

general meetings of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(i) The procedures for proposing a person for election as a

(i)

director of the Company at shareholders’ meetings are

set out in the “Corporate Governance”

section of the

Company's website.

The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows:

(@

(b)

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company may submit a
written requisition to propose resolution(s) through

requisition of a special general meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders
of the Company may submit a written requisition to

propose resolution(s) at the next general meeting.

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must

@

(b)

©

(d)

state the resolution(s) with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the shareholders’

meeting;

be signed by the requisitionist(s);

specify the full name and address of the
requisitionist(s), as appear in the Company's share

register of shareholders;

specify the class and number of shares which are
beneficially owned by the requisitionist(s) on the

date of such written requisition or notice; and
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)
Make Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

(i) The procedures for putting forward proposals at

shareholders’ meetings are as follows: (continued)

The written requisition or notice given by the

requisitionist(s) must (continued)

(e) be deposited at the registered office of the Company
with a copy to the Company's head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit
3808, 38th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the board of directors of the

Company or the company secretary of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-
going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meetings and other general meetings to communicate

with them and encourage their participation.

In addition, the Company also communicates to its shareholders
through interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.
All such reports, announcements and circulars can also be
accessed via the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly by
the Board to ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the

prevailing regulatory and other requirements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) in January 2019.

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the Company,
provided that the Group records a profit after tax and that the
declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount,
the Board shall take into account, among others, inter alia, the

following factors:

(i) the Group's financial results;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity

position;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements and

future expansion plans;

(iv) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the members of the Group; and

(v) any other factors that the Board may consider

appropriate.

The payment of dividend by the Company is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda, the bye-laws of

the Company and any applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Dividend Policy will continue to be reviewed from time to
time and there can be no assurance that a dividend will be

proposed or declared in any given period.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated bye-laws of the Company in
substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing bye-laws
of the Company was adopted by way of a special resolution
passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 21 September 2022. The purpose of the adoption was to,
among others, (i) provide for flexibility for the Company to
convene and hold hybrid and electronic meetings, in addition
to physical meeting; (ii) comply with the Core Shareholder
Protection Standards as set out in Appendix 3 of the Listing
Rules; and (iii) incorporate housekeeping amendments. The
latest version of the Company's memorandum of association
and amended and restated bye-laws of the Company are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This report provides an update of the environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") of the Group during the period from
1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (the “Reporting Period”) and
is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide under
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules (the “ESG Report”).

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board Statement

A company's success is not solely measured by its financial
performance, but also by the extent to its contribution to the
lives of its customers, employees and other stakeholders from
a wider world. Therefore, as an important leadership role of
the Company, the Board has full responsibility for the
Company's ESG strategy and reporting by taking
environmental, social and corporate governance considerations
into its business operations and ensuring the awareness within
the organisation of the importance of sustainability to its long-

term success.

Over the past years, the Company has conducted materiality
assessments of ESG issues concerned by its stakeholders, in
which the Board participated in the evaluation, prioritisation,
and management of important ESG issues and put in place an
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
supervision system. The Company has also set environmental
targets associated with its businesses and conducts regular

reviews of the progress of environmental targets.

A more comprehensive review of the Company's performance

is provided in the Group's ESG Report in the following section.
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REPORTING PRINCIPLES

We have taken the following reporting principles into account

in development of the ESG report.

Materiality

The ESG Report is structured and based on the materiality of
respectively sustainability issues as assessed and identified
with stakeholder engagement. The Board and the management
regularly review the sustainability issues that are most
significant to our business and operations, and consider the

issues discussed in the ESG Report to be material to the Group.

Quantitative

The ESG Report provides information on the standards,
methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation tools. Source
of conversion factors used for the reporting emissions and
energy consumption are mainly referred to the ESG Reporting
Guide.

Balance

The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group's
performance during the Reporting Period to avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately
influence the decision or judgement made by the report

reader.

Consistency
The Group uses consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data and enables the

stakeholders to understand the Group's performances.

REPORTING BOUNDARY

Unless otherwise stated, information disclosed in the ESG
Report covers the Group’s businesses including money
lending, cruise ship charter services, property investment and

securities trading for the Reporting Period.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT BErn&EsH

The Group understands its responsibility to all stakeholders ZAEBHBHEURESHENEE TETE
and recognises that understanding the needs and expectations ~ THFMHEMNTERBE AAEBRKINNE
of stakeholders is the key to success of the Group. Therefore, & - Eitt, » REBERTEFHH & R E
the Group values the views of different stakeholders and their M HUAEBEKLIRE HENEREER
opinions on our business and ESG matters. A summary of the HIBR - #7HE B INREULBEREE

stakeholders, topics concerned and communication channels — A Za0T -

are as follows:

Stakeholders
F0E

Stock Exchange

Bt 2 P

Government and Regulatory
Authorities
B I B

Topics Concerned

BE MR E

+ Compliance of listing rules,

timely and accurate publishing

Communication Channels

«  Meetings, training, workshops,

programs, website updates and

of announcements announcements
BT ETRA R W Y THe s
IEPNT TR A

+ Compliance with laws and

«  Government inspections

regulations TR 5=

BFIERE KA «  Compliance report or
«  Fulfilment of tax obligation questionnaire

FB1T MM & 75 EHRMELHES

«  Statutory filings and notification
R TE 18 Ko A
C Tax returns

WK



STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders
50E

Investors and Shareholders

BREEMBRR

Customers
®P

Business Partners and
Suppliers
EESH Y A
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Topics Concerned
B X AR

»  Corporate governance
TEEER

. Business strategies and
performance
ES Y e

. Investment returns

BREMERK

«  Quality services

BE R

*  Reasonable price
BEER

. Protection of privacy
R & AL PR

*  Quality of products or services

EmERBHEER

RR - HEREGRE

K ESRR)

Communication Channels

BERE

«  Shareholders’ meetings

RERE

« Annual and interim reports
FRE P RS

«  Announcements and circulars

«  Company website

yNGIFENS

*  Emails and phone
BENER

«  Site visits
B IR

+  Business meetings
EEE

«  Company website

NIE

+  Business meetings
B

«  Contract and agreements
BRI R

«  Emails and phone

EBNER
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (continued)

Stakeholders Topics Concerned
BFHE BXMRE
Employees *  Remuneration and benefit
(==] B K2 48 A
+  Employee compensation
EEWIE

+  Training and development
Bl R R

«  Working hours
TR 8

«  Working environment
THRIRER

Community «  Environmental protection
it RERE
+  Employment
S
*  Helping people in need and
poverty relief

EDEFEENRKE

K ES R R

Communication Channels

BERE

Interviews with employees
HiEEg#

Employee performance appraisal
BEXRBREZ

Internal meetings
NEE &

Training and seminars
FI R e

Employee handbook

& 8 F i

Email and internal memos
EB RN ESE
Suggestion box

BRAE

Supporting charitable
organisations

NI RERE

Employees’ voluntary participation
in community activities
EEBR2ELRED
Charitable donations

HERE
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions
Due to the Group's nature of business, the operations do

not involve any production process, hence there is no

obvious exhaust emissions.

The Group’s air and greenhouse gas ("“GHG") emissions
data during the Reporting Period and the year 2022 are

as follows:

Unit
By

Air Emissions
BERBER
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg
AR T
Sulphur Oxides (SO)) kg
Ay T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg
B R T=
GHG Emissions
= R B
Scope 1: Direct emissions tCO,e
HE : BRI W—fLiREE
Scope 2: Indirect emissions tCO,e
FE2 : MWE LN M ALiRE B
Greenhouse gas intensity tCO,e

(per employee) WS LIRE =
BEREEE

(B2EE)

Al.

RR - HEREGRE

BER

B
ENAKEZEZHEE AR EXHBAL
PERAEMAEEBRE - Bt B8
BEERBE -

AEERBERER —T - —FENE
REBERB(DEERE]) PFREE
LN

2023 2022
—_=E_= —=E-
1.58 1.17
0.04 0.04
0.12 0.09
7.21 6.17
64.11 70.19
2.30 2.46

o7
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Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Emissions (continued)

Notes:

1. Scope 1 refers to the direct emissions from vehicles that

are owned by the Group.

2. Scope 2 refers to the indirect emissions resulting from the
generation of purchased electricity consumed by the

Group.

3. The emission factors used are based on the requirements
in "How to prepare an ESG report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs" issued by the Stock

Exchange.

We have adopted energy saving initiatives mentioned in

the section “"Use of Resources” of the ESG Report.

Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

The Group recognises the importance of waste reduction.
Waste management measures have been introduced to
minimise the amount of waste generated and reduce
impact of our operation on the environment. The small
amount of hazardous waste generated from the
Company's office activities, such as toner cartridges, is
collected by qualified organisations for environmentally
friendly disposal. Non-hazardous waste includes waste
papers of approximately 0.92 tonnes (2022: 0.71
tonnes) which are collected by specialised recycling

company on a regular basis for effective recycling.

Due to the Group's nature of business, it is not aware of
any non-compliance of laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources

The Group's energy and resources consumption data

during the Reporting Period and the year 2022 are as

follows:

Direct Energy Consumption
BERRERE
Petrol
T
Intensity (per vehicle)
T (BHAE)

Indirect Energy Consumption

8 B Re FUH #E

Electricity

B
Intensity (per sq.m. of floor area)
BRE(BFHAEE@EE)

Resources Consumption
BERHEFE
Paper
AR
Intensity (per employee)

nE(Bx2EER)

The Group is vigilant to conserve energy, water and
resources as to relieve global concern of resource

depletion. Hence, we have initiated the following

Unit
By

Litres

9’_'_
Litres

ﬂ,

kWh
TR
kWh
T ELBs

Tonnes
U]
Tonnes
I

measures to promote responsible use of resources.

A IRIE ()

A2. EREH

AREERFSHER
RN ERBFEEIRIT

2023
—EBC=F

3,053.31

1,017.77

132,343.00

120.19

5.41

TEC_FENE

2022
=

— =

2,614.15

871.38

152,358.00

138.37

8.92

0.29

AREBEZEBEHOLIR  KMER - A%
REMHERMBOEE - Bitt - 1M
EHITATIER - AR B B EHEA
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A2.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)

Use of Resources (continued)

Electricity consumption

«  The Group advocates employees to switch off idle

lightings, computers, office equipment and air-

conditioning systems when they are not in use.

«  The Group has adopted energy saving practices in

its office building.

«  The traditional fluorescent tubes have been replaced
by LED tubes in the offices.

Fuel consumption
«  Regular maintenance on the Group's vehicles is
carried out to ensure a high fuel efficiency to reduce

emissions.

Water consumption

«  Water saving notices have been posted in pantry to

promote water conservation and usage awareness.

«  Prompt repair and maintenance when there are

dripping, spraying and leaky faucets.

Water consumption of the Group is entirely generated
from domestic usage in the office building. However, the
head office in Hong Kong has no water consumption
recorded as the water consumption charges are included
in the building management fee so that the water bills
will not be calculated separately. Since the main source
of waste water came from domestic use, the overall level

of water pollution is relatively low.

A2.

R (&)

BREM (K)

HEE

- AEEREBESETLERHBIEH
BRA B WATREREH
Z#ft

i
JiE
o
FH

<

- K
&

&7

il

s FBARLAEANESRAECERA
LEDAE ©

c ARENEWSETERREAE

RIAEL =R - #EToR D BERR YD -

FEAE
o ZFOKBASREE T ENY BKES
SESFAORKKEERENERG -

C o ORRERREERK
H) K BE 3 -

& 7K &Rk

AEBEZRKEEHPAKENNAE

FXKMEL - R - EEBMERLE
FKELS  RERABEKZEREBIE
EAEEEREN Bt KETGES
HE-EARBEBRKONEERRABEA
K B KSR KT RERE -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

Annual Report 2023 F3k

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
A2. Use of Resources (continued)
Paper consumption
«  The use of digital copies is promoted in the office to

save papers and to recycle envelopes that are used

for issuing internal documents and letters.

«  Double-side printing and copying.

«  Electronic means of corporate communications to
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to
receive corporate communication documents by
using electronic means through the Company's

website so as to reduce the paper consumption.

«  Increasing the portion of digital marketing tools and

cutting down the paper advertisement.

Packing material consumption
«  The Group, as a non-consumer goods manufacturer,
does not consume any packaging materials in its

principal business.

A2.
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A3.

ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
The Environment and Natural Resources

The business activities of the Group have no direct/
significant impact on environment and natural resources.
The Group nonetheless commits to using natural
resources efficiently while we encourage the reuse and
recycling of materials during our daily operations. In
addition, the Group is committed in applying industry
best practices and complying with legislation, establishing
and reviewing safety, security, and environmental goals
and targets, effectively using energy and materials,
reducing waste and emissions, and communicating our
environmental protection policy to all employees. The
Group also places surplus cash with a bank for
sustainable deposits of which all assets reference against
them align to the United Nations Sustainable Development
Goals addressing, including but not limited to, climate

change, poverty, health, financial inclusion and education.

Meanwhile, the Group recognises that businesses must
take responsibility for being a role model of industry in
relation to sustainability of the environment, and we
should bear the responsibilities and fulfill the obligations

in protecting them.
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Climate Change

The Group is aware that climate changes would have
significant impact on its business operations and its property
may be damaged by extreme weather conditions, e.g.,
tropical cyclones, rainstorms and earthquakes, which may
further affect the safety of our employees. The Group
identified, evaluated and managed the climate-related risks.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has not been
seriously affected by extreme weather conditions as the
Group has set up various emergency plans to prevent the
disruption of our business operations and to safeguard the
safety of our employees such as working arrangement
under tropical cyclone warning signal no. 8 or above, and
black rainstorm warning. In the future, the Group will
continue to closely monitor the effect and potential risks of
climate change, and to improve and implement the

measures taken to reduce such climate-related risks.

SOCIAL

. Employment

Employees are regarded as valuable assets and core
competitive advantage of the Group. Policies and
regulations principally adopted by the Group in respect of
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare have

been clearly stated in the employee handbook.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all
the relevant laws, regulations and requirements, including
but not limited to, the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57),
the Employee’s Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282), the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap.
485) and the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608) and
did not find any violations of laws and regulations and

requirements in relation to Employment.

A4.

RR - HEREGRE

R®E (&)

RizB 1

AEBEME  RIREELEHEEBLEE
EEERTE EVEAREEZRBHIR
AL (BP0 - RS RIE - R RME) M
XECUAREMZEINETRENR
2o AEECEREA  FFHMEERIEKE
R - NEHE AR AEEDH
RIZEESE S UBHETEBES
2ETE UREETEENZZ A
ANFEJ\ SR Bk A | 20 SR e S R e R
BEMEETHTHELY Bt A%
By EZ DS RRRRNEELE -
ERFE  AEEHeBETYERRIR
BT EREERR  YoEKREHE
AR B R AR B R T SREREOHE B

e

. ERE

BERESAEENEEEERZLE
FEL - AKENFHEEE  BER
B TERE - -BRY - FEHRE 2%
TeAE ~ RIAR A R EL At 75 38 Ko 48 B P 8%
MNETERRERRECEREFMAB
5 -

RS HE - NEBEETHRARBE
2 ROIERE B (ETRR)EFE
EDIESTE CRE &G - BB EDE
2825 (R B EKRE) - BAEXHF
485E (R B E R E 2 5 BIERH) R FE
EPISE608F (&R T & R HI) - I &3
BEEMERERERER ROIKSK

EREMR

63



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B ER 2 A
Annual Report 2023 3§

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE - HEREGRE

SOCIAL (continued) B. #& (&)
B1. Employment (continued) B1. & (&)
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a total number of RZEZ=F=R=+—H0 x5EEZ
31 full-time employees (2022: 31 full-time employees). PREEBAHINA(ZZE-__F: 28
The key performance indicators related to the employee BEIIAN) RBEHE R T
structure and the employee turnover rate for the EEHREREREERALLENEARE
Reporting Period and the year 2022 are as follows: BREROT
2023 2022
—E—= —E-=
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAH BE AB
Employee structure EEREEB
By gender e R k)
Male St 13 13
Female 2z 18 18
By age group RERERE D
Under 30 30 AT 1 1
Aged 30 to 50 308% &508% 15 17
Aged over 50 5088 A £ 15 13
By category RE R &5
Senior Management =RERERE 6 6
Middle Management HRERE 13 13
General Employees —REE 12 12
By geographical region & it & &l 5
Hong Kong B 24 24

Singapore N 7 7



B. SOCIAL (continued)

B1. Employment (continued)

Employee turnover rate
By gender
Male

Female

By age group
Under 30
Aged 30 to 50
Aged over 50

By geographical region
Hong Kong

Singapore

Note:

Turnover rate refers to total number of resigned/retired

employees divided by the average number of employees during
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B. & (&)

B1. f&f% (&)
2023
—g-=
Number of
resigned/
retired Turnover
employees rate
BE,
EikER
AH K b=
(Note)
(B =E)
BERALE
BURE D
S 1 3%
pegid 1 3%
RERARE D
30 AT 0 0%
305X £505% 0 0%
505 £ 2 6%
RiEE D
N 2 6%
IR’ 0 0%
B3

BRNER

the Reporting Period and the year 2022.

MR EERREHRLE -T -

2022
—E-—
Number of
resigned/
retired Turnover
employees rate
B
RINER
AE MK =
(Note)
(PH3E)
1 3%
0 0%
0 0%
0 0%
1 3%
1 3%
0 0%
E A&

BEGRATIOES AK -
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Compensation and dismissal

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits
to attract and retain the talents. The remuneration of
each employee will be determined with reference to a
number of factors including educational background,
experience, job duties, professional skills and technical
capabilities, as well as salary level for similar job positions
in the industry. An employee may be dismissed in case
of serious or persistent breaches of discipline or convicted

of a criminal offence.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group treats all employees equally. Their
employment, remuneration and promotion will not be
affected by their social identities such as ethnicity, race,
nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy, disability and political beliefs.
The level of compensation of our employees is reviewed
annually in an annual appraisal on their performance
basis, during which process each employee is given equal

opportunity for promotion.

Working hours and rest periods

The Group understands the importance of “work-life
balance” to its employees and adopts five to six days
workweek dependent on level of duty and nature of
operations involved to ensure that the employees have
adequate rest. The Group determines working hours and
rest periods for the employees in line with Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and employment contracts with
the employees. In addition to statutory holidays, the
employees are also entitled to other paid holidays
including annual leave, sick leave, marriage and
compassionate leave, maternity leave, paternity leave and

compensation leave.
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SOCIAL (continued)

. Employment (continued)

Diversity, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination
The Group believes in the power of diversity, as it
believes that a varied workforce is essential to business
continuity. Therefore, the Group is committed to creating
and maintaining an embracing and collaborative
workplace culture. The Group aims to provide equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment and ensure
the workplace is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual based on race,
religion, colour, gender, physical or mental capability, age,
place of origin, marital status, and sexual orientation. The
Group also strives to ensure that complaints, afflictions
and concerns, including whistle-blowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group has zero
tolerance for sexual harassment or abuse in the

workplace in any form.

Benefits and welfare

«  Benefits plans maintained by the Group include
mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme, medical
insurance, group life insurance and discretionary

bonuses.

« Eligible employees are rewarded through the
Group's share option scheme and have the
opportunity to acquire shares of the Company

through this scheme.

«  Providing free fruit at work and encouraging our

employees to make healthy food choices.

«  Festive gifts were given to the employees.

«  Birthday celebrations were held for employees from

time to time.
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SOCIAL (continued)
B1. Employment (continued)

Benefits and welfare (continued)

On top of the statutory requirement, the Group makes
voluntary contributions to the MPF to enhance retirement
protection of the employees. The Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group have received the Good MPF
Employer Awards for several years presented by the

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.

B2. Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing employees a safe,
healthy and hygienic working environment. The following
sets out the practices adopted by the Group in relation to

workplace:

«  Office employees are assigned with individual
workstations. Offices are properly lit and ventilated,
kept clean and tidy with ample space between
workstations;

«  Office furniture and fittings are well-maintained and

replaced when necessary;

+  Smoking and drinking alcohol in workplace are
strictly prohibited;

«  Cleaning of air-conditioning systems and disinfection

treatment of carpets are carried out regularly;

«  Air defender and purifiers are equipped to protect
environment with antibacterial efficacy and to

remove air-suspended dust and odour;
«  First-aid boxes are set up in the offices; and
«  Security measures are in place at the offices to

restrict entry and exit only to employees and

permitted visitors.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Health and Safety (continued)

In order to combat the outbreak of COVID-19 and
safeguard the employees’ health, the Group has made
work from home arrangement with split teams for
employees to work in office or work from home on shift
with reference to the public policies announced by the
Government of the HKSAR from time to time in order to
minimise the risks of our employees in being infected
with COVID-19 when travelling to or from our office. The
Group has also taken the following additional

precautionary measures in the offices:

«  Our employees were required to wear face masks at

all times in the offices;

« All employees and visitors were requested to
measure their body temperature and wear face

masks upon entering the office areas;

«  The Group supported the employees’ roles and
responsibilities to their families and strives to maintain
a family-friendly work place for our employees. We
welcomed their kids to come to our workplace in case
of any suspension of classes for all secondary schools,
primary schools, kindergartens, child care centres and

special schools;

. Hand sanitizers are available at the reception areas;

«  Antigen rapid test kits are provided to all employees;

. Public areas of the offices are cleaned and

disinfected every day; and

+  Delivery workers are designated to deliver at office

entrance.
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B2.

B3.

SOCIAL (continued)
Health and Safety (continued)

There were no work-related fatalities occurred in the
Group during the Reporting Period and the past three
years. Apart from these, there were no lost days due to

work-related injury during the Reporting Period.

Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for
the development of the employees as well as the Group.
The Group encourages and supports employees in
personal and professional training, through seminars,
workshops as well as reimbursement for external training
courses to enhance their competencies in performing
their jobs effectively and efficiently. For the Reporting
Period, 30 employees (2022: 30 employees) have
received training, representing 97% (2022: 97%) of the
employees of the Group. A total of 163 training hours
(2022: 177 training hours) were offered to the relevant
employees, of which 56 training hours (2022: 60 training
hours) for male and 107 training hours (2022: 117

training hours) for female.

B2.

B3.

e (&)

REEZZ (&)
RBEEHEMBE=ZFA AKELE
BEFEMNETCTHRNEZR - Kbz
RmERHE YEECHETHBERIE
HE -

BRRIE
AEERBEREIEHEEARANEEER
WEZEM -ANEBEFEBFTE  TIEH
R EREREINISBFIRIZER &
Bk HEEETEAREESEI - #
migmEERN B LEEARES
BOEIT TE - RIREHIHE - 30%ES
TR ZF:30%EE) B A ERE
B297%(ZT=Z=F:97%)) BEEX
BEill- AEEEMEAEERMAH
163EXFNEEH (=T =_—F - 177AX
RS - Hh o 5lm 5 M E SR E4t56
EAZNEE (ZF = —F : 60fEZ N
) kMR B RH107E X I B
(ZZ2EZZF : N7AZIEFE) -

=



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7
Annual Report 2023 F3k

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HEREGRSE

B. SOCIAL (continued) B. #& (&)

B3. Development and Training (continued) B3. BEKRIFA (&)
The percentage of employees received training by gender RBEEHEEZTE__FEF  EHR
and category for the Reporting Period and the year 2022 BRIEISHEEXIBSLMT :

are as follows:

2023 2022
—E-= T
Percentage of Percentage of
employees employees
received training  received training
ZillEgEZ XilMEE 2
Bk B
By gender R &5
Male B 40 40
Female egid 60 60
By category RER & D
Senior Management SREERE 20 20
Middle Management FRERE 43 43
General Employees —EE 37 37
For the Reporting Period, the average training hours per RPLEHR - SLES THIIBEA

employee was 5 (2022: 6) and the breakdown of the (—E——fF:6) TIEMERRES

|73 1) 5 % 18 B 15 X 5| B 2R B 4l 40

and category are as follows: N

[Eh O

average training hours per employee based on gender

2023 2022
E2-= T
Average training  Average training

hours hours

F 15 32 9 B B F5 55 B B

By gender 2 1 B & 5
Male B
Female 74 6 ”
By category BERI8S
Senior Management EMEIRE 5 5
Middle Management 4 T 9 10

General Employees —EE 1 2
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B4.

B5.

SOCIAL (continued)
Labour Standards

The Group complies with all relevant laws and regulations
and the requirements of the governing authorities and
strictly prohibits the employment of child and forced
labour. Through the well-established recruitment policies,
the Group’s human resources department will carefully
check the identity documents of all applicants during the
recruitment process in order to ensure that all the
Group's employees are above the minimum legal working
age and no forced labour is hired. During the Reporting
Period, all the Group's employees were aged over 18
and no child and forced labour had been employed
(2022: Nil). The Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with child and forced labour-related laws
and regulations, including but not limited to, the
Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) and other laws and
regulations relating to employment and labour practices

that would have a significant impact on the Group.

Supply Chain Management

The Group mainly engages third party services providers
to provide services such as information technology
services, advertising services, legal and professional
services, and also daily routine office equipment, office
supplies, stationery and printing materials. There were no

major procurement involved.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Supply Chain Management (continued)

The Group strives to develop and maintain long-term and
stable relationships with our suppliers who are committed
to high quality, environmental, health and safety
standards. In selecting the suppliers, the Group takes into
account their prices, quality, services capabilities,
credibility, environmental and social performance.
Meanwhile, the Group regularly evaluates supplier
performance, strengthens the management of
environmental and social risks, promotes the sustainable
development of the enterprise, in order to build up the

corporate social responsibility.

During the Reporting Period, there were 58 suppliers
(2022: 55 suppliers) of the Group, all of them are

located in Hong Kong.

Product Responsibility

The Group strives to adhere to applicable laws and
regulations with regard to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating products and
services provided in our business, and to maintain
effective communication channels for redress. As the
Group is also conducting money lending business
through holding a money lenders licence in Hong Kong,
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163) of the laws
of Hong Kong constitutes a significant influence to the
Group's money lending business.
During the Reporting Period, there were no non-
compliances with relevant laws and regulations that had
a significant impact on the Group relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating

to products and services provided.
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B6.

SOCIAL (continued)

Product Responsibility (continued)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group values its intangible assets as much as its
tangibles. The Group protects its business against
intellectual property theft by refusing the use of illegal
software or anything without copyright or patents. The
Group supports the use of legal and intangible assets
with trademarks while protecting itself from expose to

cybersecurity threats.

Customer Privacy Protection

We only collect personal data for operational needs and
clearly inform all customers or persons about the
intended use of the data and their rights to review and
revise their information. All collected personal data is
treated as confidential and securely kept and processed

only for the purposes of which it had been collected.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
significant non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. We did not receive any compliant concerning
breaches of clients’ privacy nor we have identified any

leak or loss of client data.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
responsibility and integrity in all aspect of the Group's
affairs. The Group has a zero-tolerance policy towards
behavior in association with bribery, corruption, extortion,
fraud and money laundering in its business operations.
Employees should not offer, solicit or accept anything of
material value to or from his/her colleagues, customers,
suppliers or other business partners of the Company. Our
code of conduct has provided guiding principles for the
employees regarding to the acceptance of gifts,
declaration of interest and other misconduct. Employees
are required to declare any conflict of interest by
completing the required form as instructed by the
Group’s Human Resources Department. Accepting
voluntary gift must be declared and have undergone the
approval process as administered by the Group’s Human
Resources Department. During the Reporting Period, the
Group provided internal training on anti-corruption for all
directors and employees of the Company and its

subsidiaries.

The Group encourages the reporting of suspected
business irregularities within the Group and provides
reporting channels specifically for this purpose. When
suspected wrongdoings, such as breach of duty, abuse of
power and receipts of bribes are identified, employees
should report to senior management for investigation and
verification, as well as other relevant regulators or to the

law enforcement authorities when necessary.
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B7.

SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist
financing, the Group follows the “Guideline on
Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-
Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” issued by the Companies Registry and has
incorporated policies and procedures in its operations
and credit guidelines and policies, which include
procedures for customer due diligence, enhanced due
diligence, reporting of suspicious transactions, record-
keeping and staff training. Any suspicious case of money
laundering or terrorist financing which comes to the
employee’s knowledge would be reported to the money
laundering reporting officer ("MLRO") of the Group.
Taking the relevant information into account, MLRO will
evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-case basis and
when necessary, will report to the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit of the Government of the HKSAR as

soon as practicable.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations in respect of anti-corruption, and no legal
cases against the Group in respect of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering have been recorded during

the Reporting Period.

Furthermore, the Group encourages our employees to
report alleged malpractices or misconduct through various
channels. The Group has also adopted a whistleblowing
policy and procedures for all levels under the Group. The
Group's whistleblowing policy encourages all internal staff
to report actual or suspected improper conduct, to the

Company's Audit Committee.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-corruption (continued)

During the Reporting Period, there were no concluded
legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
Group or our employees (2022: Nil). The Group
endeavours to protect the whistle-blower from common
concerns such as potential retaliation and is assured that

their identity as a whistle-blower will be kept confidential.

Community Investment

The Group is committed to supporting the public by
means of social participation and donation and putting
the best effort into helping the local communities and
people in need through community services and

engagement, social support and sponsorship programs.

The Group contributes and gives back to the community
by donating to various social organisations and engaging
in community service activities, to fulfil its corporate social
responsibility. We encourage our employees to take part
in charitable activities and volunteer community services.
During the Reporting Period, the Group made donations
in aggregate of HK$41,800 (2022: HK$46,000) to
certain social organisations, to support rehabilitation
services for the needy and participated volunteer

community service activities organised by them.

In addition, certain companies in the Group have been
awarded for decade the “Caring Company” logo by the
Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of its

contribution to society and serving of the community.
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The directors of the Company (the "Directors”) present their
report and the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of the Company comprise investment
holding and securities trading. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries comprise money lending, cruise ship charter
services, property investment and securities trading. In March
2023, the Directors decided to dispose of Kingston Maritime
Limited, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which is solely engaged in cruise ship charter
services. Since then, the Group has discontinued its cruise
ship charter services business. Other than this development,
there were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's

principal activities during the year.

Discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a fair review of
business and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's business, can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report
and note 1 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report. Such discussion forms part of this “Report of

the Directors”.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the

Group's financial position at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 108 to 280.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any

dividends in respect of the year.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 281
and 282. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share options during

the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

There were no movements in the Company's share capital

during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company's reserves available for
distribution amounted to HK$688,706,000.

Under the laws of Bermuda, the amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company of
approximately HK$354,993,000 as at 31 March 2023 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company in the amount of
approximately HK$162,587,000 as at 31 March 2023 is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances as

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$41,800.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the aggregate revenue attributable to
the five largest customers accounted for 21% of the Group's
total revenue, which included fair value losses on equity
investments in aggregate of HK$13,578,000 for the year. The
aggregate revenue attributable to the largest customer

accounted for 6% of the Group's total revenue for the year.

No major suppliers were identified.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest

customers.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (Chairman)
Ms. Sio lon Kuan (Deputy Chairman)
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda (Chief Operating Officer)
Ms. Lilian Ng
Ms. Chen Ka Chee
Mr. Yu Wai Man
(resigned on 1 July 2022)
(appointed on 1 November 2022)
Ms. Huang Si Teng
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth

Mr. Ho Yau Ming

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
(appointed on 1 June 2023)

In accordance with the Company's bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2),
Ms. Chen Ka Chee, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Mr. Kwan Kai
Kin, Kenneth will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with the Company's bye-law 83(2), Mr. Yu Wai
Man, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung
shall hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of Mr. Cheung Chun
Kwok, Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth and Mr. Ho Yau Ming an
annual confirmation of independence and also from Mr. Wong
Steve Cheuk Hung a confirmation of independence on his
appointment and as at the date of this report, still considers
them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

(a) Executive Directors

Mr. Ng Wee Keat Chairman of the Company and the
Nomination Committee and member of the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 46. Mr. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in January 2003 and was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company in April 2004. Mr. Ng
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to the
chairman of the Company in March 2012. Mr. Ng has
also held directorship in various members of the Group
since January 2003. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Economics awarded by Indiana University
Bloomington. Mr. Ng is a director of Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited ("HWHL"), the immediate holding
company of New Century Investment Pacific Limited
(“NCIPL"), which is the controlling shareholder of the
Company. In addition, Mr. Ng is a director of NCIPL.
Mr. Ng is a younger brother of Ms. Lilian Ng and an elder
brother of Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si
Teng. Mr. Ng is a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. Mr. Ng is
also a son of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the
settlor and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Lilian Ng,
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms.
Chen Ka Chee are executive directors of the Company.
Mr. Ng did not hold any directorship in other listed public

companies in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan Deputy Chairman

Aged 56. Ms. Sio joined the Company as an executive
Director in October 2002 and was appointed as the
deputy chairman of the Company in October 2004.
Ms. Sio has also held directorship in various members of
the Group since August 2000. Ms. Sio has over 28 years
of extensive management experience in various fields
including retailing, property investment, tourism and
entertainment. Ms. Sio is a director of HWHL, the
immediate holding company of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. In addition,
Ms. Sio is a director of NCIPL. Ms. Sio is the mother of
Ms. Huang Si Teng, who is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. Sio did not hold any directorship in other
listed public companies in the last three years.

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda Chief Operating Officer

Aged 45. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in June 2003 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer of the Company in October 2004.
Ms. Ng has also held directorship in various members of
the Group since November 2003. Ms. Ng holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in Telecommunications
and a minor in Computer Science awarded by Indiana
University Bloomington. Ms. Ng brings to the Group
experience in the fields of real estate management,
human resource management and retail operations.
Ms. Ng is a younger sister of Ms. Lilian Ng and Mr. Ng
Wee Keat and an elder sister of Ms. Huang Si Teng. Ms.
Ng is a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. Ms. Ng is also a
daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the
settlor and the trustee of a discretionary trust which holds
the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Ms. Lilian Ng,
Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms. Chen Ka
Chee are executive directors of the Company. Ms. Ng did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Ms. Lilian Ng (also known as Ms. Huang Lilian)

Aged 49. Ms. Ng joined the Company as an executive
Director in July 2002. Ms. Ng has also held directorship
in various members of the Group since September 2002.
Ms. Ng holds a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration awarded by San Francisco State University.
Ms. Ng has extensive experience in real estate
management. Ms. Ng is a director of NCIPL, which is the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Ms. Ng is the
elder sister of Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
and Ms. Huang Si Teng. Ms. Ng is a cousin of Ms. Chen
Ka Chee. Ms. Ng is also a daughter of Mr. Ng (Huang)
Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a
discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda, Ms. Huang Si Teng and Ms. Chen Ka Chee
are executive directors of the Company. Ms. Ng did not
hold any directorship in other listed public companies in
the last three years.

Ms. Chen Ka Chee Member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee

Aged 58. Ms. Chen joined the Company as an executive
Director in May 2000 and was appointed as the member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee in July 2022. Ms. Chen has also held
directorship in various members of the Group since
August 2000. Ms. Chen holds a Bachelor of Commerce
degree awarded by Murdoch University and is an
associate member of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Ms. Chen has over 35 years of
experience in the accounting field, including 4 years in
auditing. Ms. Chen is a cousin of Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng
Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si
Teng. Ms. Chen is also a niece of Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee Keat, Ms. Ng Siew
Lang, Linda and Ms. Huang Si Teng are executive
directors of the Company. Ms. Chen did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(a) Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Aged 58. Mr. Yu joined the Company in August 1997
and was an executive Director from October 2004 to
June 2022. Mr. Yu was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2022. Mr. Yu has also held
directorship in various members of the Group since
September 1997. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of both the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
has over 38 years of experience in the accounting field,
including 3 years in external audit and 2 years in internal
audit. Contemporaneously, Mr. Yu has acquired over 30
years of financial experience in companies listed in Hong
Kong and London. Mr. Yu did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.

Ms. Huang Si Teng

Aged 28. Ms. Huang joined the Company as an executive
Director in June 2023. Ms. Huang holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree awarded by the University of the Arts London
and a Master degree awarded by the University College
London. Ms. Huang has over 8 years of property
investment and management experience in Southeast
Asia. Ms. Huang is a younger sister of Ms. Lilian Ng,
Mr. Ng Wee Keat and Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda.
Ms. Huang is a cousin of Ms. Chen Ka Chee. Ms. Huang
is also a daughter of Ms. Sio lon Kuan and Mr. Ng
(Huang) Cheow Leng, who is the settlor and the trustee
of a discretionary trust which holds the entire interest in
Huang Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company. Ms. Lilian Ng, Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Siew Lang, Linda, Ms. Chen Ka Chee and
Ms. Sio lon Kuan are executive directors of the Company.
Ms. Huang did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years and any other
positions with the Company or other members of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and
member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 58. Mr. Cheung joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2012 and
was appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee in September 2012.
Mr. Cheung is also the member of the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Cheung graduated from Edith Cowan
University of Australia and received his postgraduate
diploma of financial management from the University of
London. Since returning to Hong Kong in 1990, he has
been extending international opportunities for Chinese
large state-owned and privately-owned enterprises.
Mr. Cheung is a Practising Certified Public Accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
Certified Practising Accountant of the Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants and a Certified Tax
Adviser of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
Mr. Cheung is the director of Global CPA (HK) Limited
(Representative of Integra International) and has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and the
tax aspect. Mr. Cheung oversees the day-to-day running
of the finance function and is directly responsible for
financial reporting, corporate governance, tax and
corporate finance for multi-national companies including
state-owned enterprises and listed enterprises.
Mr. Cheung also has extensive international accounting
experience and has worked in CPA firms in the US and
Australia. Mr. Cheung has served as a member of the
Small and Medium Practitioners Committee, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the
Professional Service Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council and International
Committee and a Certified Business Intermediary of the
International Business Brokers Association. Currently,
Mr. Cheung is a member of the Small and Medium
Practitioners Committee of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung did
not hold any directorship in other listed public companies
in the last three years and any other positions with the
Company or other members of the Group.
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RABKEFLEAGRIHELESE

BERIEEZREHE

585 ° REANR T —_FRAMAR
ARBHEBIIFATEST AN_-F
——FENARZRERBREZE S LI
ZEEXTR RAELENRRERZEEK
Bo-RAENBMFABIFHMXKNESR
¥ URBBABREUBEENRE
MR B ANTFLRBAK K&
BEBRZFEAUEAEMREEE
REBRERL -RELERBESMLE
ZHEGE  ORMEETA LS 2T M
SR NEBRBESG 2 XM 5E
RELZHMERESFAITAERIFN
Ex(MREREEAR) AHEAEFE
EAMBMBELEBE T EAOLR - REL
FREEEEERARBRBEALER
EHEENBBENE  TERXEBEYH
HBE CEER BHBERIRELER
BoRAEEBARBZHBIR G &R
LEEFEME S EITTIIE - Rt
ERRETEESMAGH/NEHRE
BIMMEZERLE BFAEEHERRE
ERBAEAZEGZEURBBRERE
cherBERREeR B REHERE
BIEH - RAELBRAEERMNESFEAD
EPNEMEMEEEKE - RELB
E=-FUEREM ETRARRAEEE
MEFHS  TERARAXNASTHEHE
fth Bk B 2 RIEEE o] A th Bk -



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 76. Mr. Kwan joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in April 2003.
Mr. Kwan is also the member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Applied
Science degree in Civil Engineering and a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree with Honours from the
University of Toronto and the University of Windsor
respectively. Mr. Kwan has 8 years of experience in the
accounting and tax auditing fields together with over 42
years of experience in the real estate business and
business agent. Mr. Kwan did not hold any directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years and
any other positions with the Company or other members
of the Group.

Mr. Ho Yau Ming Member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 72. Mr. Ho joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2003. Mr. Ho is also the
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ho holds
a Master degree in Finance from the University of
Leicester in England. Mr. Ho had worked in the banking
industry for over 27 years in official and senior executive
positions including The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited and Dao Heng Bank Limited. Mr. Ho
did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years and any other positions
with the Company or other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES (continued)

(b) Independent Non-executive Directors

(continued)

Mr. Wong Steve Cheuk Hung Member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee

Aged 77. Mr. Wong joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2023.
Mr. Wong is also the member of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Wong completed an advanced level
course in real estate at Ryerson University (currently
known as Toronto Metropolitan University) and was
admitted as Fellow of the Real Estate Institute of Canada.
Mr. Wong is currently a Real Estate Broker and was a
Professional Appraiser with over 55 years of experience
in real estate business. Mr. Wong was qualified and
registered as a Professional Appraiser of Alpha Appraisal
Association of Ontario, Canada and a member of Toronto
Real Estate Board and The International Institute of Public
Appraisers Ltd., Chicago, US. Mr. Wong was a co-founder
of Toronto Chinese Business Association (the
“Association”) in 1968 and was elected as the president
of the Association in 1975. Mr. Wong did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last
three years and any other positions with the Company or
other members of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company or its subsidiaries
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors' fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to Directors’
duties, qualifications, experience, level of responsibilities
undertaken, contribution to the Company, prevailing market
conditions and the recommendation of Remuneration
Committee. Further details can be found in note 8 to the

financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
During the year ended 31 March 2023, a permitted indemnity

provision as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
was in force for indemnity liabilities incurred by the Directors

to a third party.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director nor a connected entity of a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company, or any of the
Company’s holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow

subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERBRETRAERKRAD  HE
BROREER 2EERAXR

RZZEZ=F=ZA=+—H ARAEEK
BRITHRABRARARSHE MR ER (F
ERBHERBEGR((BH RSB
EXVER) 2 f&fh MHERO REEZTRHEES
BEFESHLBEKIIEIS2EREBLAR
NEIFREFEECMAz R KR - SRE
IMBTAESHETIFRINBRETFAZ
REMBRNGARARELEBRERZMER
NEI([BBBMIF]) o= RABWT ¢

Number of ordinary shares held,
capacity and nature of interest

BEEERYE SORERME

Directly Through

beneficially controlled

Directors owned corporation

Bz EREEHR ZEHRE

Mr. Ng Wee Keat - 220,192,000

=EELE (Note 2)

(My&E2)

Ms. Sio lon Kuan 52,000,000 220,192,000

mEELL (Note 2)

(PtEE2)

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda - 220,192,000

BEAMAT (Note 2)

(B7E2)

Ms. Lilian Ng - 220,192,000

BMERT (Note 2)

(PBitaE2)

Ms. Chen Ka Chee 8,400,000 —
BRIREI L+

Mr. Yu Wai Man 3,360,000 -

REXELE

RARBEBR IR
Percentage of the
Beneficiary Company's issued
of a trust Total share capital
EARARE BT
ERZERA L BRAZBEDL
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(Note 3)
(PH5E3)
3,556,133,691  3,828,325,691 66.23
(Note 3)
(P 5E3)
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(Note 3)
(P 5£3)
3,556,133,691 3,776,325,691 65.33
(Note 3)
(Pt 5£3)
= 8,400,000 0.15
= 3,360,000 0.06
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

Directors

2x

Mr. Ng Wee Keat =EELEE
Ms. Sio lon Kuan BEERzL
Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda BEEWAL
Ms. Lilian Ng EMELZL
Ms. Chen Ka Chee PR A% B 2T &
Notes:

1. As at 31 March 2023, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited, a company limited by guarantee being a
charitable institution of public character of which Mr. Ng Wee
Keat, Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian

Ng are members and members of its council of management.

3. 3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, which is ultimately owned by Huang Group (BVI)
Limited under a discretionary trust of which Mr. Ng Wee Keat,
Ms. Sio lon Kuan, Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda and Ms. Lilian Ng are

the discretionary beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers.
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EERBRETRAEBRKRSD - HE
RO KEER zEERXA (H)

RARBIEREZHR

Number of share options
directly beneficially owned

EREZEE2BEBRERA

21,000,000
11,000,000
18,000,000
18,000,000
16,000,000

84,000,000

. RZTE-=F=ZF=+—H ARARZE%*
1TR% 17 48 88 55,780,368,7050% °

2. 220,192,000 & B4 (ER) BEH
CERAAFE  ZRAR—RIEAR %2{2
EWBHNBERARAR : BEAXE B
Bt SRzt REAELTRZAA

ZKENEBZEGKE -

3. 3,556,133,6918K K 5 \ANew Century
Investment Pacific Limited# 7% - 3 Huang
Group (BVI) Limited:& B 2 ErE R KRR ©
ZEDRERZ2EI e ABREEERELE
BMENLL EFEEKEIREMNELL -

BREXFBEEEN RZFTE_=F=A
=+—H ARAEEKERTTBRABHRE
RAR A S EFMAEEE 2 KRG - HER
NEEFETFREBEREZS LBHERIE
IS2EBBRIERIORE - R L3
TAEFETESFRZNEETFA ZREM
EMERNRIRBEBYRRAZERIAE °
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EEERE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRREMATRARSG REE
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BRoZzERZRAR

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the following interests and short WR-ZE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H AR AD%
positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital of the 7R 45008k LA £ 2 T 71 HE 25 K \7*77-%7]7@%%
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to  FH M ERE K P ZE33615RE B AR R

be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO: FriR7F 2R E M

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RANR LB 218 -
Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company's issued
Shareholders Notes shares held share capital
EEARE#HT
IR R B 5 BESBERHAE RA&z2BDE
New Century Investment Pacific Limited 2,4 3,556,133,691 61.52
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited 2 3,556,133,691 61.52
Huang Group (BVI) Limited 2,3 3,556,133,691 61.52
Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng 3,4 4,200,249,691 72.66
ERBEL
Notes: Bk

1. As at 31 March 2023, the total number of issued shares of the 1.
Company was 5,780,368,705.

2. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is the ultimate holding company of 2.
New Century Investment Pacific Limited. Huang Worldwide
Holding Limited is the immediate holding company of New
Century Investment Pacific Limited. Accordingly, Huang Group
(BVI) Limited and Huang Worldwide Holding Limited were
deemed to be interested in a total of 3,556,133,691 shares.

E:—i A=+—H AARZE#
19 #288 /55,780,368,7050% °

(Eﬁ

Huang Group (BVI) LimitedZ&New Century
Investment Pacific Limited Z & &R A &) ©
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited&New
Century Investment Pacific Limited” B # {2
i A7) o Bk - Huang Group (BVI) Limited &
Huang Worldwide Holding Limited# 4% & % A&
& $£3,556,133,691 R {0 2 #E &5 ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. Huang Group (BVI) Limited is held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng in his capacity as the settlor and the trustee of a

discretionary trust.

4.  3,556,133,691 shares were held by New Century Investment
Pacific Limited. 220,192,000 shares were held by New Century
(Huang's) Foundation Limited while 423,924,000 shares were
held by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng. Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow
Leng is one of the members of New Century (Huang's)
Foundation Limited. Accordingly, Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng
was deemed to be interested in a total of 4,200,249,691
shares. New Century (Huang's) Foundation Limited is a company
limited by guarantee being a charitable institution of public

character.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no person
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company)
who was recorded in the register of the Company had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would be required to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4
September 2012, ordinary resolution was passed for the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”). The
Scheme is for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Further details of the Scheme are
disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

the year:

Name or category
of participant

SRELZTER

Directors

Bz

Mr. Ng Wee Keat
BRERLE

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

BERLL

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
BERMKRL

Ms. Chen Ka Chee
BBzt

Mr. Yu Wai Man
REXEE

HHELEEEEERLA

BRER 8 (&)
The following table discloses the movements of the TREBERAFE H RIFZHEIRLMEAR
outstanding share options granted under the Scheme during — 71£ 2 fE i fg 2 &
Number of share options
BREZE
At Lapsed At Date of Exercise Exercise
1 April during 31 March grant of period of price of
2022 the year 2023 share options* share options  share options**
R-B=Zf RER RZBZ=% BRE B BhRiE
mA-H %% =ZR=+-H Bt B T8 TEE™
HK$ per share
BRET
21,000,000 - 21,000,000 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—E-=F “E-ZENAZHZE
NA=RH —E-=FNAZE
11,000,000 - 11,000,000 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—T-=F —E-=fNAZHE
NAZH “Z-=FNAZH
18,000,000 - 18,000,000 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—B-=f “E--FNR=RAZE
NAZ=H ZTZ=%NAZH
18,000,000 = 18,000,000 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—ZT-=fF “E-=EnA=HZ
NAZH —R_=FNAZH
16,000,000 = 16,000,000 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—2-=% C—T-ZEAAZHE
MNAZ=H “ZZ=%NAZH
16,000,000  (16,000,000)* = 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
—E-=E —E-=fNA=ZEE
NAZ=H ZZZ=%NAZH
100,000,000  (16,000,000) 84,000,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table discloses the movements of the
outstanding share options granted under the Scheme during

the year: (continued)

Number of share options
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BRESE (&)
TREENRAFE - RIBZFTEE LM E R
TTEZBREZZE  (F)

BREHE
At Lapsed At Date of Exercise Exercise
Name or category 1 April during 31 March grant of period of price of
of participant 2022 the year 2023 share options* share options  share options**
R=%F-=f RER R-T-ZF BRE BRE BRE
SEERELER mA—H %% =BA=t-H i B TEH TEE™
HK$ per share
gRET
Other employees
HitfES
In aggregate 32,800,000 (600,000) 32,200,000 03-09-2013  03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023 0.1532
af —Z-=F% —Z-Z$¥NA=RZE
NAZH ZTZ=FNAZH
Total 132,800,000  (16,600,000) 116,200,000
A&t

* There is no vesting period for the outstanding share options
granted to employees and Directors.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in
the Company's share capital.

* Mr. Yu Wai Man resigned as an executive Director on 1 July
2022 and his 16,000,000 share options lapsed on 30 June
2022. Mr. Yu was appointed as an executive Director on 1
November 2022.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had 116,200,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. Should they be fully
exercised, the Company will receive additional share capital of
HK$291,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$22,579,000 (before issue expenses). The fair value of
these outstanding share options measured in accordance with
the Group's accounting policy (note 2.4 to the financial
statements) amounted to approximately HK$5,067,000 as at
the grant date.

* O BRTREMEEMEARTEZERELER

BB ZITEENREMARKEITAR %
RRABBARZ EBRULE T T AR -

fOREBXEAERZE I F+ A - BBRENT
EENH16,000,0000FEREER =T ==
FRAZTHERK - REEER =T ==
+— B —BEZTANTES -

R=ZZE=-_=F=F=+—8 " BE%:TE "
XA R B 116,200,00017 58 A% 42 (8 R 1T ©
G BETEZERRE N AA g WER
BN A201,0008 TR BMHEED
22,579,000/ 7T (GRHBREITHZ) - RIFE
HE  ZEMARTECEREREAEE S
TR (ISR RMIE2.4) st EZ A TFEE
#95,067,000/8 JT °
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the
Directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the

Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the

public as at the date of this report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after the reporting

period are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their
reappointment as auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Wee Keat

Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2023
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To the shareholders of
New Century Group Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Century Group Hong Kong Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 280,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided

in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide
the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying

consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

REETEHE (H)

Key audit matter

HRREETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMWESFOMEEERETEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

P& U & 3K e R B R (B R A

bles

As at 31 March 2023, the Group's net loan and
interest receivables amounted to approximately
HK$823,423,000, which represented approximately
40% of the total assets. Provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables under the
expected credit losses (“ECLs") model amounted to
approximately HK$4,573,000.
RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H  EBEEENEKRER
K A B %8R 49823,423,0008 7T © 15 B & E £940% o
BEARAEREX ((BRHERBEXDERX  GHE
WE SRR A SRR E B 18 B B 494,573,000 7T -

The measurement of ECLs is inherently subjective and
involves significant management judgements and
assumptions regarding the probability of default, loss
given default, historical delinquency ratio of loan and
interest receivables, collateral values and economic
indicators on forward-looking information.
AAEEHRGERABRATELAEEHN UK EHE
WEREMEMBAOB X BOBARX FLERXR
Ol - EHmEE URBELSEEENMEMLE
BHERNERE 2 R RE -

We obtained an understanding of the Group's policy
on granting loans to its borrowers and the Group's
credit and impairment assessments including the
related credit control and loan monitoring process. We
evaluated the reasonableness of management's loss
allowance estimates on loan and interest receivables
by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data, evaluating
whether the historical loss rates are appropriately
adjusted based on current conditions and forward-
looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances.
We carried out procedures, on a sample basis, on the
settlement made by borrowers during the year and
their subsequent settlement with reference to the
repayment schedule, and tested the existence and
accuracy for the classification of stages of loan and
interest receivables applied in the ECLs model as at
the end of the reporting period. We involved our
internal valuation expert to assist us in reviewing the
valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECLs model. We also considered
the adequacy of disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

REETEHE(H)

Key audit matter
BRESSR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BMWESNTEEERESSE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receiva

P E R KR B R E R ()

bles (continued)

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.
FHEABRERBANGE B mEMT24 3
}18 e
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FERIOTR M HEEBSHREE R
BHEBEREEGHITNSEMNE - RAREETRX 2
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REETEHE (H)

Key audit matter

BREBETEHR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNMEEEARETER

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
REWENR T EEMRKT

As at 31 March 2023, investment properties
measured at fair value amounted to approximately
HK$547,700,000, which represented approximately
26% of the total assets, with the corresponding net
fair value losses recognised in profit or loss of
approximately HK$12,292,000. The Group engaged
external valuers to perform the valuation for the
investment properties. The valuation process was
inherently subjective, and dependent on a number of
significant unobservable inputs, such as the market
price per square foot, market rent per square foot and
capitalisation rate.

RZT_=F=RA=1+—H URATFEEFENR
B Y% #)547,700,000/8 7T * HERBEEH26%
THEEERABRALAFTEEBERFRD
12,292,000/ 7T - ESREINEAEMEREMFEE
TRE - AEAEAELAITHL TERTET
BATTEEGAE FINEFTRTBEE &
FHRHRAGEERERMCE X -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included

in notes 2.4, 3 and 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.
ERASTBRRABESNGEE M B HRKRMT24 -3
K15 o

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation experts engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation experts. In addition, we
evaluated the appropriateness of the work performed
by the valuation experts. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation by comparing them
to market data if available, and assessing the
relevance of the major assumptions and
methodologies adopted in the valuation. We also
involved our internal valuation experts to assist us in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies for
the valuation of the investment properties held by the
Group. We also considered the adequacy of
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

HMEZERE ESEMZEENGEZRNEN B
REREEML - BHPL THBMEEZEROIME - 1tih
BAFETHEERMETHOIERGAE -ER
FFEBETISEIE (WMATES) £ T B A ER
B AEOSEBENEBEE  TEERERE UK

AEHEFAERANEIERRREZEEHME - &
PTmBRFAABOEEER2E - BB HMIFTHA

BESEMFAEREMENGBET ZRERT L &

MTEEEAREMBERRANKEETEEN -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

REETEHE(H)

Key audit matter

BEBETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANBTNMEEARETER

Estimation of fair value of a cruise ship

B D FEEME

As at 31 March 2023, a cruise ship measured at fair
value and included in assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale amounted to approximately
HK$66,300,000 with the corresponding revaluation
deficit of approximately HK$35,580,000 recognised in
profit or loss from a discontinued operation during the
year ended 31 March 2023. The Group engaged an
external valuer to perform the valuation for the cruise
ship. The valuation process was inherently subjective,
and dependent on a number of estimates, such as
the market price per unit, rate of newness and market
discount rate.

RZB_=ZF=A=+—"0B B8EESIEABERF
ENHEEENEELUNRATEEAENHE - K
& %A #966,300,0008 7T - HERBEZE T -_=F=
A=T—BHLFEADRIREXBENERANER
BB 4 %35,580,00008 L EKBEEIEMEE
A B smsE T E - EBREAELFRIHIT
WEKRFETFHE AIRESEMHIHERS  KHTE
MHZrinEg -

The accounting policies and disclosures are included
in notes 2.4, 3, 10 and 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AR BER R BBV S
10%13 -

EPEHmRMFE2.4 3

We considered the competence, capability and
objectivity of the valuation expert engaged by the
Group. We also obtained an understanding of the
work of the valuation expert. In addition, we evaluated
the appropriateness of the work performed by the
valuation expert. This included assessing the
relevance, completeness and accuracy of the data
used as inputs for the valuation, and assessing the
relevance of the major assumptions and
methodologies adopted in the valuation by making
enquiries to the valuation expert. We also involved
our internal valuation experts to assist us in evaluating
the major assumptions and methodologies of the
valuation of the cruise ship held by the Group, which
included performing independent market research.
We also considered the adequacy of disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.
HMPEERE ESEMZEENGEERNEN K
RERFHM - Mt THEBEEZERNIE - b
BAFETHEERMETHNIERSAE -ER
BEBRBEZIRELHE AT ERIELERAEN
BIRMEAMY TR RERNL - UK EEES
ﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁﬁix@““&?’iﬁ% Y FE B8 o 3R AP TF A5 AP
NE R EEZERL2E - BT E\;Klﬁﬂ—r
*ﬁ‘iﬁ%ﬂ’]ﬁ@ﬁfJZI%fE“&ﬁ/ﬁ Heh B gk
B TS o ﬁff’ﬁﬁa%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁ‘%iﬁﬁmﬂ’ﬂﬁ
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form

of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing

the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor's report is Chan Ching Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

27 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

HREEER

Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_T-_—F#=-A=+—HIFE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
REVENUE

Other income

Administrative and operating expenses

Foreign exchange differences, net

Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of a non-current asset
held for sale

Fair value gains/(losses) on investment
properties, net

Finance costs

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables, net

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment losses

on repossessed assets

PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Loss for the year from a
discontinued operation

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

KA

ES I ON
THREERX
ERER FE

B QAR EMNER
HERBFENERD
BEMRES
REME N TEE
W/ (BR) - FE
mAKAK
FEREFR RS HRERE
BE/(BE) PR
BEEEMNRERSE
BE/ (BE)

FRCEXBELN
BRI BT A

FISHER

FEERBRERY
EEREN

ERIEREXY
AEE-RERELSR
EBELNER

rEERR
AT AL

ZN/NSIE 2SN
FFE R a8

Notes

i

10

2023 2022
—EB-= —E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHT
(Restated)
(E5)
80,068 80,741
7,386 796
(44,104) (41,865)
28 -
(270) -
= 714
(12,292) 15,502
(4) (8)
(2,794) 498
(1,941) 11
26,077 56,389
(9,222) (6,775)
16,855 49,614
(60,743) (56,449)
(43,888) (6,835)
(36,866) (1,501)
(7,022) (5,334)
(43,888) (6,835)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic
— For loss for the year

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations

Diluted
— For loss for the year

— For profit/(loss) from
continuing operations

Note
B &E

ARAALERKRE
BEAEEER
BR/ (FE) 12

EA
—AEEBE

B/ (B1])

—AEEBE

~REREXBELN
w7,/ (B#E)

HK(0.64) centsi&l

FEEER (8

Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_ZT-_=—F=-A=+—HIL&FE

2023 2022
—E-=HF T

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

(Restated)

(RE5)

HK(0.03) cents7S L

HK(0.01) centsi&l

HK0.56 centsi& 1Ll

HK(0.64) centsi&l

HK(0.03) centsy& 1l

HK(0.01) centsi&l

HK0.56 cents/& Il

109



110

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2023 3§

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEZEWER

Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_T-_—F#=-A=+—HIFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

Other comprehensive income
that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences:
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Release of exchange reserve upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

Net other comprehensive income
that may be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods:

Change in fair value of an equity investment
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FEEBER
Hir2mE W (F8)

AR HIE A ge EH 0
EEHENEAM
ZEWE

DE L E R
BB RIMNEE X
EEMENLZ/

Sl PNGIE S Es
By R B O 5 e 1

LA1& BAfE) AT REE 3T 0 R
ERGNEMEE
Wz # 58

LA BAfE & T & E
DEEEGEMEM
FEkaE S (BR)

BERBRAFEEFTA
Ho A 2 Y ok O B
BRENRAFEEES

FEEHME2ERSR
(B18) - HBRBK

AEERHE
BERARE

AT AL :
ZAN/NETEZ 2 DN

FEVE AR 25

2023 2022
—_=E_-= —=E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
(Restated)
(e &E3)
(43,888) (6,835)
4,393 114
270 -
4,663 114
945 (1,417)
5,608 (1,303)
(38,280) (8,138)
(31,557) (2,837)
(6,723) (5,301)
(38,280) (8,138)




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Prepayments and
other receivables
Loan receivables

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Loan and interest receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Repossessed assets

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accruals, other payables and
deposits received

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Due to the intermediate
holding company

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Liabilities directly associated
with the assets
classified as held for sale

Total current liabilities

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Notes
B 5
kRBEE
LE N & 13
REME 15
BEREAFEER
AR EEmR G
R IR E 16
FERFER
b R X 17
FERE R 18
ERBEEBTE
REEE
W E 5 BR K 19
I E R KRR B 18
FENFIE - Fek
H i FE YR X 17
BEEE 20
WAFEERA

BRI RERE 21
Ay Uy [B] 718
HeRReEED 22

PEABEGEN
HEEEMNEE 10

B A ERE

RBAEE
FEETFRIE - HAth FEA
ERkBEWZES 23
HEAE 13
J& B 7518

JE - R AR A A

FRIA 31(b)
AEERBRARZ
FEPE AR AR 3R

B2 ER 31(d)

EAOEARERFE
HEEE &
HENEE 10

mB B E B

oA

EEEBARAA
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FINANCIAL POSITION

HEMBIRRAFE
31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E %
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
118,900 225,365
547,700 556,308
2,985 2,040
546 556
167,711 231,469
837,842 1,015,738
384 8,842
655,712 505,829
6,976 5613
58,133 53,358

- 80,075

- 33
456,010 401,548
1,177,215 1,055,298
66,317 -
1,243,532 1,055,298
8,405 22,068

72 134

1,291 169
80,000 40,000
71,823 71,823
161,591 134,194
21| 5353 —
182,924 134,194
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

HFEMBRRAER (&)

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F T &
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 THET FET
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,060,608 921,104
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAER
LIABILITIES 1,898,450 1,936,842
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Deposits received B WL & 23 1,184 1,447
Lease liabilities HEA®E 13 = 72
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFRIBEAE 24 17,792 17,569
Total non-current liabilities EmEB B EETE 18,976 19,088
Net assets BEFE 1,879,474 1,917,754
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to owners ARREE ARG
of the Company &
Issued capital B BT A 25 14,451 14,451
Reserves B 27 1,533,696 1,565,253
1,548,147 1,579,704
Non-controlling interests FERER 331,327 338,050
Total equity EmiAEE 1,879,474 1,917,754
Ng Wee Keat Sio lon Kuan
EEAG o
Chairman Deputy Chairman

TE BIE/E
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GREEREEIR
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_ZT-_=—F=-A=+—HIL&FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KLEREARE
Share Share Asset Exchange Non-
Issed  premium option  Contributed ~revaluation  Fairvalue translation Merger ~ Retained controlling Total
cpitl  account  reseve suplus  resene  resene  reseve  resene profts Total  interests equity
BEf Rt BhE R HEEf  OVEE Ef el 8 FER B
Rx BER i B4 i i ] i & At B 3
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TERL TERL TERL TEL TER TER TR TR TERL TERL TERL TERL
At 1 April 2022 WZFZEmA-A 14,451 354,993 5,862 162,587 4853 1,260 (2356)  (77640) 1115694 1579704 338050 1917754
Loss for the year FERER = = = = @ = = - (36866)  (36,866) (1022)  (43,:888)
Other comprehensive income FERENRE
for the year:
Exchange differences on
trenslation of foreign operations - - - - - - 4202 - - 4202 191 4303
Release of exchange resenve upon
Qeregistration of a subsidiary - - - - - - 162 - - 162 108 m
Change in fair velue of an
equity investment designated
at fair value thrugh other
comprehensive income - - - - - 945 - - - 945 - 945
Totd comprehensive income/(oss) ~ AEF2ERE/
for the year ( - - - - - 9%5 4,364 - (36866)  (31557) (6723)  (38280)
Trensfer of share option resenve
upon lapse of share options - - (194) - - - - - 19 - - -
At 31 Merch 2023
14,451 354,993 5008 162587* 453* 2,205 20084t (77640 1,079622% 1548147 B 1879474
*

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$1,533,696,000 (2022: HK$1,565,253,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

@ Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity relating to a disposal group classified as
held for sale included in exchange translation reserve of
HK$5,784,000 (2022: Nil) and non-controlling interests of
HK$3,855,000 (2022: Nil) respectively.

N ERHERBENGAVTBRLRPOES
f#1#1,533,696,0008 T (Z T = —
1,565,253,000/8 7T) °

REMEZENEERRZ2EERT  BH8
REAFENHEREMAMNE L #ERKE
TRRHE R M) £ R 9 Bl /5,784,000 T (= F
T ) K%3,8550008 L (ZFE ==
/®) o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
GFEEREEIR (48)

Year ended 31 March 2023

HE-_T-_—F#=-A=+—HIFE

Attibutable to omners of the Company

FAREEARE
Share Share Hsset Eichange Nor-
Issued  premium opfin~ Contrbuted  reveluation e value  translaton Meiger  Reteined controling Total
il account Tesenve suplus feseve fesene fesene fesene profts Todl  interests equiy
B b Bl B4 EEEf  QTEE 3 aft x4 HER e
o HER ik B4 i i i i & aif 5 5%
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§ 000 Hk§ 000 HK$ 000
TR TR T T TEn Thn Tin Tén TR TR TR TR
At 1 Aprl 2021 #HZFz-EmA-8 14451 354993 5,862 162587 9583 2611 Q437)  (T7640) 1112465 1582541 383351 1965892
Loss for the year TERER - - - - - - - - (s (53 (68%)
Other comprehensive income/ (o)~ KEEEf2E
for the year: :
Exchange differences on
trenslation of foreign operations - - - - - - 81 - - 81 3 114
Change in fair value of an
equiy iniestment designated FARBZENEY
atfir vlue through ofher Rk
comprehensive income 1TEERY - - - - - (1417) - - - (4 - (1417)
Totel comprehensive ncome/(oss) ~ REF2ENE/
forthe year (B%)e8 - - - - -4 8] Ss)R8) GX) (61%)
Tranfer of aset evaluaton resene. R ERAREL
wpon dsposal of snoncurent S AHEERER
asset held for sale LEEHRE - - - - (4730) - - - 4730 - - -
Interim didend paid to the XARBRET
internediate holding company REERAE - - - - - - - - - - (t0000)  (40000)
At 31 March 2022
4851 35499 58 16587 485 160 (3%6)  (77640) 1115694 159704 3B 1917754




CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) before tax:
From continuing operations
From a discontinued operation

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Bank interest income

Dividend income from
equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Depreciation

Fair value losses on
equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, net

Fair value losses/(gains) on
investment properties, net

Deficit on revaluation of a cruise ship

Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of a non-current
asset held for sale

Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables, net

Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses on
repossessed assets

Increase in loan and interest receivables

Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Decrease in equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Increase/(decrease) in accruals,
other payables and
deposits received
Increase in repossessed assets

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7

Annual Report 2023 F3k

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CEEB HERE

BBRTEN, (BR)
KRERBEREER
FE-HESKILL

BERH

BTIEEEL 2 HE
BEKAK
RITHIEMA
BRYEEFARZD

RiEREZ
BB A
e
BRYEEFABRZD
BEREZ A YERE
EB#E 8
RENE N TEE
B/ () 8
Hm 2 EffEA
P B % B BUBR AL R 40
E#&
HERBFENERD
BEMMR S

U B A B
REEE
B/ (B@)  FE
HEEE
HEBR
e/ (BE)

W E R R A E 2B
BUREZER AL
BN REREME
WERR AL,/ (1)
BRAVEEFARRN
BERE 2R D

FERT TR - Hf R AR
rEWEEZ

Egm/ Osd)
HEEEZM

HZERERER
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_ZT-_=—F=-A=+—HIL&FE

2023 2022
—E-=HF B2

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fisE THAR FET
(Restated)

(E5))

26,077 56,389
(60,743) (56,449)

4 8
(6,044) (699)
(5,625) (5,077)

13 12,981 15,268
5 13,578 1,671
15 12,292 (15,502)
10, 13 35,580 12,001
6 270 -
14 - (714)
18 2,794 (498)
20 1,941 (11)
33,105 6,387
(88,919) (77,540)

8,458 34571

(1,352) 208

66,497 14,791
6,893 (9,216)

20 (21,882) (30,248)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GZERERER (&)
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_T-_—F#=-A=+—HIFE

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Net proceeds from sale of
repossessed assets

Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong tax paid, net

Overseas tax paid

Dividends received from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Increase/(decrease) in bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of a non-current
asset held for sale

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal portion of lease payments

Increase in amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Interim dividend paid to the intermediate
holding company

Net cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

HHELEEEEERLA

Notes

i

mEEBmE,/ (FTA)

2R

HEHBEEER

PG5 % 58 20
BIFE

BRFE

ERNABHIE T8
BREINMAIE
BYRERRFEEGA
BRrREREZRE

REEDZRERE
BENE BE
R&EEER
RITER2EM/ (D)
HESBFENIER
BENMENA

13, 32(a)

REZBME/ (FA)

ZBREREFH

REZH RLRE
MENREN R TS 32(b)
ERAEERARREZ

il

ZPERE TR

NG

MEERBMSE/ ()
ZHEREFE

2023 2022
—E-= —E_C
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
(Restated)
(E5)
2,800 (61,047)
15,166 23,418
6,044 699
(4) (8)
(7,700) (8,129)
(148) (181)
5,625 5,077
21,783 (40,171)
(7,418) (296)
31,992 (31,473)
- 27,909
24,574 (3,860)
(134) (188)
40,000 =
- (40,000)
39,866 (40,188)
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ERBERLH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents attributable
to a discontinued operation

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of more than
three months when acquired
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to a discontinued
operation

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position

HeRBLEEYR
g/ (hd) B8
REDZHRE K
BeEED
INEEREE B

RERZBEER
RELEY

ReRRESENL
BRI

Re RBTHET
BARRT RN AR
Te=fRZ
EEREHER
—HERILEZXBEN
BehReTED

BAERSRERALMN

ReRBeEED

BB AR RE W ER

BA=fAZ

BEHARERER

B —HEERIELEER
EhERekE2E
B

e IR R AR A
Re kA e EEY

Notes

Pt

22

GZERESRER (&)
Year ended 31 March 2023
HE-_ZT-_=—F=-A=+—HIL&FE
2023 2022
—E-=H§ B2
HK$'000 HK$'000
THAR FET
(Restated)
(E5))
86,223 (84,219)
301,126 385,348
248 (3)
387,597 301,126
111,127 264,042
276,453 37,084
17 -
387,597 301,126
68,430 100,422
(17) -
456,010 401,548
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The principal activities of the Company comprise
investment holding and securities trading. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries comprise money lending,
cruise ship charter services, property investment and
securities trading. In March 2023, the directors decided
to dispose of Kingston Maritime Limited ("KML"), an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
which is solely engaged in cruise ship charter services.
Since then, the Group has discontinued its cruise ship
charter services business. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements and comparative figures have been
re-presented to reflect the results of the discontinued

operation separately.

The Company is a subsidiary of New Century Investment
Pacific Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. New Century Investment Pacific Limited is
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. In the opinion of the directors, Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, which is beneficially and wholly
owned by a discretionary trust, is the ultimate holding

company of the Company.

AAREEESR

St SEEEERAFEEAREET
MLz BRAR - RAR ZEMHE
iz i ’*Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ©

ARGz FEXBBEREERRES
BEE - HNBARZEFEZEXEBBREN
& HHEERYE VWERERIZFE
BE-RZT-_=F=-A EFrTHE
AR Az @ IE 2 & M B8 2 BlKingston
Maritime Limited ([KML]) - 32 2 @l{& ¢
EHHREERS - Bk KXEEEB
RIFHEHEERBER - BHOERS
MEREREBERFTEENII® - LAE
BRI D RIS ETHES -

XA 7 #New Century Investment Pacific
Limited (R R BRE X B SEMAKA L 2 2
al) z K B2 AF - New Century
Investment Pacific Limited/5Huang
Group (BVI) Limited (R B & Z B S5t
MMz RE) zEEE2EMRBLA -
EERA B EH2EEXEaNEE
#H ZHuang Group (BVI) Limited/57%

NCIPA 332 NI
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Name

a8

ETC Finance Limited
SRFTIBEERAA

Kingston Maritime Limited

Gaintech Investment Limited
FEEEERATA

New Century Group HK
Investment Pte. Ltd.

New Century Properties
Investments Limited

LN ERERRAAF

Place of
incorporation/
operations
ML
R

Hong Kong
B

British Virgin Islands
(8w

Hong Kong
RERUEE
([RBRLES])/
BB

Hong Kong

N

Singapore

Pk

Hong Kong
e

Issued
share capital

ERITRAE

HK$700,000,000
700,000,000/ 7T

US$1
17T

S$1
17T

HK$2
2B TT

RAREEHE

BA 75 3R R P EE
31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

# ()

ME AR HNER

Percentage of

ARRAEENBARZHENT :

equity attributable Principal

to the Group activities
rEBERS

BHEZADL TEXH

2023 2022
—E-=E —ZT-—F

60 60 Money lending

mE

60 60 Cruise ship

charter services

BB ERG

100 100 Property

investment

MERE

100 100 Property

investment

NERE

100 100 Property

investment

WERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ¥R R EE
31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/ Issued
Name operations share capital
i) AV
£% R ERITRAE
Senic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2
BARERRLA EE 28T
Wise Century Investments Hong Kong HK$1
Limited 5 187
ENREBERARA
Century Rich Investments BVI/ US$1
Limited Hong Kong EZ
EBEAHS/
Bk

All of the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held

by the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

RAREEHER (&)

BB R 9 B R ()
ARAEEMBERAZFHENT (&)

Percentage of

equity attributable Principal
to the Group activities
AEBEMN
BREZAEDHL TEXY
2023 2022

—E-=F —ZT-—-fF

100 100 Property
investment

VESE

100 100 Property
investment
MERE

60 60 Securities
trading

¢ s e
EHEE

AEMAEEZMBARHEHARREE
A -

ERAFIZARRMBRARIERTRA
BASEAFEXEREAFEREAR
SEFEETEHRD - BEFTRR - W5
HEMHBRARZHE  BRESHERNT
£ o
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for a cruise ship,
investment properties, equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss and an equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income which have been measured at fair value. Disposal
group held for sale is stated at the lower of their carrying
amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability

to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Annual Report 2023 Fk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

2.1 iRBEE

ﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂ&ﬁ)ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%é?rﬁfﬁ”/*(W-S
BRG] BH BB B ME
ZH ([BEVBBSER]D (BREME
BEMBHRESER BEEGER(E
BEREAD kRE)  BEEBERM
28 RAREB(RBGL) 2 KE
REMBR -KEH REVE BEAQ
FEEFABZORERERIEE /K
NP EEF ARG EEEENRERE
TR R FEEAEN AU BRKRTIE
JEE sb PR 7R BI AR B - 3 40 P RE2.4 0 P
—SHRE FEGENHESERHE
FEEBEMNAFEERBEEXNARES
MBIKEE - FRIERINFH A - N
BRABT (BT INE  ABESRE
EHREENTIT -

REEE

RAMBRREEARAMEHNEBAR
(BRI AEEDHE_T_=F
A=+t —BLEFENMBHRE - A
AEARAERAHEEFNER (
REBLER) - EASEAEB2HRK
1RE T R MEREE B i A HE A] & M 3R A0 AL
e FAAEER  WHAENERY
WRETWEN (BIREAEEBAA
EENTERRETNHEBASNREE
M) FEZFT DR - BANEUSIE I

[1 o

%]
5

@
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly
or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has

power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and
(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as

an equity transaction.

HHELEEEEERLA

2.1

fm B A (&)

ReEE (%)

—RME - EEAZHRRES TR
i EARARFERKBERAER LK
BEFTARZHNRRIBALER - 57
HEERHRRAHRIRETOENE - K
SESEEMAEBEEMBN - B :

(a) EBRETEMRRETBEANE
[ %k -

(b) HibERZHEENEN &

(0 RNEBEHRRENBLERRE -

ol = PNCIE 9 = YNNI AR E:
EHEMER - WHRA A ST ERRR
i o BB N B R AR B A B SR
BZBHRES  WHEESAKHEBAR
HEEERBIRRL -

BalkEtE2mRanSAXRT D 5F
BERAKEERRHEA ARIFERE
o AMEN RS BORE RS ER R A
B AEERNLZSRARZEXZEBD
MEEERARE #zm WA FAXK
ReRENGRERERZEUENE -

WMRFERIFRBR EX Pt s e =
ARAEF-EBEXZHRAZ  AAKEE
ENFEERTNAEGRKZET -
—RNBARZEAEEELIREFM
W EEHREERE - AIBBEEHI K
RIEZ/RZ G °
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2.2

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of

the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
Illustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

(a) Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to the

previous framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting (the "Conceptual Framework”) issued in
June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS
3 an exception to its recognition principle for an
entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability.
The exception specifies that, for liabilities and
contingent liabilities that would be within the scope
of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3
should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent
assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations
that occurred on or after 1 April 2022. As there
were no contingent assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities within the scope of the amendments
arising in the business combination that occurred
during the year, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of

the Group.
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New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below: (continued)

(b) Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from

©

deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location
and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from
selling any such items, and the cost of those items
as determined by HKAS 2 Inventories, in profit or
loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after 1 April
2021.
prior to the property, plant and equipment being

Since there was no sale of items produced

available for use, the amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that
contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a
contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its
obligations at 1 April 2022. The amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ENEHHEREE (&)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below: (continued)

(d) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are applicable to

the Group are as follows:

«  HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the
fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from
the terms of the original financial liability. These
fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other's behalf. The Group has
applied the amendment prospectively from 1
April 2022. As there was no modification or
exchange of the Group's financial liabilities
during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or

performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.
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Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate of Joint
Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts"®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 - Comparative Information®

Classification of Liabiltties as Current or
Non-current (the "2020
Amendments")* 4

Non-current Liabiltties with Covenants
(the "2022 Amendments")?

Disclosure of Accounting Pollicies'

Definition of Accounting Estimates'
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabiltties arising from a Single

Transaction’
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 RMERKERMZEBIME

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements. (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition,
as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

B As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

& An entity that chooses to apply the transition option
relating to the classification overlay set out in this
amendment shall apply it on initial application of HKFRS
17
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor's
interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption
now.

Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising
in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-
lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss
that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of HKFRS 16 (i.e.,
1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.

Annual Report 2023 Fk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

23 BRMEMKERZERYH

HEER (&)
T E AR A R B 0 BB T 1R 2 A
By — AR -

BEMBHMESEANE 10 REE G
ERE2BH/ (T ——F) ZEFTEHE
BRBAVBREENFIOHRERE
SR ERE28R (ZF——F) HEAR
REFRHABEOERALRLEZRAE
EHEHRANTRIRIERE ° ZEF]
BRE BEREEAGEZLEIBELE
HESRRAEERBK —RER - AT
RHELEMWEREIRE T 2 RER -
MR EAEERZIER—EE - A
R HELNKEIE R AR T HEER
BEEBESRECENNERRER
BEMERNETHER - BRI ARKRK
EREER - ERGMARER-F
—ANF-ABKREBEMB RS ERNE
105 BB G ER 285 (—F——
F)ZERTH TR B H ERE B -
BHEMEHEEREBRERSENS
AHREMEEEZMBERTKREE
AT AEETRE ATHERA -

BEEMBHRELENEIGR 2EBTRE
TEFABEACEHEERERXR ST
EENHEABERMRMOER Ui
REH —ABEATEREELRENER
EHEBNEMRERER - BTN _-F
“OE-A-BRZEFENFERE
£ WREBPRERANERTEWHRE
ZAF1REREAR (BIZT—NF
—A-B)RFITYNERERR S - At
FHERTER - BRET KT E@HARE
M BRRELEERNEATE -

129



130

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2023 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

23 BRMEMKERZERYH

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in particular
the determination over whether an entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the
HKICPA issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must
comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In
addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising
from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a
right to defer settlement of those liabilities that are
subject to the entity complying with future covenants
within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice
versa. The Group is currently assessing the impact of the
amendments and whether existing loan agreements may
require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
revisiting the accounting policy disclosures to ensure

consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's

financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

23 BRMEMKERZERYH

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in HKAS 12 so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or other component
of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to
transactions other than leases and decommissioning

obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group
will recognise deferred tax for all temporary differences
related to leases at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment on the impact of
amendments to HKAS 12.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, a cruise
ship and equity investments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market

participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBEME (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued) NP EEFE (E)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured EVBRERANGFTESIBRBAFEBENMN
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised BEENEBE HREBEEHRAFEENE
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, BEMEBEANEEEXGAEBYE
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the RTRRAFEEER

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active E—ERX - ERNBREEXBEERE
markets for identical assets or liabilities PR (B CRECTHE)
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the F_BX - EREATEEAEMS
lowest level input that is significant to the fair BEANRKERER#HAE
value measurement is observable, either TEEREE BRI
directly or indirectly BRI
Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the FZER — ERNBRATEEFAEMS
lowest level input that is significant to the fair BEANKERER#HAE
value measurement is unobservable T NPT B ER 6 fh (B Rl
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the MIEEEHEREREBANEE N
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group BEMS  AEESFSBENSHESR (3%
determines whether transfers have occurred between HRAVTEEFEEBMEEERAEEN
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation RIEBRBAE) EFTEHE R
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the EEAGHEFEEEAEEEHEEIR -

fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties
and a disposal group classified as held for sale), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a
corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated
to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the

smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBEME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued) FEMEEZRHE (B

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting RERESHREETEREEETRETR
period as to whether there is an indication that previously R AR BEBETBFESA
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may B o WEBEZERR - Bl
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the WEl¢RE BETEETRESRE 2
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised FFE IR E R CRIERCEERES
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is B (EERIN) FaRDE - EEEE S
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates ETEeRBEIBATFETAREER
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, RBEEEMES 2 EE®E (KT
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount MTeE #H) - ZREBE BB
that would have been determined (net of any AHIREE 218 BRIEEEIRER
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been B ERBERLT  REBBEZED
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such BRENEHEEZ BB R -

an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 RS BEME (F)
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties 2] )
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: WEBTIER —AREREAKESR
7
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (@ ZAR—BALTHRZALTREZR

person’s family and that person

;oM AL

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; () BAEEESEHENHRA
22 4
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BXREEEERATEN =X
(i) is a member of the key management (i) BRAEENAEEHEG QAN
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the TEEBABHKE
Group;
or 3
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) ZFAREEBFE AT EMIGY :
conditions applies:
(i) the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBNAEERR-—%
same group; )=
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of (i) —ERES—ER(IE%XS
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or —ERBON8RA -MHMEAF
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); HE XM BT SRR
DA W/
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZEBMAEEHEERE
the same third party; =AW EENA
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy —EBRE=70E521F
and the other entity is an associate of the third WES —ERBRZE=ZTH

entity;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies: (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by

a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant

influence over the entity or is a member of the

key management personnel of the entity (or of

a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which

it is a part,

provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or

valuation less accumulated depreciation and any

impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and

equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part

of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not

depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with

HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for

"Disposal group held for sale”. The cost of an item of

property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase

price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the

asset to its working condition and location for its

intended use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates

them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the values
of property, plant and equipment are dealt with as
movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the
difference between the depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset's original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a

movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis, with
the exception of motor vehicles which are calculated on
the reducing-balance basis, to write off the cost of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 23 to 44 years
Leasehold improvements 33'/.%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 15%
Motor vehicles 20%

Cruise ship 7%

Drydocking costs represent major inspection and overhaul
costs and are included in cruise ships and depreciated to
reflect the consumption of benefits, which are to be
replaced or restored by the subsequent drydocking

generally every two to three years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year

end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the

relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting

period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the

year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the

year of the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEGHBEME (F)

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held
as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”

above.

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal group is classified as held for sale if its carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to
be the case, the disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
disposal group and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless
of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in

its former subsidiary after the sale.

Disposal group (other than investment properties and
financial assets) classified as held for sale is measured at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as

held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-
of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 23 to 44 years
Buildings 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful

life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

24 TESHBEBE (8)

HeE (&)
AKEBERAN (&)
(b) HEEE

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment

OcCcurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying

asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of car parking
spaces, office equipment and public space (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not

contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease

term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of

its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as

revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEGHBEME (F)

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the

lessee are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value

through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective

of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in
order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and

measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified

or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an

instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not

subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value

with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised as revenue in profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if the
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related
to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms
as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of
a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at
fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of

the fair value through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its

entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the

Group's consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

+  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has

retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could

be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are

integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for
credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECLs).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the

timing of the default (a lifetime ECLs).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information. The Group considers
that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past

due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash
flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach
For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the
simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in

calculating ECLs with policies as described above.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value

and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,

net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals, deposits received, lease liabilities, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company and a
loan advanced from a non-controlling shareholder of the

Group's subsidiary.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation

process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle

the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part

of the Group's cash management.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower
of their fair values less costs to sell and the amortised
costs of the related outstanding loans on the date of
repossession, and the related loans and advances
together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the consolidated statement of
financial position. Subsequently, the repossessed assets

are measured at costs less impairment.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEGHBEME (F)

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

«  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax

credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

+ when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the

accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Annual Report 2023 Fk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

24 RS BEME (F)

g% (&)

HRAERNHRERZE RPAZH
RERRIMARBHZHAEBREEM
BRELRBEE - BEERBAEEMNE
@ RIRR AT RE#% A & SR A K1) ] A A
HHEAHRE R Z8 - RPHZHEE
RERBBZHARBRES - ATERIN:

- ERETIRIERBEHRISE
iRz EERABERELMN
R EE G55 M LR R
MBS EEKRTE AR HRE
BERZELCHBEEE Rk

© BRMBARREELZAIEE
REEMS  HREAERAER
RRFEEERZE  BARRT R
MARERHERZH HaER
ERENIAEE ©

EERAEEZEAMSBEREREHR
e WHURE T BRI A B HERT
EMNEAMAELABOELERREEAN A
Bl RERZEERBAEEN SRS
HIRE ¥Vl - WHERTREA B HERT
i MR AT S B D IR IR A A U 3 By
R -

159



160

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

Annual Report 2023 3§

HHELEEEEERLA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or

assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, for which it is intended to

compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEGHBEME (F)

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.

Cruise ship charter service income is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the

benefits provided by the Group.

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities trading
are recognised on a trade date basis, whilst unrealised
fair value gains or losses are recognised on changes in

fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model, further details

of which are given in note 26 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense

recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEGHBEME (F)

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also

service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met, no expense is recognised. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the
transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are

satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme,
except for the Group's employer voluntary contributions,
which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting

fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the

borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the

financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or

loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of
initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or

receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the

transactions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 RS REME (F)
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued) ShiE (4&)
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in FrEErsER=EerEEm2miaEs
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the R WEERFEEP RE - BEE)
exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign EEBEER BEREZEESINER ZE
operation, the component of other comprehensive b2 2 KA D GRS T R -

income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash MEEeHeRERMS  BIHINER
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are ZHERELRET %EHHZ[TT’;‘M
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates BABTL o HINHEB R RN EEFE T
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring EX7HESRERANEENELIER
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise BMERBTT -

throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars

at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3. TESTHERMES

ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements EEEREAEE 2K HmAR - BE
requires management to make judgements, estimates HETE8RA X EERBEER
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of CHEREBEMEERIABERENH
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their o (e RRER - BEARKREGTZT
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of AERARESEARARIZENE
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions EXBEZFRASBIFLEANFE -

and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the

assets or liabilities affected in the future.



New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax

The Group is engaged in the cruise ship charter service
business and accordingly may be subject to income taxes
in different jurisdictions depending on the routes of the
cruise ship and the operations of the relevant companies.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes worldwide, if any. The Group
does not recognise any liability for income tax based on
management’s judgement that the Group is not subject
to income taxes of any of the jurisdictions outside Hong
Kong based on the existing routes of the cruise ship and
the operations of the relevant companies. In addition, the
Group has obtained an indemnity letter from the
charterer to confirm that all relevant tax exposures of the

Group's cruise ship would be borne by the charterer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
and a cruise ship

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, the Group considers fair market
value by reference to independent valuations. This
conclusion is supported by independent professional
appraisers who were engaged by the Group during the
year to perform valuations on the Group's investment
properties and a cruise ship. As at 31 March 2023, the
fair values of investment properties and a cruise ship
included in assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale (2022: Property, plant and equipment)
amounted to approximately HK$547,700,000 (2022:
HK$556,308,000) and approximately HK$66,300,000
(2022: HK$100,620,000), respectively, which were
arrived at by reference to quoted second-hand market

prices.

3.

T ESEHE R MG (&)

fhEt 2 FHABE R
TXHBEEBEARRZIERREINES
ARG ZTABERENEMEER
R EAEARRE SN T EEBF
EBAAfeENEERRBEIRES
BIFHEAHE BRI HAWT -

RANERBEZ R FEEH

ANEBEz&EREFARUEER A
BHRRERTISF2RE - MRZ A H
B AEESESEZ AT EERE
BEEANE ST NELHER A&
Be2RBRBUGELEATME: WL
HESREENAFEZEURAEE
ZEREMERBEETHE LB LR
HEMXF RTE_=F=A=+—
H BRENMEURBEESBEARERF
ENHESEENEE (ZE -9
¥ BELEHE OHHZATFEES
Al #547,700,0008 T (Z&F = — % :
556,308,000/ 7T.) K %£766,300,000/% 7T
(ZZF = =4 :100,620,000% T) * &
B2E_FHISREFLHL -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The gross deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2023 was
HK$8,473,000 (2022: HK$8,124,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2023 was
HK$270,538,000 (2022: HK$244,104,000). Further
details are contained in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Provision for impairment losses on loan and
interest receivables

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECLs calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting

period.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of customers' actual default in the
future. As at 31 March 2023, provision for impairment
losses on loan and interest receivables amounted to
approximately HK$4,573,000 (2022: HK$1,779,000).
The information about the ECLs on the Group's loan and
interest receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

T EE M E R G E (&)

st 2 THERE (&)
BEALH L E
HRARBABIEEBmMERNETHE
BE - RRMAAIEEK A ERE & 0] B
ER R HEA BB TETAIER
ZCELEMIEBEESER  TEEEARE
A] 88 Y 2R 2R FE AR R v A1) 2 R R oK R
LA R AR R TR 75 48 B SR B 1B R 2B - R
—T-_=F=ZfF=+—H8 FHREER
MEEBEBECEERBEELE R
8,473,000/ 7L (ZZF = —4F : 8,124,000
BT) M-_E-_=%=A=+—8"
RIERBIBEEIB 2 £ % A270,538,000
BT (ZZT = 4 244,104,000 7T) °
BRE—THBHR I EREM 24 -

JEW B TR T8 A9 6 (8 T 1R 7% 1

AEERBEANEEREESE - RAEMS
AR IA B 7 2% 3R 5 HA R & AT HE 1 5T
EELBRRAMEZERERBERGE
B A A (B P 52 A U o

HESERENE  LERDTERRTE
HERBAZHNBBEETEEEEMN
e EHERBANSESZEREZ(
REERABRANTE - AEBHES
18 1B R E B I 8 18 ik B TEDRI R R
BRERREFPHEBRELNBR - RN
T_=—F=A=1+—H BFHERKEX
K F) B KR B 5 18 & 49 B4,573,000
BIL(ZTEZZF 11,779,000 L)
BEHRASEEERER KT EHTERER
BROEHEMBREMTI8ARE -

171



172 New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2023 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, BRESHEH

For management purposes, the Group is organised into EAEERAEZ  AEBREHEKAE

business units based on their businesses and has three FRETSEN - B =l |MEMNL %/7_7\%5

reportable operating segments as follows: N

(@) the money lending segment engages in the provision (@) MEDBRENEHIZIBER
of mortgage loans and unsecured personal loans; ERALAER

(b) the property investment segment invests in prime (b) MERESBRENEE T KA
office space and commercial shops for their rental SWMAZEBERAEEMREER
income potential; and i &

(c) the securities trading segment engages in the trading () BHREBENHANENREELFERS
of marketable securities for short-term investment XBIEEHIRERS -
puUrposes.

Management monitors the results of the Group's EEEIHAERAEELEDBAE

operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of
adjusted profit/loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss
before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit/loss before tax except that bank interest income,
gain on disposal of a non-current asset held for sale, loss
on deregistration of a subsidiary, corporate income as
well as corporate expenses are excluded from such

measurement.

BoEROREEREMBERRZIRKA
we D MRARBABREN D B E
FOBRF G DREABERBANE
R/ BlEOFE - KAERBEA R
M,/ EiE ey st 807 = BN S BER B AT s
M/ BEEHE-B EZFELTEHE
RITAERA - HERBEFENERDY
BEMWE  MB QB BT MmaE
B rERRA AREERX -
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, tax
recoverable and other unallocated corporate assets as

these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a loan advanced from a non-
controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, an
amount due to the intermediate holding company, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a

group basis.

Intersegment sales are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the

then prevailing market prices.
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

gesBER (&)

Fi

DHEETERREMNASFEY A
WEHIE  AREMADEEEEE -
ARZEEENREEEEEE

DEEETEEREENER B2 EE
IRAR R8T 2 B - ERTREER A A
HIEEHTE RETMEER UK
HithvRHBECEXBE ARZEEED
REBELEERE -

S HRIM B - SR E = IR
RNEE  EREBRTONSEEE
755
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, RETEER (F)
(continued)
Money lending Property investment Securities trading Total
HE NERE RAEHE £it
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—E-ZE -E--F CZE-ZE -E--fF CZECZE -E--F ZECZE -ZI-CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TR T THR T TR T TEn T
(Restated)
(mE5)
Segment revenue: ABUA
Revenue from exteral BAEPZ
customers WA 72,491 61,060 15,530 16,275 (7,953) 3,406 80,068 80,741
Intersegment sales PHBMEE - - 3,071 3071 - - 3,071 3071
Other income A 817 13 2% 76 4 - 845 89
73,308 61,073 18,625 19,422 (7,949) 3,406 83,984 83,901
Reconciliation: 8-
Elimination of s n HE
intersegment sales = (30m) (30M)
Total revenue and other income  HEZLERELHMA
from continuing operations ~ REHMABE 80,913 80,830
Segment results PEET 54730 49005 (389) 28284  (1963) 3385 46318 80674
Reconciliation: 8-
Bank interest income RITMEHA 6,044 699
Gain on disposal of a HERRREM
non-current asset ERHEE
held for sale gle - 714
Loss on deregistration of a (=P ¢ sl
subsidiary gl (270) -
Corporate and other PERELM
unallocated income AARBA 497 8
Corporate and other PERALM
unallocated expenses RARR (26572)  (25,706)
Profit before tax RELEERELS
ffom continuing operations BHRAER 26,077 56,389
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Segment assets
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated assets
Assets related 10 a
discontinued operation

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Reconciliation:
Corporate and other
unallocated liabilites
Liabilities related to a
discontinued operation

Total liabilities

Other segment information:
Depreciation
Fair value losses/(gains) on
investment properties, net
Fair value losses on
equity investments
at fair value through
profit or loss, net
Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses on loan
and interest receivables, net
Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses on
repossessed assets
Capital expenditure*

PBEE

bERAL
AOREE

BE-HEE&L
exinge

REEE

ABEE

HE

bERAL
AORAR

BE-EE&L
ez

e

HpAHER
&

REN%ZATER
B8/ (ks 38

BAFEEFA
BRENRERE
LAYERE
BR 38

ERERRHEH
HERE

B/ (BE) 38

BREEEHN
HERE
B/ (BE)

LS Tk

Money lending

2023
i
HK$'000
THR

886,613

3,469

246

2,719

1,941
46

HE

2022

HK$ 000
T

194,772

1,705

287

(498)

(1
134
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

HAl

4. BEIHER (H)

Property investment Securities trading Total
NERE E58E Chl

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZECZE CTCCF CZECSE ZECCF ZEIZE CTCCE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TR TAR TEx TR TEL
(Restated)

(#%3))

548,849 558,072 125 88251 1435587 1,441,095
579,470 529,321

66,317 100,620

2,081,374 2,071,036

3,558 4993 = - 7,027 6,098
173,540 131,255

21,333 15329

201,900 153,282

- = = = 246 287
1222 (15502) = =192 (15502)
- = 13,578 1,671 13,578 1,671

i } - - 2,79 (498)

= = = = 1,941 (1)

- = - = 46 134

*

*  Capital expenditure consists of additions to office

equipment.

BEAXHBERAERENRE -
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REIHEH (&)
(continued)
Geographical information i & & %
(a) Revenue from external customers and other (a) SNREP.Z WA RE KA
income
2023 2022
—_=E_= —=E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
(Restated)
(FE75))
Hong Kong & 78,640 78,972
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong RER(TBEES) 2,273 1,858
80,913 80,830
The revenue information of continuing operations iSRRI A BRI E
above is based on the locations of the customers. PP e & 5 A B o
(b) Non-current assets (b) #TEEE
2023 2022
—_E_= —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
(Restated)
(&)
Hong Kong BB 657,857 747,770
Southeast Asia except Hong Kong RER(TBEEES) 177,000 165,308
834,857 913,078
The non-current asset information from continuing AR IS R E L
operations above is based on the locations of the B SEFRERE SRR - W RE
assets and excludes an equity investment designated BT ARATLEESAEMEE

at fair value through other comprehensive income. U 35 IR IR A o
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents interest income from mortgage loans
and unsecured personal loans, gross rental income from
investment properties, fair value gains/losses on equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and
dividend income from equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss during the year.

An analysis of revenue and other income from continuing
operations is as follows:

Annual Report 2023 Fk
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

WA REMmWBA
WABRAFREZBERMEEARLAE
HEOFEWA  REMEZRS WAL
B RAFEEAABRENREREZ
RTEERE BB UAREQATEE
AFABREHRERE ZBREWA -

SEEEEBEENRAREMBKRAZ
DT

Revenue
Interest income from mortgage loans
and unsecured personal loans
Gross rental income from
investment properties
Fair value losses on equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, net
Dividend income from equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss

Other income

Bank interest income
Government grants (Note)
Others

Note:

2023 2022
—E-= —=EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
WA
RBERRERRLAER
ORISR N 72,491 61,060
KEME S
PN L 15,530 16,275
BRAFEES ABERARE
wWEZ2ATEEBE  F8 (13,578) (1,671)
BRAFEEFABRORE
®EZBRERA 5,625 5,077
80,068 80,741
Haug A
RATH B WA 6,044 699
BRI B (M) 1,271 =
Hth 71 97
7,386 796

B &L -

This consisted of government subsidies from the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the
Employment Support Scheme and the Technology Voucher
Programme. There were no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies attaching to these government grants that had
been recognised by the Group.

Ut B R LA & R B SR & T EE R
FATTREBRN 2R f#B - 2 FBFHE
I 4 f B B A S E AR A R R AT R S
B =R -
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations

is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation

Auditor's remuneration

Employee benefit expense
(including directors’
remuneration in note 8):
Salaries and allowances

Pension scheme contributions*

Total staff costs

Lease payments not included
in the measurement of
lease liabilities

Foreign exchange differences, net

Loss on deregistration of
a subsidiary

Direct operating expenses
(including repairs and
maintenance) arising from
rental-earning investment
properties

Fair value losses/(gains) on
investment properties, net

Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses on loan
and interest receivables, net

Provision for/(reversal of)
impairment losses on
repossessed assets

e

ZEET &
BEmMHEX
(BfEMEsZ
BE=ME) -

¥ MORRE
BARE A& PR

BTITRAMEE

TREEHRE
BETEN

HE 75
MEHZ% - 58

B A R AR AY
&1
BEEEME

A& mEED
HEEERX
(BIEHE

MRE)
"EWEZAFEE
BB (k) B
JE U B 3k & F) B
E R

B (@) FHE
HEEEDN

B E 1B

B, (BmE)

*  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.

6. BRBATEF

AEEFERLERBHRTANG N

B (GTA) ¢
2023 2022
—E_= —EF- -

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 3E FHET THET
(Restated)

(BEF))

13 5,897 7,488
1,850 1,680

19,968 18,574

736 882

20,704 19,456

13(0) 541 295
(28) -

270 -

3,093 3,049
15 12,292 (15,502)
18 2,794 (498)
20 1,941 an

*OUEAREBESEZIANIANER
R R - DURIE IR B TR -
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An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is

as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities

HERBNFE

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the Rules Gover

ning the Listing of

Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and
(f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part

2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information

about Benefits of Directors) Reg

Fees

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Discretionary bonuses

Pension scheme contributions

ulation, is as follows:

B

Hi < :
oo 2R
BEWH
BB 4T
RS EEIHR

BA 75 3R R P EE
31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

7. BMEAE

SERERBELNBRERADHMT :

2023
—EBC-=fF
HK$'000
FHET

2022
—E- %
HK$'000
FET

8. EERINGEEHEEMS

() EEM=

BEBBHEXSMERAT (&
B ES EmRAI(N £
WAL - BABLRAKH) E
383(1)(a) * (b) » () EME &
(PRl (RBEEZENRER) A0
E2ERBEHNAFEESHESOT -

2023 2022
—_E_= =

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

450 414

7,364 7,138

1,289 804

400 397

9,053 8,339

9,503 8,753
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A ¥R R EE
31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 8. EERTUBEHEENE (A)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EEM< (&)
(i) Independent non-executive directors () BIIHHTEF
The fees paid to independent non-executive RAFEZN T EZIERT
directors during the year were as follows: Exz0e0T
2023 2022
—E-= ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Mr. Cheung Chun Kwok SRR B O 150 138
Mr. Kwan Kai Kin, Kenneth B RR R ST & 150 138
Mr. Ho Yau Ming AR BA & 4 150 138
450 414
There were no other emoluments payable to RAFE - WEEMNBILIEHR
the independent non-executive directors during TEFEZEMHE (=T ==

the year (2022: Nil). FoE) -



8.

(i) Executive directors

2023

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man*

2022

Executive directors:

Mr. Ng Wee Keat

Ms. Sio lon Kuan

Ms. Ng Siew Lang, Linda
Ms. Lilian Ng

Ms. Chen Ka Chee

Mr. Yu Wai Man

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

—EZ=

HITEE
ERfAE
BEAELT
34 e
EAELL
iR S
KB

—E-C
WITES
BEATE
Eh kG
BEREERL
ERELT
BRA& B+
RIEXEE
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BA 75 3R R P EE
31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

8. EERTUBEHEENE (R)

(a) E=M< (&)
(i) BiTEF

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
7= 1:1 Bire
REMA & BB BE 3 AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT FHT THET
1,552 175 86 1,813
1,600 186 89 1,875
971 117 54 1,142
862 91 48 1,001
861 104 47 1,012
1,518 616 76 2,210
7,364 1,289 400 9,053
1,488 151 82 1,721
1,536 162 85 1,783
934 103 52 1,089
822 77 45 944
698 80 39 817
1,660 231 94 1,985
7,138 804 397 8,339

& Mr. Yu Wai Man resigned as executive director of

the Company on 1 July 2022 and was appointed

on 1 November 2022.

There was no arrangement under which a
director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

*

\ZTBZZFLA—H &
BXEREBTARABRNTE
ER_FE__Ft+—A—
B REXNELEEERET-

RAFEE  WEELAESIED
HMEXRERELAMNE Z

2 e
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees during the year
included five (2022: five) executive directors, details
of whose remuneration are disclosed in note 8(a)

above.

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for
one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2022: HK$2,000,000) of assessable
profits of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2022:
8.25%) and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at
16.5% (2022: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

Current — Hong Kong BE— &
Charge for the year REEER
Overprovision in prior years BAEFERERE

BIHR — E A b [

Current — Elsewhere

Charge for the year REEER
Overprovision in prior years AEFERERE
Deferred (note 24) RIET IR (M 5E24)

Total tax charge for the year from REZHERLE

continuing operations

HHELEEEEERLA

MR IR & AR

EERTUBREHEENE (R)

b)) ANBESHFEEMS
NARFE  AuseHmEESRER
(- —F: Af)RTESE

RS 2 #EE R EXH 8 () A
WE -
Fri&

RAFE BENSHIREEBEESE
ZAIhEERFREMIZ165% (2T ==
F:16.5%) 2B RBHE  HERERNF
BmAE AEE-—RMBRARAREE
R E S - Z M B2 E B2,000,000% 7T
(Z=F = =4 : 2,000,000 7T) A &R
R F ¥ 1%8.2500 (=T = =4 : 8.25%)
BB A A BR AR &R A Bl IR
165% (—F — —4 : 16.5%) BT K&
B o Hth i [@ 2 &SRB A A BB T AR &
REEBEBRERDEEER 2 RITHE
iE o

2023 2022
—E_=F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
8,799 7,722

- (164)

219 168

(19) -

223 (951)

9,222 6,775
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INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates,

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

9. FiE® (&)
RAARTREAHD N BA T
2 AEEER 2R B R A B2 BB
BIRER 2 AR R E R
ZRIBRIE 2 W - AR E A B (8]

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the EEMRER)EEERMER 2EERNOT
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows:
2023
ZECZZE
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
BE Hitt B CEl
HK$'000 % HK$'000 Y% HK$'000 %
TER TR TER
Profit before tax from BEEREBELN
continuing operations B AR 16,261 9,816 26,077
Loss before tax from a —BERIBEEHE
discontinued operation EENRBAEE (60,743) - (60,743)
(44,482) 9,816 (34,666)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEREFEHE (7,340) 165 1,669 17.0 (5,671) 16.4
Lower tax rates enacted BT VA
by local authority BEHNE (165) 0.4 (101) (1.0) (266) 0.8
Adjustments in respect of HBRBEE
current tax of mMEsE
previous periods HRE - - (19) (0.2) (19) 0.1
Income not subject to tax BRER WA (2,803) 6.3 (1,361) (13.9) (4,164) 12.0
Expenses not deductible gk
for tax X 14,209 (31.9) 2 - 14209 (41.0)
Tax losses not recognised REAHEER 4,339 (9.8) - - 4,339 (12.5)
Others 0] 782 (18) 12 0.1 794 23)
Tax charge at the Group's RACEERKE
effective rate FEZHIEER 9,022 (20.3) 200 2.0 9,222 (26.6)
Tax charge from continuing REBHEHE
operations at the REEEEH
effective tax rate EENHRER 9,022 55.5 200 2.0 9,222 35.4
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
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HHELEEEEERLA

9. INCOME TAX (continued) 9. 8% (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss KARRRIRERE HHE QR E:
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in ZEVEEER ZEEMEFNE 2B
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries BiEEAHERY B ERMERAE
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, ZBIERZ 2EER  URERARE (A
and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the EERER) HERBE 2HEROT : (&)
statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as
follows: (continued)
2022 (Restated)
“TCE(REF))
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
BB A E aif
HK$'000 % HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
TR THT TR
Profit before tax from BEEREBELN
continuing operations B AT 39,998 16,391 56,389
Loss before tax from a —BERIBEERK
discontinued operation EERRTAER (56,449) - (56,449)
(16,451) 16,391 (60)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BREEHEFEZHE (2,714) 16.5 2,787 170 73 (121.7)
Lower tax rates enacted BT VA
by local authority REH = (165) 1.0 (101) (0.6) (266) 4433
Adjustments in respect of HBREE
current tax of MAmE
previous periods M E (164) 1.0 - - (164) 2733
Income not subject to tax BRR WA (1.267) 77 (2,550) (15.6) (3817) 63617
Expenses not deductible gk
for tax f% 9,536 (58.0) 2 - 9538  (15896.6)
Tax losses not recognised REAREER 2,122 (12.9) - - 2122 (3536.7)
Others -0 (741) 45 30 0.2 (711)  1,1850
Tax charge at the Group's EASERRKE
effective rate STEZHIEER 6,607 (402) 168 10 6,775  (11,291.7)
Tax charge from continuing RERHEHEL
operations at the RERERH
effective tax rate ELHHEER 6,607 165 168 1.0 6,775 12.0
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10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In March 2023, the directors decided to dispose of KML,
an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
which is solely engaged in cruise ship charter services.
Since then, the Group has discontinued its cruise ship
charter services business. The Group has decided to
cease its cruise ship charter services business because it
plans to focus its resources on other principal businesses.
As at 31 March 2023, final negotiations for the disposal
were in progress. KML was classified as a disposal group
held for sale and the cruise ship charter services business
was classified as a discontinued operation (the
“Discontinued Operation”). Therefore, the cruise ship
charter services business is no longer in the note for
operating segment information. The disposal of KML was
completed on 28 April 2023.

The results of the Discontinued Operation for the year
are presented below:

Revenue WA
Cost of services provided P 1R 5 AR 75 A AR
Gross profit EM
Administrative and operating expenses 1T & A& & B %2
Foreign exchange differences, net MELER - F8
Deficit on revaluation of a cruise ship T 85~ B B AL

Loss for the year from a

discontinued operation EBEENER
Attributable to: AT AL EM -

Owners of the Company KABRHEE A

Non-controlling interest FEERRHE £

REF-HERIEES

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

10. DRI REETRK

R-ZZTE_=F=Zf EERTHEARQ
RAlZEEIEZEMB R AKML - Z A A
EREBHAERS - ALt 2% A%
ECORILEBGAERGEES - AEE
ERELIEHBHESERBEES - RA
BETEBEERETREMES ¥
BN —_E_=ZF=ZA=+—H @
HEFHENREFERFELETHR - KML
ENDBEARBHFENLESE MK
HERKEKCHEA—HORIELEE
¥ ((ERIELEEK]D - ALt - B
HEREESTBIARCEIHERD
A - KMLEESHEER S =%
MAZ+\BHZEK -

REE  BRIEREEBNEES Hwa
I

2023 2022
—E_=F —EF-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
2,746 -
(7,084) (7,780)
(4,338) (7,780)
(20,824) (36,468)
(1) (200)
(35,580) (12,001)
(60,743) (56,449)
(36,446) (33,869)
(24,297) (22,580)

(60,743) (56,449)
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—E-=F=ZA=+—H

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 10.

The assets and liabilities of the Discontinued Operation

classified as held for sale as at 31 March are as follows:

Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Cash at bank

Assets classified as held for sale

Liabilities
Accruals and other payables
(Note)

Deposit received

Liabilities directly associated with

the assets classified as held for sale

Net assets directly associated with

the disposal group

Note:

EE
ME - BB MR
RITEE

DERRERENEE

EfE

J& &t BRA I EL A B A AR
(B EE)

Elizs

HAOBEAREFEDN
BEEEREBNAE

Included in the accruals and other payables was an amount due

to a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, New
Century Cruise Line International Limited of HK$7,598,000

(2022: Nil).

ERIEELEEE (&)
R=ZA=+—RB 2EABAERFEND
RIEBEXBOBEERBBNOT :

2023 2022
—E_—= —E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

66,300 -
17 -

66,317 -

(14,253) -
(7,080) -

(21,333) -

44,984 -

GEE

J& 5T R I8 % L A 8 11 BR SR B 45 FE A< AN &= [ [t
B A Az JE#E B B New Century Cruise
Line International Limited5X187,598,000/%
FT(ZE-—F: §\) -
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The net cash flows incurred by the Discontinued
Operation are as follows:

Operating activities &R
Investing activities RERD
Financing activities MEEH
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BemA// (i) F8E
Loss per share: BRER -

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

10. CARIEREER ()

ERIECEEBEENREREFEN
N

2023 2022
—EB_= =

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
7,371 521
(7,366) 27,861
(90) (28,331)

(85) 51

2023 2022
—E-=H —E-F

Basic, from the discontinued operation ~ EZA - RE DA HEE ZET  HK(0.63) centsiEfll  HK(0.59) cents/ill
Diluted, from the discontinued operation  #% - KA AR ILEE X HK(0.63) centsiBfl  HK(0.59) cents/&{ll

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
from the discontinued operation are based on:

Loss attributable to ordinary equity ARRIEBRBREREA
holders of the Company from the BEREERIEEE
discontinued operation EBHER

Number of ordinary shares in issue RAFERFEGRER
during the year used in the basic BEREERZEET
loss per share calculation (note 12) EAEREE (MaE12)

Number of ordinary shares in issue RAFEEFEGRES
during the year used in the diluted BEREERZBEET
loss per share calculation (note 12) EEkEE (MaE12)

DIVIDENDS 11.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: Nil).

FEDE I REEBNERERRES
BRDERAT&EHE -

2023 2022
—E_=HF —E-—F

HK$36,446,000/% 7t HK$33,869,000/% 7T
5,780,368,705 5,780,368,705

5,780,368,705 5,780,368,705

BE
EETERRBE_T _=F=
—t+—BLEEERNEMEKE (=
TFE|E) o

A
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is
based on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company, and the number of
ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705 (2022: 5,780,368,705)

in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022 in respect of a dilution as the impact of
the share options outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect

on the basic loss per share amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on:

Loss =]

Loss attributable to ordinary equity FEERERNEER
holders of the Company, used in P /N R B il e
the basic loss per share calculation IRERE ANEIGEE
From continuing operations REFBBEEEL
From a discontinued operation RE—HERIEKE

Shares idvi)

Number of ordinary shares in RAFEFETR
issue during the year, used in EXERBERZ

the basic loss per share calculation BERETEBEREE

EAREBERRERSEAEWN
BREF (&H8)
BREAEBESENIRBARGEHER
BRIERAEABORFEEBRARNEE
B 31T ¢ @A B E 5,780,368,7050% (=
T 4 :5,780,368,705/%) 5t & ©

ES =
T—RILFE - WEREEEIHRD
BEREABERESBRELRAERE  RALSH
RITEZ B TRy F R A E 8
CRELT REBUE -

BRENEEVIRATSEF;E

2023 2022
—_E_= —=E-

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

(Restated)

(& &E5)

(420) 32,368

EYi (36,446) (33,869)

(36,866) (1,501)

2023 2022
—E_= —=EFE_—

5,780,368,705 5,780,368,705
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.ME - -BEERREBURBES R
LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets Owned assets
ERELE BathEE
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold ~fixtures and Motor Cruise
land  Buildings Total ~ Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles ship Total Total
EENE  GA %E

Bt g ait L5 i Rk i EL) aif ait
HKS000  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOO  HKSO0O  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSO0OD
TR TR TR TAn  TER TR TR TAR TR TR

31 March 2023 ZBIZE
ZB=t-A
At 31 March 2022 RoE-C
and 1 Aprl 2022 ZRZ-BR
BA-R:
Cost or valuation RAREE 138,343 547 13889 10875 5,443 4,498 205 100620 123561 262451
Accumulated 2#
depreciation Vi (23733) (344)  (4077) (2,982) (5,214) (3476) (1337) - (13,009)  (37,086)
Net carying emount~~ EEZE 114610 203 114813 7,893 29 1,022 788 10060 11052 22536
At 1 April 2022, RZZFZZ
netof acomulated  WA—H - B
depreciation BRNELTE 114610 203 114813 7,893 29 1,022 788 10060 11052 22536
Additons i - - - - - 5 - 7,366 7418 7418
Deficit on revaluation i - - - - - - - (35,580) (35,580) (35,580)
Depreciation provided ~ A2
during the year nERE (4,645) (134) (4779) (33) (229) (39) (158) (7,084) (820 (12,981)

Rssets reclassified s ENFHBEEA

assetsof adisposal S BAREGEH

goup dassied as held  HEEEHEE

for sale (note 10) (F3E10) - - - - - - - (66300)  (66300)  (66,300)
Eichange relignment [ 3% = - - - - - - 978 978 978

At 31 March 2023, RZE-=%=]
netofacumulated = t—H Ak
depreciation ZENEZES 109,965 69 110,034 7558 - 678 630 - 8,866 118,900

At 31 March 2023; i 2

ZA=+-H:
Cost or valuation AR (EE 138343 358 138,701 10875 5,443 4548 2125 - 2,91 161,692
Accumulzted 2k
depreciation nE (28378) (289)  (28667) (3317) (5,443) (3,870) (1,495) - (14125 (42,792)

Net carying amount ~~ RE#E8 109,965 69 110,034 7558 = 678 630 = 8,866 118,900
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

13. % BERRKEUAREERERE

LIABILITIES (continued) (&)
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
fFREEE HEMEE
Fumniture,
Leasehold Leasehold ~fixtures and Motor Cruise
land Buildings Total Buidings  improvements  equipment vehicles ship Total Total
EEME  GA RE
RELH g 2t g7 £ R HE #5 ait ait
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TR TR Tin TR T TiEn Fin TR T
31 March 2022 S
;ﬂE+-B
At 1 Aprl 2021: WIZI-E
mA-B:
Cost or valuation REREE 138,343 465 138,808 10,875 5443 4202 2125 120435 143,080 281,888
Accumulated B4
depreciaion ik (19,068) (56 (1924 Q&) BRI B0 (L140) S (0358 (295%)
Net carying emount ~~ BEFE 119,55 309 119,564 8228 1916 1162 %5 120435 132726 25229
At 1 Aprl 2021, WZE--%
netof acumulated  BA—H Ak
depreciation 2ENELER 119,255 309 119564 8228 1916 1162 985 120,435 132,726 252290
Additions AE - 82 82 - - 2% - - 2% 318
Defict on revaluation ~ EfE A - - - - - - - (12001)  (12001)  (12001)
Depreciation piovided ~ RAEF 2
durng the year FEEE (4645) (18)  (4833) G (1687) (436) a9 010 (104)  (15269)
Buchange realignment B 5% = = > = = - - (39 (39 (39
A3 Mach 202,  RZBIZEZA
netof acumulated = +—F %
depreciation 2ENELER 114610 203 114813 7893 29 1022 788 100,620 110,552 205,365
At31March 2022 WZBZZf
ZA=t-R:
Cost or veluation RASNREE 138343 547 138890 10875 5,443 4,498 2125 100620 123561 262,451
Accumulated 2
depreciation nE (23,733) (344)  (4077) (2982) (5214) (3476) (1,337) - (13009 (37,086)
Netcarying amount ~~ REHE 114,610 203 114813 7893 29 1022 788 100,620 110,552 225,365
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LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(i) The Group's right of use of leasehold land represents
prepaid lease payments. The leasehold land, together with
the owned buildings, is held for own use. The leasehold
land is held on medium-term leases expiring between May
2037 and December 2055.

(i) The Group leases properties used in its operations. Leases
for these assets are negotiated for terms ranging from two
to three years with no extension or termination options and

all the lease payments are fixed.

At 31 March 2023, the land and buildings in Hong Kong
with a net carrying value of HK$113,378,000 (2022:
HK$118,075,000) were pledged to secure a banking
facility granted to the Group (note 29).

In March 2023, the cruise ship with a carrying amount of
HK$66,300,000 was reclassified as assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The cruise ship charter
services business was classified as a discontinued
operation. Further details are included in note 10 to the
financial statements.

During the year, depreciation expenses of HK$5,897,000
(2022: HK$7,488,000) and HK$7,084,000 (2022:
HK$7,780,000) were charged to profit or loss from
continuing operations and a discontinued operation

respectively.

The Group's cruise ship included in assets of a disposal
group classified as held for sale (2022: Property, plant
and equipment) was revalued on 31 March 2023 by HG
Appraisal & Consulting Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, on an open market basis.
A revaluation deficit of HK$35,580,000 (2022:
HK$12,001,000) resulting from the above valuation has

been charged to profit or loss.

Annual Report 2023 Fk
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

13. % BERKEUAREEAERE

(&)
GEE

() AEEHELHNEAERAENES
NRE-HELHERNEENEFTR
BIEEA -AELtRTHEERSE -
EHR -_Z=+FAAEZ_FTAEF
T AZEER -

(i) AEEERMEEELLERER &%
SEELERRNEERSME=F
WEEMK R LRERE MAEREN
REHREE -

R-ZZE-_ZFZA=+—H EEFE
113,378,000 L (=T = =
118,075,000 70) 2 &4 L R EF
BRI URGBAEEER ZRTH
& (fF3E29)

WRZZE-_ZFZA EE£HEA
66,300,000 JT B T i 7E 47 & BT T AR
RKAENYBERVEABEFENDEE
EENEE HBHAERGEKEHE
RIEERIEEEET - BEE— 5t
BRI B ImEMTEI0R -

MRAEE 58970008 L (T ==
% : 7,488,000/ 7T) &7,084,000/% JT
— T = —%F:7,780,000 L) MITE
A DRRBELEXBER—HEKLE
KEEBHBRAIR -

AEEBRRBRESPEARAERENLES
BHNEE(ZE-_—_F W% BEL
RENBHENR T -_=F=A=+—
HHBYEX4E R GEMEETE R
BEEARARBREBEARMMERITER -
FuliEEEEA 2 EHEBALA35,580,000
BT (ZEE -4 : 12,001,000 7T) &
Rz AR -
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—E-=F=ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13. ¥ BERXEBURBESERE

LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's cruise ship:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

(&)
DNFEEEX

TRETAEEBHN A FEEFERE

.
IN -

RZA=ZT-BLAFEEFERE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EpNE| EART
mERE BRBAE BRBAE
(5-BR) (F=BR) (5=BRX) CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TET TET FET
Non-recurring fair value FBBEUERT
measurement for: BE:E -
2023 —¥-=F
Cruise ship included in BRESEARRKA
assets of a disposal group HEMHESE
classified as held for sale H & FE K B o - - 66,300 66,300
Recurring fair value BEERY
measurement for: BEHE
2022 “E--F
Cruise ship included in BEENE
property, plant and e
equipment i - - 100,620 100,620
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.ME - -BEERREBURBES R

LIABILITIES (continued) (%&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RNEFEEEX(E)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RAFE BEEF-RBRAREZER
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no ZHEERERSRTE-"EREALEL
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). NFEEAE(ZT-__F: ) -
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFEBERBRIAANE=ZEXOAF
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BEFENEEK:
Cruise ship
B
2023 2022
—_=E_= —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Carrying amount at beginning of year REVNRE SRR 100,620 120,435
Addition NE 7,366 -
Depreciation provided during the year RARERE 2 T ERE (7,084) (7,780)
Deficit on revaluation B B4 (35,580) (12,001)
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group EF DAL HEABAERFE
classified as held for sale MEESEENEE (66,300) -
Exchange realignment M H AR 978 (34)

Carrying amount as at 31 March R=ZA=Z=+—HEES% - 100,620
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.
LIABILITIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques

used and the key inputs to the valuation of a cruise ship:

Valuation Significant

techniques unobservable inputs

B R M BEATUEHERMAE
Cruise ship Market data or comparative ~ Market price per unit
g sales approach BEATISER

TS EER AT LR

HE X
Cost approach Remaining useful life
BRAE gt A5

The market data or comparative sales approach considers
prices recently paid for similar assets, with adjustments
made to the indicated market prices to reflect the
condition and utility of the appraised assets relative to
the market comparative. Assets for which there is an
established second-hand market comparable are best

appraised by this approach.

The key input was the market price per unit, where a
significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value

of the cruise ship.

Mx - BERZREUREEAR
(%)

NP EEEX (EH)

BATT 75 ot 56 6 25 1 TR PR 0 i LA
TEHAENHE

Range
& E

2023 2022
—g-= =t

=

US$8,374,300 to US$12,888,000 to

US$10,252,300 US$14,736,000
8,374,300 TE 12,888,000 L&
10,252,300 Jt 14,736,000 7T
14 years 15 years

+mE THF

MIZBBR AL BIHE AL BRORE
DEEMIHER  AHIEENT S
BRELAE  ARBAAHITEERZ T
LHAEEENRAERE - BERL
AL B — FHIGMEEZ I AN

RERAE °

TEHAERSELTHER - THE
EPNCED PPN £ BT LS T
KIS, B -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The cost approach considers the cost to reproduce or
replace in new condition the assets appraised in
accordance with current market prices for similar assets,
with allowance for accrued depreciation arising from
condition, utility, age, wear and tear, or obsolescence
present, taking into consideration past and present

maintenance policy and rebuilding history.

The key inputs were the rate of newness and the market
discount rate, which a significant increase/decrease in the
rate of newness in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the cruise ship and
a significant increase/decrease in the market discount
rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease/

increase in the fair value of the cruise ship.

Had the cruise ship been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, its
carrying amount would have been approximately
HK$66,300,000 (2022: HK$100,620,000).
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

13. ¥ -BERZREURBESS

(&)

NFEEEBX(E)
RAEDRBEUEENRITNISE
% HIBREAOR - B iR H - FERE
FHENBEMSI B RFINE  LEE
BBENMAENREBERBERS -
AEGHEEENEHMANBELEEN
XA o

EE WA B AR ERTHI0E 5K
FEEBAREN R RERBHA
FEEAEHD WD - BT INEE
WA, 8 S B R AT EE
KERD,/ 0

Mz EBHoRIZE LR AR RREITE MR
EEE S8R - Bl H B8R M £ %8 466,300,000
BT (ZF = =4 : 100,620,00087T) °
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31 March 2023
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land
and buildings used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leasehold land with
lease periods of 23 to 44 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land

leases.

Leases of properties generally have lease terms between
two and three years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside

the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as

follows:

As at 1 April 2021
Addition N
Depreciation charge HEER

R—ZTB-_—_F#=H=+—H
T __4FP/mMAH—H
WEEH

As at 31 March 2022
and 1 April 2022

Depreciation charge

As at 31 March 2023 R=-"ZE=-=F=H=+-—H

13. ¥ -BERXKREURBEESS

(&)

AEBEREBEA

AEERHEE EP@H%E’JTHiim&E
FHERII THEAHN - RRBHEE

o REE LN —BEFA ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
ERR_tT=20+0F REZFLT
WHERRR - BERENK -

MENHER -RABME=F - —RK
MmE - AEEERAEELSNGEM D
HEEEETEMEXRES -

(@) EHEEE
RAFE  NEEEREEENK
RLEBEBHNT

Leasehold
land Buildings Total
HELH BF a&f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT THEIT
119,255 309 119,564
= 82 82
(4,645) (188) (4,833)
114,610 203 114,813
(4,645) (134) (4,779)
109,965 69 110,034
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31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE 13.ME - -BEERREBURBES R

LIABILITIES (continued) (#&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEEREHEA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amounts of the lease liabilities and the RAFE HEBBENRESHER
movements during the year are as follows: RN
Lease liabilities
HE&E
2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Carrying amount at RE
beginning of year RE®E 206 312
New lease HE - 82
Accretion of interest recognised RARFE R
during the year LRS- pill 4 8
Payments (NS (138) (196)
Carrying amount at 31 March R=EZA=+—HMEELE 72 206
Analysed into: DR -
Current portion T ENER D 72 134
Non-current portion JEmEE - 72
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed HEBERE A DT EM B WwE

in note 36 to the financial statements. M EE36M IR EE o
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

HHELEEEEERLA

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in

relation to leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in administrative and

operating expenses)

Total amount recognised in

profit or loss

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
consisting of five commercial properties in Hong Kong
and one commercial property in Singapore under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$15,530,000 (2022: HK$16,275,000), details of

13. ¥ -BERXKREURBEESS

(#&)
AEBERABEA (E)
(c) BHEEEzZ NHERE £ BB
3K
2023 2022
—_E_= —=E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
HEBGENFE 4 8
RAEEEN
=% 9= 4,779 4,833
HEHEEEREMNREX
(BIEETERR
KERTA) 541 295
EEEANERA
4a = 5,324 5,136
AEBEEAEEA

HRMTESA

which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

AEERBLCEHERHBEREME
(15 (REENRESHRAEREY
EUARMRIMBEH —BEEEYE) B
H-HERKR—BRERBPXMRE
© - WHRE AR E R A T35 AR50 E AR
AERE RAFE  AEEERNMHE
& WA A15,530,0007 7T (
16,275,000 7T) - B BN %

— = — —

=
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

The Group also leases its cruise ship under an operating
lease arrangement. The terms of the lease require the
charterer to pay a security deposit and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Charter service income recognised by
the Group during the year was HK$2,746,000 (2022:
Nil), details of which are included in note 10 to the

financial statements.

At 31 March 2023 and 2022, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants

are as follows:

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years

After two years but within three years

—FREMFA
MERE=FRK

FHELEEEEETRAA
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

13. ¥ -BEERREUARBEEAE
(#&)
AEBEEREBEA (E)
AEENRESCEHELTHBEBH L
B-HERRERBRAAINRES -
I #3 7E AT AR IR s 1) T35 KO0 T B
e RAFE AEEERANEER
EUWA 2,746,000 L (T ==
/) AEFBEHNMERERMEION -

RZBEZ=FRZTF-__F=ZA=+—
H AEBRBEEBEFPFTZATAH
B8 A% 2 FE & 0 SR 2R HA T FE W /0 SR T 3R R
EfNREHOT

2023 2022
—=E-= —_E£-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
9,483 12,310
3,258 5,188
1,795 693

14,536 18,191
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

4. HERENIERBEE
RZZE-_—FMA—H BHRESRKRSE
cruise ship charter services operating segment had been KED O E R — B WL A MK

14. NON-CURRENT ASSET HELD FOR SALE

As at 1 April 2021, one of the cruise ships under the

classified as a non-current asset held for sale in the
consolidated statement of financial position. On 22 April
2021, the Group, through an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary, entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of the cruise ship for
a cash consideration of approximately US$3,592,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$27,909,000). The

transaction was completed on 25 May 2021.

In the prior year, a gain on disposal of a non-current
asset held for sale of HK$714,000 had been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
Group's share of the relevant aggregate revaluation
surplus realised of HK$4,730,000 included in the asset
revaluation reserve was transferred to retained profits as

a movement in reserves.

AERABDERAFEFENIERDE
E-RZTEZ—FMNA=Z+=H £&%
EHFER—HEEIFE2ENBAREE L
B=ZFFIE KZEBHEE A
B2 R {E 43,592,000 T (FHER L
27,909,000/ 7T) - BEMMX S E R _F
T—FRA-t+AHBZEK-

REFE HERAFENERDEE
R 57140008 TEELREBERRA
BR MeEECEEERRENLAEE
BEHEBREEREMRBERE
4,730,000 TEE AR B EZBHE AR

B g Al o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 March 2023, the Group's investment properties
consist of five (2022: five) commercial properties in
Hong Kong and one (2022: one) commercial property in
Singapore. The Group’s investment properties were
revalued on 31 March 2023 based on valuation
performed by Knight Frank Petty Limited and PREMAS
Valuers & Property Consultants Pte. Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at an aggregate balance
of HK$547,700,000 (2022: HK$556,308,000). Each
year, the Group's executive directors decide to appoint
which external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group's properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's executive directors have discussions with the
valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for

interim and annual financial reporting respectively.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further details of which are

included in note 13 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not pledge any
investment properties to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group. As at 31 March 2022, certain of the
Group's investment properties located in Hong Kong with
an aggregate carrying value of HK$183,000,000 was
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
as further detailed in note 29 to the financial statements.
Further details of the Group's investment properties are

included on pages 283 and 284.
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

15. REME

RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H ' A%E®
REMFRERAB(ZT__F 1K)
UREBZEEMER—B(ZE_Z
F—H)URTMEZHEDE - RN
ZEZ=F=ZA=+—H8 A£EHNEK
BYMEDBERB I EXEERGERD
HE LT R £ RMTTA R A 7] XPREMAS Valuers
& Property Consultants Pte. Ltd. #77E9{h
18 & 1t & # {B547,700,000%8 ¢ (= &
— — % : 556,308,000 L) ° & F » A
EERITEEREZEW —KINEM-E
MEBEREEMENINBMEE  EEE
ABEmSHNE B2 BUULES
HPBHEFEKE  AEERTEFTHMEE
Mo RISt R 2 FHBREGFET
HER R ERERGEELERRK -

RELZHE BREYEHETE=
T ARE-THBERMIBERRME
13 ¢

R-ZE-_=F=A=+—8 AEBEL
EREMREMEERER  ABEAEE
EREZRITHE R-_T-__F=A
=+—H  ASERE4E183,000,000
BLZURBAENE TREMECIEER
BURBASERE ZRITHE &
—THBRUBHRERMT29 - XREEK
BT E— T BERHNFE283K%284
B o
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A ¥R R EE
31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

HHELEEEEERLA

15. BEM ¥ ()
AT BEBK
TEREAAKEEENEHATEEN

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2023

Commercial properties

2022

Commercial properties

FEERY

BEE:

—E-=F
HEME

—= — —

S 5 R

GESUES

REX:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZA=+-BRAVEEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B BARH ERAT
TEEE BEBAE BEGAE
(B-BR) (BZBR) (B=ZEXN &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTERT THET FHT
= = 547,700 547,700
= = 556,308 556,308

During the vyear, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

RAFEE BEBEEE-—BRARE_ERXR
ZHEBEBEEE=EREAREL
REBEFE(ZT=ZF : &) -
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. BEW (4R)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEEX (&)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFEEAERRNE=ZERIORF
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BETEMNHE:

Commercial properties

[GEZ/ES
2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Carrying amount at beginning of year RFEIDNERE SRR 556,308 540,780
Gains/(losses) from fair value NFPEERAEZ

adjustments, net W, (E518) - F88 (12,292) 15,502

Exchange realignment HE H SR 3,684 26

Carrying amount at 31 March REZA=Z+—HEES® 547,700 556,308




204

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
Annual Report 2023 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

HHELEEEEERLA

15. REWXE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AFEEREX (&)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques AT RREMRHEMRANGER
used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment MEREEHAEBEBNEE :
properties:
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
fEE R ERTAHEBAE &H
2023 2022
—E-= T
Commercial ~ Direct comparison Market price per square foot HK$15,000 to HK$15,720 to
properties approach method BEARMISER HK$21,800 HK$35,000
BENE BEREBX 15,0007 7T £ 15,7208 L2
21,800% T 35,000 7T

Income capitalisation Market rent per square foot HK$260 to HK$350 HK$270 to HK$360

approach method BEARMISEHES
WAE R E Capitalisation rate
Bt &

The direct comparison approach method provides the
market value of an expropriated property by comparing it
to values obtained in the open market of similar
properties. It follows three basic steps in arriving at the
value of the properties, including identifying the highest
and best use of the property; identifying similar
properties that have been previously sold (the
“comparable sales”); and adjusting the value of the

comparable sales.

The key input was the market price per square foot,
where a significant increase/decrease in the market price
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair

value of the investment properties.

2608 TE3S0B T 270BTE360E T
2.75% to 3.00% 2.75% to 3.00%
2.75%%3.00% 2.75%Z% 3.00%

EERLBCABBLRAEAHMSREE
UmEREEM RN ENTSE
B HEBEWEBEERKE=EAZEX
T BRERAVENSARRERS
REMEHENBEUYE (A LR
HED A LBREENEEELSH

B o
i

TEHAEBRBFIRMSER - TS
ERAREN R EEBRENER
FEEREBZM D -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value determined by the income capitalisation
approach method is the sum of the term value and the
reversionary value by discounting the contracted annual
rent at the capitalisation rate over the existing lease
period; and the sum of the average unit market rent at

the capitalisation rate after the existing lease period.

The key inputs were the market rent per square foot and
the capitalisation rate, where a significant increase/
decrease in the market rent in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties and a significant increase/decrease
in the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the

investment properties.

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE 16.

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Equity investment designated EEREAFEERA
at fair value through other Hftb 2 W 25 1
comprehensive income RERE

Unlisted equity investment, BRATFEED
at fair value JELETMRERE

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the

Group considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group did
not receive any dividend (2022: Nil) from its unlisted

equity investment.

FHELEEEEETRAA
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

BrEM=E (&)

ATEERER (E)

A B RCEREN D FEBERAE
MR AENFHEBBREHEH
FROBMEEREREENAN &
RERERENTHEN T BHLRE
ALt R B MR -

TZHAERTFARMBEASREAR
& - WIS © BB AR M, R
SEPREMEL T EBEAEE MR
Do ARE AR R B ARIEE M, R
LEBBREMEATFEERNBRL

21

R

o

=]

EEARATEEFTAHMES
HRBREHRERE
2023 2022
—_=E_-= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
2,985 2,040

IR A B IR A R A
FREREF AL B EYS  REAAE
B3R 7 1 R R -

BE_ZT_=F=A=1+—HILFE
AREEWENEIE FHRERE WEE
ARE(Z T —F : ) o
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Prepayments B~ FRIE

Deposits and other receivables

B IERE AR

Less: Non-current portion

Current portion mE

ok

Eis)
Deposits and other receivables mainly represented
building management fee deposits and professional fees
paid on behalf of borrowers. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of

future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default and past due amounts. As at 31 March 2023 and

2022, the loss allowances were assessed to be minimal.

Ha N H Al MR

HHELEEEEERLA

17. BARE - ZEkH

tb B UK B K

2023 2022
—E_=H —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
2,161 1,963
5,361 4,206
7,522 6,169
(546) (556)
6,976 5613

BehHEMEKERTESREEES
BEARKBERAINNEXER -0
R AEEREHREBH2ELAEHE
M e IBR R E MBS RREITRE
I BARXESEHRE - LRRE A
AR B R RAE B AR IER (B E ) -

AR ENeREEDERE
3T B NI 4% 34 R FRIE [ s6t B FKIE 50 8 A0 FE
WEEHK - M B =R T - _—F=
A=+—H BEREHIEHERTK
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18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loan and interest receivables JE W & TR F B
Less: Provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables

Loan and interest receivables,
BBk EE
B IEMENES S

net of provision

Less: Non-current portion

ogr

Current portion mENE

The Group's loan and interest receivables, which arose
from the money lending business of providing mortgage
loans and unsecured personal loans in Hong Kong, are

denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for loan and interest receivables of
HK$14,998,000 (2022: HK$13,990,000) as at 31 March
2023, which are unsecured, bear interest and are
repayable with fixed terms agreed with customers, all
loan and interest receivables are secured by collateral
provided by customers, bear interest and are repayable
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting
dates is the carrying value of the loan and interest

receivables mentioned above.

7 EUCE R A B
HY R B s 1R

e E SR A S

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

18. ERERKRFE

2023 2022
—_=E_= —=EF-

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
827,996 739,077
(4,573) (1,779)
823,423 737,298
(167,711) (231,469)
655,712 505,829

AEBHRKEREMNETIRENER
RURBERNERMILAERZRE
B UNB T REEEM -

RZZTEZ=ZF=ZRA=Z+—8" K
14,998,0008 L (=& = = £ :
13,990,000/ 7T ) B FE R & K & A &2 TY
EEA - GERIREE P ENETEH
BMAEEN  FTERKERRFESH
BEPRENEMRREERR TR RIKHE
EFHENETETHEANEER E5RE
HENGEERRG=RAR S FREKE
REFEEREE °
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment losses

on loan and interest receivables are as follows:

18. EWERERE (&)
I 5 5 T ) B, O MRS 9B B A B
TT:

2023 2022
—E_= —EFE-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

At beginning of year REFH) 1,779 2,601
Provision for/(reversal of) ERERRF B/
impairment losses on loan and HEEBERE,

interest receivables, net (note 6) (BE) - FE (Msxe) 2,794 (498)

Amount written off as uncollectible Ef il e mMisn £ - (324)

At the end of year RELL 4,573 1,779

As at 31 March 2023, loan and interest receivables of
HK$5,331,000 (2022: HK$2,607,000) were past due.
Except for overdue unsecured personal loan and interest
receivables of HK$762,000 (2022: HK$289,000) with no
collateral, the overdue balances of HK$4,569,000 (2022:
HK$2,318,000) were mortgage loans and were related to

a number of third-party customers.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, provision for
impairment losses of HK$2,265,000 (2022: Nil) and
HK$529,000 (2022: a reversal of impairment losses of
HK$498,000) were provided for mortgage loans and

unsecured personal loans respectively.

R-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—H8 Bafz
JEWE R K& A B A5,331,0008 7T (ZF
Z 4 : 2,607,000 7T) © BR U K
FRAEREFET762,0008 T (ZF
Z =4 : 289,000/ L) EERSN - HA A
#4,569,0008 T (=T = =
2,318,000 7T) BRI\ E R R I T H %
RE=ZABEFEM-

RBE-ETE-_=F=ZA=+—HBLItHF
B ENRRRBERREERELAE
FRETHR R E B 1R 52,265,000 7T (=
T &) k5290008 L (=T
ZZF  RAEKER[E498,00087T) ©
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—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. ERER KR E (&)

Movements on the Group's provision for impairment ZIKEIfﬂﬁzﬁﬁﬁ\&%u%ﬁ’\];ﬁz%}%ﬁ%ﬁ
losses on loan and interest receivables are as follows: & gEhm T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-KE EKE E=-HER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET SR FHET TET

As at 1 April 2021 RZEZ—4MA—H 1,043 685 873 2,601
Loan recovered or repaid during the year FRE WEHEEENE R (356) (377) (605) (1,338)
Amount written off as uncollectible A\ LW B e &8 - - (324) (324)
Transfer to 12-month expected credit ERz+_AAEHEREL

losses not credit-impaired (Stage 1) (REARE) (E—B&) 198 (198) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit HRZEERFE Eﬁﬁﬁm i

losses not credit-impaired (Stage 2) K (RERRE) (FZER) (202) 202 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit BEZE ITS_L Hﬁﬁﬁﬁ Hiik:!

losses credit-impaired (Stage 3) X(BERRE) (EZER) (41) (110) 151 -
Total transferred between stages I%EXZWL%Z@ # (45) (106) 151 -
Impact on year ended expected credit FRERMORERZEH

loss of exposures transferred ERHFHREHER

between stages during the year BRpE (119) 446 166 493
Movements due to changes in credit risk [ {5 5 /& B 2 i 28 S i 101 - 55 156
New loan originated REHER 191 - - 191
As at 31 March 2022 RZE-_F=A=1—H

and 1 April 2022 FZEZ A —H 815 648 316 1,779
Loan recovered or repaid during the year FREWEHEEEHER (147) - (77) (224)
Transfer to 12-month expected credit BREZT_@ARABHEAEBX

losses not credit-impaired (Stage 1) (Kf=FRRE) (B—BER) 175 (175) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit R Iﬁﬁ BHERE

losses credit-impaired (Stage 3) X(BEERARE) (E=RER) (29) (473) 502 -
Total transferred between stages [‘EFXZFE?L%%@%E 146 (648) 502 -
Impact on year ended expected credit FRE RO R 2 E 8

loss of exposures transferred HWRHTRBHER

between stages during the year BANFE (155) 37 2,518 2,400
Movements due to changes in credit risk {5 B [ B& 2 & Ei 4y 2 &) 56 - (29) 27
New loan originated REFEK 236 - 355 591

As at 31 March 2023 R-E-=%=A=+-H 951 37 3,585 4,573
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31 March 2023
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18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. EREREFE (&)

For loan and interest receivables that are not credit-
impaired and without a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition (“Stage 1"), ECLs is measured at
an amount equal to the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events possible within the next 12
months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed
to be credit-impaired, the ECLs is measured based on
lifetime ECLs. In general, when loan receivables or their
related instalments are overdue by 30 days, there is a
significant increase in credit risk. As at 31 March 2023, a
provision of HK$951,000 (2022: HK$815,000) and
HK$37,000 (2022: HK$648,000) were made under
Stage 1 and Stage 2 respectively based on assessment

from the ECLs model.

In general, loan and interest receivables are considered in
default when the loan and interest receivables or its related
instalments are overdue by 90 days (“Stage 3"). As at 31
March 2023, loan and interest receivables with an
aggregate amount of HK$51,816,000 (2022:
HK$26,402,000) were in default under Stage 3 lifetime
ECLs and a provision of HK$3,585,000 (2022:
HK$316,000) was made.

I EER B VIR ERERBEEZEIL MK
WARERAREOEREREFE ([5F
—BEDME  HHERBXRNREER
REEGFERBREABERPEBATE
AR+ @A N EREELE I
DH SR E - WEBANIEERR S
ViR EC BB N ([E MR -
BrAERECEARE  BHERIE
KRB EFEREHERABRE -
—RmE ERKERIEFENSH
@B =1+08 " AEERRKD EZY
m R-_Z-_=ZF=ZA=+—8  RE
TBHERBEREXE  EE—BRE
E MR RIVEL 951,000 7T (=
T~ — 4 :815,000/% T) &37,000%
JL(ZZT =% : 648,000/ T) °

—RmE  BRERRMESEHABEN
SHEFOHEA+TAE (E=K&] -
EWERRF S SHERIEEN - R
T-_=Ff=ZA=+—HB #B2EH
51,816,000 T (= F = = % :
26,402,000 7T) 2 EWEH EFEE
BAMBAE=REREREFTEBRELRE
FA8 K » 0 VB H B 53,585,000 7T (=
T4 :316,000% L) °
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18. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. EWEREFE (&)
A maturity profile of the loan and interest receivables as A 42 5 £ HA ok e Uk B 2R I ) 2 AR B B B

at the end of each reporting period, based on the B (BMKREE) > S HE/HMnT
maturity date, net of provision, is as follows:

2023 2022
—E_=F —E %
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT TFHET
Current Bl EA 655,712 505,829
Over 1 year and within 5 years —FUERAFZA 113,752 185,149
Over 5 years HFEE 53,959 46,320
823,423 737,298

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. B E 5 R
2023 2022
—E_=H —E- -
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH&T FHET

Trade receivables FEUE 5 R 384 8,842
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31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group's billing terms with customers are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of
issuance. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. The main type of collateral held by
the Group as security is deposits received from tenants
and a charterer with an aggregate value of
HK$10,511,000 (2022: HK$11,546,000). As at 31
March 2023, the deposit received from a charterer of
HK$7,080,000 (2022: HK$6,936,000) was reclassified
as liabilities directly associated with the assets classified
as held for sale (2022: Accruals, other payables and
deposits received). Trade receivables of HK$27,000
(2022: HK$8,176,000) due from security dealers bear
interest at floating rates and trade receivables of
HK$357,000 (2022: HK$666,000) due from tenants

bear interest at a fixed rate on overdue amount.

19. EWE 5 RN (&)
ZIXEIEEEJEFEJZ FERREBUEE
FERET - BHEBEERELE=TH
m%ﬁziﬁ cB—EFZAFEELR - AEH
TFE AR REE 2 BRI AR 2 1%
fl-2REBAEGEHES AN
BH-AEEREERERZERAREE
BERAMBEPRERAKNEBRSH
10,511,000 7T (ZF = =4 : 11,546,000
BIL) e RIEZ=F=A=1+—
H - WEFE A A B2 ©7,080,000% 7T (=
T4 169360008 L) EEH DS

HAMAREBEGENEEEERENEA
BE(ZTZZF - BT E - M ENER
HERBEWIEE) 27,0008 T (ZE ==
F : 8,176,000/ 7T) BV JE I B 55 X2 T HY
BHE SERFIRZE M R B REWKA
F ¥ 5KR3570008 T (&2 - =
666,000/ JT) ] 8 HA & 58 1% & 7E F 5

Boe
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end REBEHEZAE EA#&iﬁﬂﬂiﬁfﬂﬁff
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as /TMEﬁE'] DITET
follows:
2023 2022
—=E-= —EF_C
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
Within 1 month —EAA 292 8,706
1 to 2 months —EMEA 46 136
2 to 3 months M2 =18 A 46 -

384

8,842
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not

subject to enforcement activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for
all trade receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the
Group's trade receivables is minimal for all the above

bands of trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group did not pledge any
trade receivables to secure banking facilities granted. As
at 31 March 2022, certain subsidiaries have pledged
trade receivables with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$121,000 to secure banking facilities granted (note
29).
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19. EWWE B R (&)

REREAH  NEBERBBEEMEG
ERMEMRBR  WETRESN - B
REBUNTREP DS ETH

BB ENE BB ER-
B ERRBEMELSRANNRE
RHRAISEBEEN  EAMR kR
KEEARNFEANEEBBEKENG
B —RmME  BEKEZRFMALE
B FRWEETEMNRFRITES
FhE M o

AEBREBEEMBREEREIRD
ﬁﬂtﬁﬁuﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ HA
APERTE IR REEFE S
%E,HHEE’E%%%OEJU:M A8 7l B e U B
SEFME  AEEEKE SRR
HERBRETS -

RZZEZ=F=ZA=+—8 ' rx&BY
EREAERE SHREFIER - LERGE
BeHRITME RZ_T__F=H
=+—B EFTHEBRARIEKEEES
#£75121,0008 TR EKRE 5 BERIER
ERBITRE NER (FFEE29) -
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security for mortgage loan and interest
receivables. The nature and carrying value of these assets

held as at 31 March are summarised as follows:

Repossessed properties BHEEE
— commercial property —EEME
- residential properties —EEYE

20. WEEE

A& E kR UIZIBE R

A EBRFHEE

ERmMEABEE -RFR=ZA=1T—
BRFEMEEMNEE MEREERADNT

2023 2022
—E_=H —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
14,132 14,132
44,001 39,226
58,133 53,358
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

They are properties in respect of which the Group has
acquired access or control through court proceedings for
release in full or in part of the obligation of borrowers of
mortgage loans. The estimated market value of the
repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 March
2023 amounted to HK$62,120,000 (2022:
HK$62,820,000), which was based on actual transaction
prices listed on provisional sale and purchase agreements
that the Group had entered into to dispose of the
repossessed assets as at 31 March 2023 and valuation
carried out by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, using the market
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties, adjusted for differences in
the nature, location and condition of the properties under
review. Each year, the Group's executive directors decide
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuation of the Group's repossessed assets.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's executive directors have
discussions with the valuers on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting

respectively.
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20. LEEE (&)

HAKREBZEBEREFISERRE
HIENME - ERBRERBERERA
MERBRBHET - RZTE=Z=F=A
=t+—H BEAEER-_ZT-_=F=
A=+—HEALEHEEEM LK
BRREBERHRMINERR SERUK
BB VHEESERMAEMED B ST
BRRQAEA TS L EUE (REEUY
ERTNRZER  URAEBDENE
B UERMKANERIELFAR) #ET
WiEE AREMBENEBEEENM
AT (EE B62,120,0008 T (= F
Z Z % 62,820,000/ L) - FF - A
EERTEFARATZAW —RINEMRBE
%Ea$%3ﬁ%éﬁm%%ﬁ@o@
HRBEMSMNE BB BIMEK
Tﬁﬁgimﬁ REEHTESSR
HEMDBIFRPRAREFHBERE §¢
ETHERIREBEREREELS

/A °
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued) 20.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s repossessed assets

and the movements during the year are as follows:

At 1 April 2021 RZE_—FMA—H
Possession of properties RGMEERR
Sale of repossessed assets HERBEEE
Reversal of an impairment loss BEEENRERE
on a repossessed asset el
At 31 March 2022 R-ZZF-_—_fF=ZA=+—H
and 1 April 2022 “E-_FMA—H
Possession of properties MEMEERRE
Sale of repossessed assets HERBEE
Provision for impairment losses BEEENRERR
on repossessed assets B
At 31 March 2023 R-ZB-=5=A=+-H

During the year ended 31 March 2023, a total provision
for impairment losses of HK$1,941,000 (2022: a reversal
of an impairment loss of HK$11,000) was provided for
five (2022: one) of the residential properties which the
amortised cost of the related outstanding loan and
interest receivables exceeded the market value of the
properties (2022: the actual selling price higher than its

carrying amount, net of impairment).

BREEE (H)
RAFE ARBRRAENEESH
REEHMT

Commercial Residential

property properties Total
BENE FENE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
14,132 32,385 46,517
- 30,248 30,248
- (23,418) (23,418)
- 1 1
14,132 39,226 53,358
= 21,882 21,882
- (15,166) (15,166)
= (1,941) (1,941)
14,132 44,001 58,133

BHE_ZT-_ZFZA=+T—HLFE "
HEDRBE(CE-_—F: —E)EEY
¥ IRAMEBBEES 1,941,000
T (ZZEZZF : FEEEEEI,000
BIT) - BB R AREREKE R A
BHEHEKABBERYENTISZER
—E_—F EREERRARES

| OMERIRER)) -
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued) 20. IKEEE (&)
The movements in the provision for impairment losses REEENREEERBEZDHOT -

on repossessed assets are as follows:

2023 2022
—E_= —EFE-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

At beginning of year RF ) - 300
Provision for/(reversal of) HKEEERRERSE

impairment losses on BE (BE) -
repossessed assets, net (note 6) FEE (Mf5E6) 1,941 n
Write off s (145) (289)

At the end of year PR 4K 1,796 -
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

Details of the Group's repossessed assets and

information about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 March
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Recurring fair value

measurement for:

2023
Commercial property

Residential properties

2022
Commercial property

Residential properties

SEIEAT

fEEFE

—EZ=%
SESZES
EEME

— & — —
=
=

[GE3/ES
EEM%E

HHELEEEEERLA

20. KEBEBEE (&)

N—E =

—ENZETEC

FZA=1+—

B AMAEEEERAENFEARA
FEEERERDT -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March using

R=ZA=t-BAVEEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B E-pN| EXARTA
TiEHRE BRuE BEBAE
(B-BR) (B=BR) (B=BR) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET T FET
= = 15,400 15,400
14,400 = 32,320 46,720
14,400 - 47,720 62,120
= = 15,700 15,700
= = 47,120 47,120
- = 62,820 62,820
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20. REPOSSESSED ASSETS (continued)

21.

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique
used and the key input to the valuation of the fair values

of repossessed assets:

Valuation technique

fhER M
Commercial and Direct comparison
residential properties approach method
BEREEME BELLLBUE

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed equity investments, BRATFEEDN
at fair value FHRERE

The above equity investments were classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were

held for trading.

At 31 March 2022, the Group’s equity investments
amounting to HK$80,075,000 were pledged to secure
banking facilities and securities margin account facilities

granted to the Group (note 29).

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

20. IKBEEE (E)
TARIEELEENA TEENGER
RANGERNTEESH AEHHRE

Significant unobservable input

EXTUBRGHAE

Market price per square foot
&I RIIHHE

21. BAFEEFABRSNRERE

2023 2022
—_=E_= —=EF-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

- 80,075

MR L EEREDNREER - Fibs
BREATFEESABENEREE -

RZE-_—_F#=ZA=+—8 ' x&E£@8A
£80,075,000/8 T 2 RIEKRE B 1EE
A UBMERTAKRE 2 RITHERE
SREFSKEPEEAE (MH5E29) ©
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23.

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits EHITF R

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and twelve
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no

recent history of default.

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND DEPOSITS
RECEIVED

Accruals FESTFR

Other payables and deposits received

Portion classified as DI EIERE
non-current liabilities BENHD
Current portion mENE D

The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 90-day terms.

Be MRITHET

HHELEEEEERLA

2. BERREEEY

23,

2023 2022
—E_=5F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
111,127 264,042
344,883 137,506
456,010 401,548

RITEE HIRIEE HRITFERN RZF
FHEAE - BRHEHERZFREE
NF-—HE+_@AATSE RFLEH
ZRBREFEME @ LIRS EHTEH
TFRMEREGFE - RITRFREBEFERT
FRANMEER B Y BB RREL
82 RAT

FEErRE - HENMRARE R

B

HiENERA LD KIZE

2023 2022
—E_=H —EF-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T FET
3,040 1,917
6,549 21,598
9,589 23,515
(1,184) (1,447)
8,405 22,068
HMEMERAETTER—RERNLT

HAGHE -
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 24 EEBEBEEE BF
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets BERMIBEEREERAFE ZEEH W
during the year are as follows: N
Deferred tax liabilities EEREBEEE

2023

—E=-=
Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment

M- BERRE

H9 b0 B A T B
HK$'000
FHERT
At 1 April 2022 RZZEZZFMA—H 25,934
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss RARFREEE = AR
during the year (note 9) ZIEFERL IR (MFFE9) 759
Gross deferred tax liabilities WR-ZE-_=F=A=+—H

at 31 March 2023 ZIRERIB B ERTE 26,693
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 24 EEBEEE BE (&)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets EERBRBEREENAEE Y #8H0
during the year are as follows: (continued) T (8)
Deferred tax assets BEHIBEE
2023
—E-=E
Provision for Losses
Provision for  impairment losses available
impairment losses on loan for offsetting
on repossessed and interest against future
assets receivables taxable profits Total
EREE ERERK W
HiEE AEWEE ARERK
BiERE FEER BN ZER CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
At 1 April 2022 R-Z--#mA—A - (241) (8,124) (8,365)
Deferred tax charged/ REFEEERR
(credited) to profitor loss 31k (FA) 2
during the year (note 9) EERE (frEE9) (265) 78 (349) (536)

Gross deferred tax assets WZE-=F=ZA=1—H
at 31 March 2023 LEEREEELSE (265) (163) (8,473) (8,901)

Deferred tax liabilities EEREBEEE

2022
— — —

— =

Accelerated tax
depreciation on
property, plant
and equipment

BRI IS T &
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2021 MR-ZZE-—FMHA—H 26,911
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss RARFEEEB AT A
during the year (note 9) ZIRFERIIA (MH5E9) (977)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—_—_F=RA=+—H

at 31 March 2022 ZIEER IR B ERTE 25,934




24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued)

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets
during the year are as follows: (continued)

Deferred tax assets

At 1 April 2021

Deferred tax charged/
(credited) to profit or loss
during the year (note 9)

Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 March 2022

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

ottt 2%

EEBAERAA
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—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

EERBEE

Provision for
impairment losses
on loan

and interest

2022
—m——

=

Losses
available

for offsetting
against future

24. EEREEE BE(H)
BELERARBREERAFE 2 ZEM
T (%)

receivables taxable profits Total
W &R R A {45 8
M ERRE ARERT
BEES WA B at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FET FET
R-ZE-_—-FEmMF—H (286) (8,105) (8,391)
RAFEEBHENA
mer/ (GtA) 2
EAEHIE (M EE9) 45 (19) 26
RZZ-Z#=A=+—H
ZELEHIBEERE (241) (8,124) (8,365)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial
position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

BRI E - MBRRKRAE TELEH
BEENAMBE TEE o A TNHIIER
BHRERGEZAKRBEELERBRESRZ D
e

2023 2022
-2 = T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHT
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RER & B AR R &R
in the consolidated statement of R ZIEETIE
financial position BEFE 17,792 17,569
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24. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (continued) 4. EEBIBBEE BE (&)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$321,889,000 (2022: HK$293,343,000). The tax
losses in Hong Kong are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets of
HK$44,639,000 (2022: HK$40,277,000) have not been
recognised in respect of tax losses because these tax
losses have arisen in companies that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2023, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2022: Nil) for taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax

should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AEBREABAEALADEEIE
321,889,000 T (=& = = & :
293,343,000 7T) - REBEBEE 2B
HEEERAAEREESEEE A
8] 2 RIRFERRTE F o AN 58 B30 K Bt 5%
ERHEBEEBERRECHEELEE
44,639,000 T (=& = =
40,277,000 L) - AZERIEEE T
RECEE—BRE AR MAERE
TRAIBEEEERB RN AEEZER
HEE -

WZEBEZ=F=fA=+—H AxEEZ
MBARYERRELBFMAZ 2
MEHRETMEARERECHRBARE
(ZT2Z=F:8) AMZERERE
B AREBWEBEIIRIBERE -

AN A A E e BRUIR A B B 3 4 18 BUE AR
FrgmER -
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SHARE CAPITAL 25. B &
Shares ;&7
2023 2022
—E_=F —E- %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised: ETE
40,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 40,000,000,000% & % [ &
HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/%8 7T 2 & B A 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: SEITRER
5,780,368,705 ordinary shares of 5,780,368,705% & I H &
HK$0.0025 each 0.0025/8 7T 7 & 3 Ak 14,451 14,451
Share options i IR A
Details of the Company's share option scheme and the AQ AT 8 A RARIR 2T &1
share options granted under the scheme are included in BB AR AR 2 B N B RS SRR M RE26 o
note 26 to the financial statements.
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 26. BRETE
At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 4 RZE——FHNANUNARTZARAFK
September 2012, ordinary resolution was passed for the HAFAE L TERRAREREEBUE
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme"). W— IR REET &I ([ZET281)) -
The Scheme is operated by the Company for the purpose ZTEl 2 B MAARERZERKINE
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants HERZAERSEER THE RO -

who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(a

(b)

Participants

Participants are any directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and
employees of the Group and any advisors
(professional or otherwise), consultants, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters,
service providers of any member of the Group who
the board of directors of the Company (the “Board")
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or

will contribute to the Group.

Subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion but in any event

shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of HK$0.0025
each of the Company (the “Shares”) as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange on the date of grant
of an option (the “Date of Grant”) which must

be a business day;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the Date

of Grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

HHELEEEEERLA

26. B ERT & (&)
Zat Bl BT

(a) 8%
SEERRNRNAEMNES (BEH
TES  FERITEZERBIIENT
EF)RAEEZREERARAE
S ([E5g) REBYHBER
#i@ﬁﬁf’@WK%l{’Eﬂja%z
EHEHFEJ (BERESREXE)

DIHE - ABE - HER ﬁ
BA BP EBBH 62%%
BH O BREARKEEEFMKER
Al Z BRI ER -

rml
nH\

(b) REE
ARERMESTSRABENERE
o MEEm A A %ﬁﬁ’\Tﬁlelﬁ
FHREE

() A2RAEFKMEIEO0.0025% T
Z Wty (TR0 1) 72 B8 IR #E 3%
HESM(REBEHD (LER
EXR) W TE AEBH
REBMEMFERE)

(i) ROEZREEL A HA A ME
BEBRNFHRTE (AEE
BRXPTABRRABERE)
54

(i) B mEE -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

©

(d)

(e)

Maximum number of the Shares

The maximum number of the Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company shall not, in the absence
of shareholders’ approval, in aggregate exceed 10%
in nominal amount of the aggregate of the Shares in
issue on the adoption date of the Scheme (the
"Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme and (as
the case may be) such other share option schemes
of the Company will not be counted for the purpose

of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum number of options granted to
each participant

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each grantee under the Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares
subject to options granted during such period under
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
other than those options granted pursuant to specific
approval by the shareholders in a general meeting)
exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for the time being
(the “Individual Limit").

Period of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in a period notified by
the Board to each grantee at the time of making an
offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years from
the Date of Grant.
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26. B ESTE (&)
EBZEHBOT  (B)

©

(d)

(e)

B A7 £ PR

REBRALER - AR B RIE X
St 8] M AN R AT AA) H B A i Rt &
R BB T IATT R TR
o ER - BT SBEN AT 8%
BB ZRITHRNEEAEI0%
(TEHEIRERE]) - BT EIRE
[REEE - RIFZFE K (REBAB
SUME) 78 A B B8 E fth B A i T
SR R BN TRE

E2RERBREREZ LR

AR ANEEA+ A RIREZ
AHEIERMBRE (BRDTER
RITEEEIHE) T ATTER AT
TREERTHORE LR - TF (AR
REBBMEAREARFEAEAM
B SRLNERER BT
A& TERBRREBRRER
RRE LRRHEMKEHNZEE
Petg) BBERD ETRMOMNI%
(TEAAREELD -

IR 21T EH
BREATNEEHRBRERES
SHMEEEARAZHEAITE - 1
AREL A REFT +FAER
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26.

Details of the Scheme are as follows: (continued)

(f) Remaining life of the Scheme
The Scheme expired on 3 September 2022. No
further share options shall thereafter be offered
under the Scheme but the share options which had
been granted is still valid, unless otherwise lapse or

expiry of the share options.

(g) Acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days for the Scheme, upon
payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total

by the Grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, 16,600,000
share options had lapsed (2022: Nil). An aggregate
amount of HK$794,000 (2022: Nil) was transferred from
the share option reserve to retained profits upon lapse of

the share options.

BRESTE (&)
a8l BT - ()

() =8z EERE Y
ZAEER-ZE-_—_FNA=HE
o R TS BREZEZER

HEMmERE BB ZBRE
MABR BRIFBREXUHKE
i AR o

(g EZXBR#E
BERZE - B RE BBt
ZTNBR - AEABRBYNE K
BT RBARBEATNESE
THEREZ 24 -

BEEYEETESAEAEDRKEXK
EERRAGHREZER -

BE-_Z-_=—F=-A=-+—HLEFE "
H16,600,0000 (ZEZZF : &) B
BB KB - B & 57940008 L (ZF
ToF - EBERERERANKHBER
RFEEEARBRA -
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26. B AEST 8 (&)
RAEE - RGBT 8RR 2B
BEFBMT

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

2023 2022
—EZ=F —F-C
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of

exercise price

share options

exercise price

share options

15 ¥ 19
TEE BREHE 1TEE FEiEse
HK$ per share ‘000  HK$ per share ‘000
BRET T BB +
At beginning of year REA) 0.1532 132,800 0.1532 132,800
Lapsed during the year ~ RAFEXM 0.1532 (16,600) - -
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 0.1532 0.1532

116,200

132,800
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share

options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2023

—E-=F

Number of share options
BREHR

‘000
£

116,200

2022
N

— =

Number of share options
BEREEA

‘000

:F

132,800

There is no vesting period for the outstanding share

Exercise price*
TREE*

HK$ per share
BRET

0.1532

Exercise price*
T{EE*

HK$ per share
BB TT

0.1532

options granted to employees and directors.

o The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other

similar changes in the Company's share capital.

26. B ERT & (&)

RBERR - WARITEZBEREZITE
EBRITERET

Exercise period

T

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—E-=H5hhAB=RE%E
—E-_=%hHB=H

Exercise period
1T ER

03-09-2013 to 02-09-2023
—T-=ZFALA=HBZE
—E-=FNALAZ=H

BETREEREFMHRTEZBREL
ERBH

* MRAERKARET HEALQA
BARZEEHMBORES  BRENT
EEF2ETHE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
116,200,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of the
Company, result in the issue of 116,200,000 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share
capital of HK$291,000 and share premium of approximately
HK$22,579,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 116,200,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately

2.0% of the Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on pages 113 and 114 of the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group arose from:

(i) the Group's reorganisation on 13 June 1990,
representing the excess of the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued under the Group's
reorganisation, and the nominal value of the shares
and share premium of the former holding company

acquired by the Group; and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant

to the capital restructuring on 2 June 1999.
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BB IR REST &l ()

RBEBMR REZTE A2FHE
116,200,00017 f& I # i AR 1T « £ K
REIBRAREEBT  BEITEREARIT
EZEREBEHETEINENRA
116,200,000/% & i % - DA R 8 SN IR AR
291,000/ 7T & B 1 4 (B 922,579,000
BIT(RMBREITRX) -

RBLERBE®RER 2 B - REZFE
XA BB 116,200,00017 fE A% # 14 R 17
B ROEARRANEBERITRMN D
2.0% °

&
AEBEZFEREMNAFEMBEF
EzRERZHRMBHRRFENZIRI4
BREGAREEHRET -

AEBZEHBBRKE :

() AEER-ANZEFAAT=B#
T8l RARABRBEAEEHRE
AERTEITI G mEB B AR E AT
B 2 AR R IR EE R AR E
BREMZELD + &

(i) RE-NAANFRA-BETZR
AEEAMBERMEERPREL -
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27. RESERVES (continued)

27.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Group is
distributable to shareholders in certain circumstances

prescribed by section 54 thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised, as
further explained in the accounting policy for share-based
payments in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options

lapse or expire or be forfeited.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the

financial statements of foreign operations.

The merger reserve represents the difference between (i)
the amounts at which the assets and liabilities are
recorded under a business combination under common
control in prior years, net of any reserves of the acquired
entities, and (ii) the fair value of consideration paid for

the business combination.

The asset revaluation reserve represents cumulative gains
and losses arising on property revaluation as a result of
the change in use from owner-occupied properties to
investment properties. Such items will not be reclassified

to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

iR (&)
REEREQBIFRAR ) -
EZOEPIESAEFLZ EFHERT - &
SEZEHRBADRTER -

BEEFRBERCROEYLEFTREZE
Bz R FEE FBERYHREME
24D R ERE MR Z €5 R
— e EAMBRIERITRE 8
MRS eERERMEER WA
28 i PR R Sk fE T SOR W - BB R
SHEBEREREBER -

[E R R R R ERIMNEE RS
WEAMEEWAARBELZHE -

BOREERONBEFEETHRZES

%/\fﬁﬁnﬂﬁﬂﬁéﬁ)}%fﬁi%ﬁ@ﬂ
BRATU B E RV MH) BN &%
AHIXNORENATFEEME 2B
Z8-

BESRHESARNAEHERANEE
HREEMEMETOREGEED
RFEKRENERE - ZFEE R AKERE
B raEHHsBERR -
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28.

29.

30.
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RESERVES (continued)

The fair value reserve represents the subsequent changes
in fair value of the equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income since its
initial measurement. With the exception of dividends
received, the associated gains and losses are recognised
in the fair value reserve. Amounts represented in the fair
value reserve are transferred to retained profits upon

derecognition of the financial assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding guarantee of HK$70,000,000 (2022:
HK$130,000,000) given to a bank to secure a general
credit facility granted to a subsidiary of the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the assets pledged to secure the Group's
banking facilities and securities margin account facilities
are included in notes 13, 15, 19 and 21 to the financial

statements.

COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not

have any significant commitments.
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& (&)
NTEERESEE/EAFEEFTA
Hitp 2 ER S BREREBEGE
AR EERFEEBED - IFATIREE
P B4 - MBI H W K B IR E QP EE
ERAER - NS REER LR -
RAFEERBEANSHRSEERE G
) o

RAREE

RBEMR R RA4G TIRITZREER
¥E{R58570,000,0008 L (ZTE == :
130,000,000/ 7T) - fEAAEE 2 —fH
MEBEARMER —REEMEZEM -

BEEKH
ERARBSASEEETRERFEFHFRE
SHRPREMERA EENF BN
BEREMFEIZ 15 19Kk21 -

¥
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) The Group had the following transactions with

related parties during the year:

Salary paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) SR &MEBikEZ
Cheow Leng e

Salary paid to Mr. Wilson Ng

Management fee paid to SNy ) NCl
a related company FEE

Service fee paid to SN YNl
a related company k% &

Notes:

)

(i)

(iii)

(v)

The salary was paid to Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng,
who is the settlor and the trustee of a discretionary
trust which holds the entire interest in Huang Group
(BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The salary was paid to Mr. Wilson Ng, who is one of
the discretionary beneficiaries of a discretionary trust
which holds the entire interest in Huang Group (BVI)
Limited, the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The management fee was charged based on an
agreement entered into between the Group and a
related company, Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("Huang & Co"), for administrative services provided
at a monthly rate of approximately HK$8,580 (2022:
HK$8,655). Huang & Co is beneficially owned by Mr.
Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

The service fee was paid to Universal Shipmanagement
Pte. Ltd. ("USM"), a related company, for the
provision of handling the drydocking arrangement of
a cruise ship on behalf of the Group. USM is
beneficially owned by Mr. Ng (Huang) Cheow Leng.

HHELEEEEERLA

I.EBAERS

(@) RAFE K&

BEERT 2P

(N

Notes

P =

0)

SNEEREEZFHE (i)

iiv)

(V)

2023 2022
—E-= . ——

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT TAET

133 133

945 907

103 104

145 —

G

0]

(i)

(iii)

(V)

e hXNTEBBEE HE
—(AeREEEZRTARETEA
MEZERETHALARARRE
fi% 2 &]Huang Group (BVI) Limited
ZE N -

Fe XN TEEXREE  HRE
—ArRER AP —UE2ER
BA MZEEETHAELRRF
HEAERR A @Huang Group (BVI)
Limitedz 2 & # = -

ERERANEEE A LQ A
Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
([Huang & Col) Bt Fr#e #t 17 AR
BERIZHB®E WRGHAERE
#18,580/8 7T (ZZT = — 4 : 8,655
77C) ° Huang & Cof =M Bk 4
ERER

RGBT RRRASE E R
TS LB XN T — AR
AlUniversal Shipmanagement Pte.
Ltd. (TUSM|) o USM 1 & FE I8 5% =
BEmlER -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

©

(d)

Due to the intermediate holding company

The Group had an outstanding balance due to the
intermediate holding company of HK$80,000,000
(2022: HK$40,000,000) as at the end of the
reporting period. This balance is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

Commitment with a related party

On 1 April 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a service agreement with three-month
termination notice with Huang & Co, a related
company of the Group for the provision of
administrative services to the Group. The
management fee paid to Huang & Co for the year is
disclosed in note 31(a)(iii) to the financial
statements. As at 31 March 2023, the Group had a
total future minimum management fee payable to
Huang & Co amounting to approximately HK$27,000
(2022: HK$26,000).
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3. B LIRS (&)

(b)

©

JE - R AR A B RIB

RS BAR - AR5 B T A R AR
RARBEBZRENSEH R
80,000,000 T (Z & = =
40,000,000/8 7T) ° B B & &2 Th &
B RERARERER -

B R Bt 5 B0 AR
RZZE—Z=FWOA—B rx&E—
1 B /8 1 A B R 52 (B — Rl A Bt 1 R
Huang & Corl Z R a% - ABH
ARAEBEREITHRYE  AEK
IFBMBMA=EA - RAFE XN
FHuang & Coty B 12 B 1 I 75
MisE31(@) (iR - R 2T ==
F=Z=A=+—H XEEEHF
Huang & Cof) R R &K E 12 &
#27,0008 L (2T = =
26,000 7T) °

Due to a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's (d) EREAEBENB AR ZIEERBRR
subsidiary B RIA
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FERT FHET
Loan advanced from a AEEMBRARZ
non-controlling shareholder FEFERR AR R
of the Group's subsidiary AT 2B 0 71,823 71,823
Accruals and other payables PRETESERFEE
included in liabilities directly FENEEBEEEH
associated with the assets B B EH) B ST A K
classified as held for sale H A FE A AR K (i) 7,598 -
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d) Due to a non-controlling shareholder of the Group's

(e

subsidiary (continued)

Notes:

)

(i

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement entered into
between the Group and New Century Cruise Line
International Limited, a non-controlling shareholder of
a subsidiary, the shareholder shall not demand
repayment of this loan unless a resolution in writing
signed by all shareholders of the subsidiary for the
demand of repayment has been duly passed at a
general meeting. The loan is unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. New Century Cruise Line
International Limited is beneficially owned by Huang
Group (BVI) Limited, the ultimate holding company
of the Company.

The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable

on demand.

The compensation of key management personnel of

the Group has been disclosed in note 8(a) to the

financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a) to

(d) above also constitute connected transactions or

continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

HHELEEEEERLA

31. BB A X 5 (&)
() BNALENEADZIERBE
B BRIE ()
GEX

0

(i)

RIEAREEE—FHMERRZIE
2% % B New Century Cruise Line
International Limiteds] 37 2 % 5 13
F OBRFEZMBEARNZRRR
BEERBRZEERERERN
REXG FEXBB TRIRE
TEEREEZBRER - ZEX
REEE RERARERER -
New Century Cruise Line
International Limited 3 28 A 7] 2 %
# B A @lHuang Group (BVI)
LimitedZE = A ©

FHESRRERR 28 RAR

(e) "EEXZ2ERBABZHFMERNH
R M T8 (a) K FE -

Fi@)E)BEZHEBH T X5 TEK L
MRAUVETOAZRAECBERH AL
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH FLOWS
Major non-cash transactions (@) XEXRERS

(@

(b)

During the year, the Group did not have any non-
cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. In the prior year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$82,000 and HK$82,000, respectively, in respect

of a lease arrangement for a property.

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

N.EBEHRERERWE

RAEE  NEENEHREEER
HEBBIYREMIRESRE - ©
ZEE  AKER-EDENEE
THMENEAREERHERE
7 BB EH € R E82,000% 1T &
82,000/ 7T °

Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) EREEBHELENAESY
activities
2023
—EBC-=F
Amount
due to the
intermediate
holding Lease
company liabilities
EAHE
ERARRE HESE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FERT
At 1 April 2022 RZE-__FWA—H 40,000 206
Changes from financing cash flows EIERESREBELMHE 40,000 (134)
Interest expense MEBF X - 4
Interest paid classified as DERBERERED
operating cash flows B E - (4)

At 31 March 2023 R-ZEBE-_=%=H=+-—H 80,000 72
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

ER QA

. GEEEHRERKE (H)

(b) RREEHELENRELY

activities (continued) (%)
2022
T —F
Amount
due to the
intermediate
holding Lease
company liabilities
J‘EHEP &
FERR R B HEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FMmMHA—H 40,000 312
Changes from financing cash flows EIER S REBE LN E &) - (188)
New lease s - 82
Interest expense MER X - 8
Interest paid classified as NERREHRSMEN
operating cash flows gt A8 - (8)
At 31 March 2022 R-—FE_—_F=A=+—H 40,000 206
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 3. EEERFEREZNRDE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS HEAF
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material BEREEREZNAEENE QTN
non-controlling interests are set out below: HEFHH T -
2023 2022
—E-= —F=-=
Percentage of equity interest held by FFERERZAEN
non-controlling interests: BAEZEDL :
ETC Finance Limited SRAYMBERRQR 40 40
Kingston Maritime Limited 40 40
Queenston Maritime Limited* - 40
New Century Maritime Limited 40 40
Century Rich Investments Limited 40 40
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Profit/(loss) for the year allocated to 5 Bl F I ERER K
non-controlling interests: TEERRN(BB) -
ETC Finance Limited SIRABEHERRA A 18,556 16,426
Kingston Maritime Limited (24,295) (21,854)
Queenston Maritime Limited* - (374)
New Century Maritime Limited (100) (64)

Century Rich Investments Limited (1,183) 532
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests are set out below: (continued)

Accumulated balances of RERE A HFZER
non-controlling interests R R4
at the reporting date:

ETC Finance Limited SiRFITBAR

Kingston Maritime Limited
Queenston Maritime Limited*
New Century Maritime Limited

Century Rich Investments Limited

Dividend paid to non-controlling XNFHRERER
interest: HWIRE :
ETC Finance Limited SIRATBAR

& Deregistered in November 2022

33. AREARFERERNID HE
A B QR (&)
BERFZRERNAEENELD AN
HEEHIMT : ()

2023 2022
—=E-= —_E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
NG 355,626 337,070
(57,155) (31,442)
= 38
17,698 16,044
15,158 16,340
NG| - 40,000

*ORZE--F+— AREHEEMR
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial

information of the above subsidiaries, excluding the

subsidiaries under a discontinued operation. The amounts

are disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

2023
—E-=

Revenue and other income
Total expenses

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)

for the year

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Net cash flows from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash flows used in
investing activities

Net cash flows from

financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in

cash and cash equivalents
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33. AREARFERERNID
BHE AR (&)
TRETLAMBERANSBHRES
B T RE—EHE RS EB 0K
BLF - EEE AR A RME

HAT S -
ETC New Century Century Rich
Finance Maritime Investments
Limited Limited Limited
SRRHK
BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
WA RE A 76,083 4,068 (2,942)
Fx% @ (29,496) (10) (15)
KEERRM,/ (BB) 46,587 4,058 (2,957)
AEE2EKE/

(BB @8 46,587 4,058 (2,957)
mBEE 903,531 223,802 73,002
FRBEE 186,226 = -
REBEE (204,874) (179,556) (35,107)
FRBAR (96) - -
waEBmME/ (FB)

ZREREFE (40,448) (7,135) 26,267
REEEFA

ZRENEFH (46) - -
HEEDME

ZHEMEFH 99,289 - -
RelkReEENL

#i,/ (Rd) 38 58,795 (7,135) 26,267
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33. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries, excluding the
subsidiaries under a discontinued operation. The amounts

are disclosed before any inter-company eliminations:

(continued)

2022 (Restated)
“E-F(KE)

Revenue and other income WA REAHA
Total expenses HYeE
Profit for the year KERREM
Total comprehensive income AERZENG
for the year Fk
Current assets MEEE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Current liabilities RBER
Net cash flows from/(used in) LEEHHE/ (1)
operating activities ZHEREFE
Net cash flows from REESG
investing activities ZHEREFE
Net cash flows used in BB AT
financing activities ZREREFR
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRAEEEBY2

cash and cash equivalents

B/ ORd) B8

33. AREARFERERNID HE
A B QR (&)
TRETELAMBERANSBHES
B R BE - EHE RS EB M
BOF - IEEE AR A RME
HETH S ()

ETC New Century Century Rich
Finance Maritime Investments
Limited Limited Limited

DRI E

AR A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET
62,398 28,412 1,351
(22,459) (13) 2mn
39,939 28,399 1,330
39,939 28,399 1,330
689,325 219,674 88,659
251,676 78 -
(102,802) (179,564) (47,807)
(51,401) (8,171) 20,038
49,866 - -
(100,695) - -
(102,230) (8,171) 20,038
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

2023
—E—-=

Financial assets

cREE

Equity investment designated BEREATEEFA
at fair value through other Hih 2K
comprehensive income iR E

Loan and interest receivables FBWER RS

Trade receivables W E 5 8R 7

Deposits and other receivables e R H A0 WR R
(note 17) (B&x17)

Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED
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34. REHE s 2cEMI A
RBEEK  SHESRTACERSHE
m

Financial asset

Financial at fair value

assets at  through other

amortised  comprehensive
cost income Total

DBERE RAFEETA

T2 Hit 2K

THMEE NEMEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER

- 2,985 2,985
823,423 - 823,423
384 - 384
5,361 - 5,361
456,010 - 456,010

1,285,178 2,985 1,288,163
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERE S 2T A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEPRR SEERMITAZERESHE
financial instruments at the end of reporting period are W (8E)

as follows: (continued)

2023
—EC-=F
Financial liabilities
cHAE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
LA 84 B A<
FEM
cRAE
HK$'000
FTERT
Accruals FEST A 2,077
Other payables and deposits received (note 23)  E & BRF N B WL & (M 5E23) 6,549
Amount due to the intermediate JE 1~ R R 9
holding company NGIF/SE| 80,000
Loan advanced from a non-controlling REEME QR 2 FERRR
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary B2 ER 71,823
Lease liabilities HEAE 72

160,521
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period

are as follows: (continued)

2022
e

=

Financial assets

TREE

Equity investment designated BERBRANTFEEA

at fair value through other B2 EREN
comprehensive income RiERE
Loan and interest receivables R ERRFE
Trade receivables BB SRR
Deposits and other receivables & R o EMEE
(note 17) (H&E17)
Equity investments at fair value ~ RAFBERA
through profit or loss RaENRERE
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY

34. BERE s 2EemM T A (B)

RBEHRR SEeRITAZEESHE

nr (&)

Financial asset

Financial Financial at fair value
assets at fair assets at through other
value through amortised  comprehensive

profit or loss cost income Total
RATER NE#HRA BRRATEERTA
STABRN itEH A2 E

TRHEE TREE NemEE ait

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET TET TET

= = 2,040 2,040

= 737,298 = 737,298

= 8,842 = 8,842

= 4,206 = 4,206

80,075 = = 80,075

= 401,548 = 401,548

80,075 1,151,894 2,040 1,234,009
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. RERE S 2T A (&)
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RBEPRR SEERMITAZERESHE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period W (8E)

are as follows: (continued)

2022
= —

=

Financial liabilities

TRIBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
VA 85 K AR
ATER
cRAaR
HK$'000
FHET
Accruals FEST A 1,836
Other payables and deposits received (note 23)  E I BRF N B WL & (M 5E23) 21,598
Amount due to the intermediate JE 1~ R R 4%
holding company A EIFRIE 40,000
Loan advanced from a non-controlling REBEKER R 2 IEERRE
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary B 2B 71,823
Lease liabilities HEAE 206

135,463
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5. c@MIAENAFEEERAFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BEEX
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's KREEEHEATFEERBEOEIN
financial instruments, other than those with carrying AEBEeRmTAENEHERATEE
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are mr
as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
REEH DFEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
“EC-=f —E-—-fF Z®BZ= T F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET FET
Financial assets CREE
Equity investments at fair value &2 FEETA
through profit or loss BaRfRERE - 80,075 - 80,075
Equity investment designated ~ 1§E BIZATFEBETA
at fair value through other Hit 2 H R
comprehensive income e & 2,985 2,040 2,985 2,040
Loan and interest receivables  FEUE T K FI & 823,423 737,298 823,337 736,435
826,408 819,413 826,322 818,550
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash EEBDOKTE RERBELSZEY
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets FEWE SRR BIEEENMNKIE K
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables, LEMEREFRNSREE  BEEHE
financial liabilities included in other payables and WEMERARETRENSRAE &
accruals, an amount due to the intermediate holding P PR RIR A RIFRIE - RE B E QA
company, a loan advanced from a non-controlling 2 e HxHx?ilHfo?ﬁ HEBGEMNU
shareholder of the Group's subsidiary, lease liabilities and RIFERBEWIRZEHN A TEBEBARH LE
the non-current deposits received approximate to their HEEMESBEEE BT\ RZER

carrying amounts and accordingly no disclosure of the fair

values of these items is presented.

A AT EERE -
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. EMIENAFEERAFEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's management is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the Group’s management analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. Independent
professional valuers are engaged for the valuation as
appropriate. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the Group’s management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a

year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the loan and interest receivables are
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for loans with similar terms,

credit risk and remaining maturities.

EHEX (&)
AEBEREEREEES
EFfEZBREERF RERSEH
AEEEREe MM T ABECE
BUEEREMRZEIEHAE B
EXHEMTSEEER2EMGEE -/
ERAKEEEEENRILE - HEB
BREREBFMARNTHRFENH
BERFEEZZEG® -

TREENBENAFEEREREER
RPHTZENEMRX ST RBTANS
BMARREFIBFREE - THTTER

BRRTIAAGET A FEE :

Pk B 3 R R B A B EAR A B AT A
AR - S ERBR RS THHE
BB SR R BRAA R SRR
il st o
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on

quoted market prices.

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income has been estimated using a discounted cash flow
("DCF") model. The valuation requires management to
make certain assumptions about the model inputs,
including forecast cash flows, the discount rate, credit
rate and volatility. The probabilities of the various
estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed
and are used in management's estimates of the fair

value.

The directors believed that the estimated fair values
resulting from the valuation technique, which were
recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
were recorded in other comprehensive income, were
reasonable. For the fair value of the unlisted equity
investment designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, management has estimated the
potential effect of using reasonably possible alternatives

as inputs to the valuation model.
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5. c@MIAENAFEEERAFEE

EREX (#)
EMREREND T EETSRER
% ]

BER/EAFEEFAREMBEE I
FLmlBRENAFEESEBIR

RenE(HRASRE]) REMGE -
HEEREEEREL G ABHELET
Bk BFEBEIRSRE HRX F
EXREBNE - EHE RN TR
BERANGEFNE  LAREEEHA
FEENGE -

EEME HERNELENGTAFE
BHSSHERGEaMBEIKRERA) &
HEAFEEZS (RecENEME
HREAN)BEE - BHEEER/RAYF
BEFAEMEEK S IE LM RER
BHNANTEER BERESMHITUNEEA
EMBEREEREGBEEANBAED

3% 7 Sy 48
BERE °
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. EMTANAFEERATE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) BEERX (&)
Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable WTHIR - ZE—=ZFR T - —F=
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments together with A=+—HREHEzBIAKENERT
a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2023 and AEBREABEREAREERREDN
2022:

Valuation Significant
technique  unobservable input Range

fiERN  EXFIREGAE €E

Unlisted DCF method ~ Long term growth rate  2023: 3.0%
equity investment ~ #TRH £ for cash flows for ZETZF 0%
FETRERE mE% subsequent years (2022: 3.0%)
REFENRBEE  (ZTZZ2F:3.0%)
mEERX

Weighted average cost ~ 2023: 16.8%
of capital ("WACC")  ZZZ=%F:16.8%
METHE AR A (2022: 15.0%)
(MmEFHERK  (ZTZZF:150%)
AJ)

Discount for lack of 2023: 15.7%

marketability ZEZ=F157%

(‘DLOM") (2022: 15.8%)
REzmERBERN (T2 2F:158%)

(TR msnET

Frl)

Discount for lack of 2023: 17.4%

control ("DLOC") ZRT=F:174%
e RIS (2022: 17.3%)

(TRZAHIESM]) (ZTZ2F:17.3%)

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

NYEEHBAENBRBE

5% increase/decrease in growth rate would result

in an increase/decrease in fair value by

HK$11,000 (2022: HK$11,000)/

HK$ 11,000 (2022: HK$10,000)
BEREN/HOSNG ERATEEEN

11,0008 (Z2 =25 : 11,0008 )/

BA11,0008 7T (ZF=ZF: 10,0007

5% increase/decrease in WACC would result
in a decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$104,000 (2022: HK$77,000)/

HK$ 117,000 (2022: HK$88,000)

METFHERRAEN,/HD5%E EH
ATEBER 1040008 (2522
77,000%7T) /E10117,000% T
(ZZ =% :88,00087)

5% increase/decrease in DLOM would result
in a decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$28,000 (2022: HK$19,000)/
HK$28,000 (2022: HK$19,000)

B mERBET IR D5%E EH
AFEER 28,0008 (ZF==F:
19,000/ 7T) /% 1128,0007 1T
(ZF==%:19,000% )

5% increase/decrease in DLOC would result
in a decrease/increase in fair value by
HK$31,000 (2022: HK$21,000)/
HK$31,000 (2022: HK$22,000)

R PSR AR 5% e B
AFEERDS3000ET(ZE=2F:
21,000 7T) /5 0131,000% 7T
(ZF==%:22,00087)
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 5. EMIENAFEERATEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

DLOM and DLOC represent the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market
participants would take into account when pricing the

investments.

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

EHEX (&)

BR 2 T 57 B M AT 0 S R = 4 AR AT H0
RAKBEMEENS2EEERRETE
BEREEENHEERTEESHE -

AT BEBR

TERBERIASESRTANAFEES

BN -

KR FEETENEE

Fair value measurement using

RYEEFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
B EXT EXFH
TERE BREGAE BEBAE
(5-BR) (BZBR) (BZENR Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FER TER TER
As at 31 March 2023 R-B-=%=RA=+-H
Equity investment designated at 187 AR AT EEGA
fair value through other Hit 2 E KR
comprehensive income s & - - 2,985 2,985
As at 31 March 2022 RZZEZZ#=A=+—H
Equity investments at fair value R AFEEFA
through profit or loss BaRmRERE 80,075 - - 80,075
Equity investment designated at 8 E AR AT EE A
fair value through other Hit 2 E KR
comprehensive income BERE - = 2,040 2,040
80,075 1 2,040 82,115
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurement within Level 3

EHEX (&)
DR EERERX(E)
RAFE  E

5. cMITAENAFEERAFEE

ZEXRARFEEFEN

during the year are as follows: ZEmT
2023 2022
—EB—-= R F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAET
Equity investment at fair value through &R FEEF A
other comprehensive income: Hih 2E W m ) RERE -
At 1 April KA A—H 2,040 3,457
Total fair value gain/(loss) recognised T H A 2 T 25 R R R
in other comprehensive income EONSR R & /
(E18) B 945 1,417)
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 2,985 2,040
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RZIEBE_=ZFR_F-__F=ZA=+—

at fair value as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no

transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2022:

Nil).

E@MEE -

ABEH R
®) -

WAEE  SRAEBMES —
%= ERZEERRERES=ERH
FEENE (=

B AEBEYEIMNRAFEETEN

Rk

= — —

— = —



35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

FHELEEEEETRAA
Annual Report 2023 Fk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 March 2023
Loan and interest receivables

Repossessed assets

As at 31 March 2022
Loan and interest receivables

Repossessed assets

EER (&)
DNFEERERX(E)
RENFEENEE

Fair value measurement using

5. c@MIAENAFEEERAFEE

AVEEFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EPN| Eb i)
TmEHRE BREBAE EZBAR
(5-BR) (5=ER) (B=ERX) CH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FHT FHT FET
R-ZBZ=%#=ZA=t-8H
FEME TR R A8, - - 823,337 823,337
BAEEE 14,400 - 47,720 62,120
14,400 = 871,057 885,457
R-E-__%=A=t+—H
R E TR M 8 - - 736,435 736,435
BAEEE - - 62,820 62,820
= = 799,255 799,255
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. i EMREE B ERBEK

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade receivables, loan and interest
receivables and other payables, which arise directly from

its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. These
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. Most of the Group's revenue and costs were
denominated in Singapore dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

AEBZIECHMIABKEESNEHY
FR-MEERTAZIEZEBENTIA/AR
KEL2ERE AKEAEREAEMER
BELREBE  PIRKE SRR B
ERRMEREMEMER EEEE
WHEEPESL -

AEBeRMTAES 2T EZRABRRIME
Rk - EERR - REE S E R & E
EBREAR ZEFSEHABEEEZLS
[\ 2 BB BB R e

S [ B

AEEHRHEIZFEERR - ZERRT)
ARAKREEMABRNREEAINZE
BETEEMEL - ARB 2 KO W
ARRAETIAF M T R AT RERE
7 - NEE B AT SME S PR - A
m-EEEEeTYERIINERRE - I
REFBERZEHHRERIINERR -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the Singapore dollar exchange rate, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's loss after tax
(arising from Singapore dollar denominated financial
instruments) and retained profits (due to changes in the

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2023 —m-=f

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens fisd & T 5,
against the Singapore dollar % TR A

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens {47 T i,
against the Singapore dollar N T A

2022 —F==

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens fisl 78 7T 5,
against the Singapore dollar BTz (E

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens  {i{ % 7T i,
against the Singapore dollar N T HE

Annual Report 2023 Fk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

36. UK ERER B R RBUER (&)

S BE L B (4R
TERERNBERAREMEIRRIT T
B M IR TERATREHIR A N E
ZERT  REBERBEZER (F A
METREBEMNERTAMES)
ERBEMN(HEBEERBEAFE
EHRES) WRBOHRE -

Decrease/

(increase)

in loss after

Increase/ tax and
(decrease) increase/
in foreign (decrease) in
currency rate retained profits
BRBLEREE

WA (g h)

ML TE = R AR B35 Al
®i, O 2) 2, (Rd)
% HK$'000

FHET

10 3

(10) (3)

10 2
(10) 2
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. I EMEE B EREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk
As at 31 March 2023, the credit risk of the Group was

primarily attributable to trade receivables, loan and

interest receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The Group provides services only to recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the

Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

One of the Group's main income generating activities is
lending money to customers, and therefore, credit risk is
a principal risk. It is the Group's policy that all new loans
are subject to stringent credit check procedures. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

FEERR
RZEZ=F=A=+—H KTEEH
SERRFERBERE SRR B
ERRMEUNERERREEEYD -

F i

AERERARAMEEAFEIE=
Z{ZE 8
=

HRE - AEBZBRRAFLEREE
ETEBECMERPHEETEERXE
TR o b BMRRGEHRIIIRGER
BEE > MAKEZERRRETERX -

AREBZEP-—BEIBZELARANESHZ
ﬁﬂ@}fﬁﬁz% CEI - EERRA-EE
cAKBIBRRRBBMERA
Lh!ﬁ$§ﬁ’9f§f§%§ﬁ$ ° S5 - FEHR
FRRERDIRSEREEET o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of its customers before the loan applications are accepted
or rejected. If there is no independent rating, risk control
assesses the credit quality of the customer by taking into
account the financial position, past experience and other
factors of the customer. The Group holds collateral
against certain loan and interest receivables in the form
of first legal mortgages over individual properties located
in Hong Kong which mainly comprise residential,
commercial, industrial properties and car parking spaces.
The Group approves and grants loans to its customers
pursuant to its pre-approved credit policy with tightened
management measures whenever an adverse condition
in the property market occurs. The Group has loan
committees of different levels comprising directors and
senior management to approve and grant different loan
products with various loan-to-value ratios and loan

amount requirements.

The directors and senior management consider that the
credit risk arising from the loan and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the properties held as collateral,
with reference to the market values of the properties
which are valued by independent third party valuers as at

the end of each reporting period.
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36. UK ERER B R RBUER (&)

EERR (&)

AEEAERMWKNERSEPNERHRE
ZH - AEEEERAMEEFPHNEER
@ o M5 I EEITH AT AR - BIRER
REERRF  @ZEFEPOMBAN -
BEEBRMEMEZRUFEREEEER
R AKERERENETRERERR
MR FAERm AR EE & & 5
MENE EERIBOTR) (ERE
HERFRIBEREEDE BEY
X IEXWMELREML-BEMEDS
HIRATFGRR - AERESRIFHBLEM
EMEERE  ENREREREEGR
BT #HERAEEFPREHER - K
SERBETREANERZES (KE
BREEFREMRERE) - AE KRR
HEARWEREBELERAFNTE

1 % i
EREeBNERER -

EFhEREEERS REBLUF=
HEEMRSREARGEENDET
B BUEEFEMNEEENEERRE
RUAAKEMREE FREF®D) MY
EIIPNUE i
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. I EMEE B EREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment
ECLs measurement

The Group measures loss allowance under HKFRS 9 ECLs
model. The measurement of ECLs is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default
and the exposure at default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECLs reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of

default occurring as the weights.

ECLs are based on the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

The Group calculates ECLs based on a three probability-
weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the effective
interest rate. A cash shortfall is the difference between
the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECLs calculations are outlined

below and the key elements are, as follows:

The probability of default (“PD") is an estimate of the

likelihood of default over a given time horizon.

ERAR (8
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BHRIEHEBLRAE

5% VIR 5 B B B 98 65 R AU BOR MY
RHERBRNRUGTERREE - BY
ERRANFEERBEORE - ED
BRX (MBREZREEOENAN)
FEMEBRBROGE - ZEHORERIED
Rk OB RP A A R BUB R ERE - I
AR IEE SR L RE - BHERBEX
M AT RER T BB R SRR - KA
BREBONSEHERRSEERT

EHERBREERREBEANENAE
B AAMNRESNE RAEBE AW
MRS REME <HMNEEE - ALY
RERKETNERNZFR -

AEERE=BHEZNENBEIER
HERBX UFFEEHRSRER I
NEBOEREMNEFTE - REBRBIRE
BHEXNTERNRERERERE
HKFINREREME ZLFANER -

T FERERIBANE#E - H
FETEMAT :

ENRE(EOBRR]) RERERE
B RE WA AT g E A (AT
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECLs measurement (continued)

The exposure at default (“EAD") is an estimate of
exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date, including repayments of principal and interest, and

accrued interest from missed payments.

The loss given default ("LGD") is an estimate of the loss
arising in the case where a default occurs at a given time.
It is based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to
receive, including from the realisation of any collateral or
credit enhancements that are integral to the loan and not

required to be recognised separately.

When estimating the ECLs, the Group considers three
scenarios (a base case, a bull case and a bear case).
Each of these is associated with different PDs, EADs and
LGDs. When relevant, the assessment of multiple
scenarios also incorporates how defaulted loans are
expected to be recovered, including the probability that
the loans will cure and the value of collateral or the

amount that might be received for selling the asset.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Impairment assessment (continued)

ECLs measurement (continued)

Elements of the ECLs models that are considered

accounting judgements and estimates include:

0)

(iD)

(iii)

(V)

V)

The Group's estimation of probabilities of default to

individual group;

The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime

ECLs basis and the qualitative assessment;

Development of ECLs models, including the various
formulas and the choice of inputs over
determination of the period over which the entity is
exposed to credit risk based on the behavioural life
of the credit exposure, loss given default and

collateral recovery of the credit exposures;

Determination of associations between macroeconomic
scenarios and economic inputs, such as delinquency
ratios and collateral values, and the effect on
probabilities of default, exposures at default and

losses given default; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive

the economic inputs into the ECLs models.

It has been the Group's policy to regularly review its

models in the context of actual loss experience and

adjust when necessary.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECLs measurement (continued)

The Group categories the credit quality of its loan and
interest receivables according to 3 different stages under
the ECLs model:

Financial assets are classified as Stage 1 if:

(i) Repayment on schedule;

(i) Overdue within normal credit term (within 30 days)
with supportable evidence for repayment (e.g.
communication records, draft/signed documents),

subject to individual analysis;

(i) No change in debtor's credit rating (market or

internal); and

(iv) Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry) related to the debtor are not

observable or expected in the market.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. I EMEE B EREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FERR (&)

Impairment assessment (continued) S 1EFT 15 ()

ECLs measurement (continued) EEE AL E (B)

Financial assets are classified as Stage 2 if: EUTERT  2HEESRENREZ

PEER :

(i) Delayed repayment; () TEEF:

(i) Overdue over 30 days but within 90 days, with (i) #BBBRA=TH (ET@BBNT
supportable evidence for repayment (e.g. H)  BEBEAKENERIER (H
communication records, draft/signed documents), W EHREE XHERBEE
subject to individual analysis; B - MEZEEITERI AT E

(i) There is a change in debtor's credit rating (market or (i) BB ARERA & (W5 A )
internal); and B

(iv) Some credit risks and events (both economic and (v)y EmH BRI IEMAEREBLA
industry) related to the debtor are observable or EENETEERRBREEN (B

expected in the market. KERITEME) -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
ECLs measurement (continued)

Financial assets are classified as Stage 3 if:

(i) Delayed repayment;

(i) Overdue over 90 days, without supportable evidence

for repayment, subject to individual analysis;

(iii) There is a significant change in debtor's credit rating

(market or internal); and

(iv) Significant credit risks and events (both economic
and industry) related to the debtor are observable or

expected in the market.

Annual Report 2023 Fk

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

36. UK ERER B R RBUER (&)

FERER (&)

1B FF 1 (AF)

BH= AR E ()
EATERT  2REEGHHANE

P& BR

B

() EEE

i

(i) BRBEBNTE - BRAAMKEDN
ERERE - MEAETENSTmE

i) 1575 A #0145 5T A (48 3 R D)
BEARE R

(iv) £m%H LERINFAREEEHA
ERNEREERREEMNH (B
RERITEMRE) -

263



264 New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B ER 2 A
Annual Report 2023 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. I EMEE B EREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

The Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject to
impairment requirements to assess whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance

based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECLs.

The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures and analyses all data
collected using statistical model and estimates the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change over time. The factors taken into
account in this process include macro-economic data
such as delinquency rate on residential mortgage and
residential property price index. The Group generates a
base case scenario of the future direction of relevant
economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. The Group then uses
these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust

its estimates of PDs.

EERE (&)
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AEBET MREHGREAHES
=tHA REERREVIRERRCE
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make
sure that the criteria used to identify significant increases
in credit risk are effective, meaning that significant
increase in credit risk is identified before the exposure is

defaulted or when the asset becomes 30 days past due.

The Group has controls and procedures in place to
identify when the credit risk of an asset improves and the
definition of significant increase in credit risk is no longer
met. When this is the case the asset may move back to
stage 1 from stage 2, subject to payments being up to
date and the ability of the borrower to make future

payments on time.

Default and credit-impaired

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

In respective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate. In particular,
the following qualitative indicators are taken into account

in determining the risk of default occurring:

(i) Probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers; and

(i) Death of the debtor.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. I EMEE B EREE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group uses forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase of credit risk as well as in its
measurement of ECLs. The Group uses internal and
external information to generate a base case scenario of
future forecast of relevant economic variables along with
a representative range of other possible forecast
scenarios. The external information used includes
economic data and forecasts published by governmental

bodies and monetary authorities.

The Group uses multiple scenarios to model the
nonlinear impact of assumptions about macroeconomic
factors on ECLs. The Group applies probabilities to the

forecast scenarios identified.

In applying the forward-looking information and
probabilities to the forecast scenario identified for
assessing the expected credit losses as at 31 March
2023, the Group has taken into account the possible
impacts associated with the pandemic and the overall

change in economic environment.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7
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The tables below show the credit quality and the

maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's

credit policy, which is mainly based on past due

information unless other information is available without

undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification

as at 31 March.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for

financial assets.

As at 31 March 2023

R-ZE-=%=A=+—8H

Trade receivables
Loan and interest receivables
Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
- Normal*
Cash and cash equivalents
— Not yet past due

WA 5 &
W E R F

BREBNFE &2

=
T

R B At YRR

HEBAE
,L—t%‘-*

BERAEF
- RBH

fE%

BA ¥R R M EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

36. UK ERER B R RBUER (&)

EERR (&)

515 B 8 A KR F AR B B 7 4
TRETVR=ZA=T—HREAEED
FEBRREENEEERAESEER
O REXZ2UEBRENRER (B
FEMERBEANETBENRANKSE
AR T AMERIRR) - A RN FR
HIPE B0 HE

AN ERATHEENREAR -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAEH
EREX ERFENRMEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
E-RR E-ER £ZRR Btrhi Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
- - - 384 384
686,464 89,716 51,816 = 827,996
2,524 233 2,604 = 5,361
456,010 = = = 456,010
1,144,998 89,949 54,420 384 1,289,751

267



268

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $itt K S B E B ER 2 A

Annual Report 2023 3§

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

As at 31 March 2022
RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H

Trade receivables B E 5 8RR
Loan and interest receivables JEWEF KT E
Financial assets included in BETENTE ke
prepayments, deposits and RE R R 3
other receivables MeEmEE
— Normal* —E®*
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY
~ Not yet past due - KB H

FERER (&)

BR 5 B BR A R R AR P R

(%)

36. WKEBREZEBREREE (K)

sl

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
TZEAES
ERRX BEEFEHRBEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-EER F-BR F=BER #BrE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TET TEX TER
- - - 8,842 8,842
684,516 28,159 26,402 - 739,077
4,206 = - - 4,206
401,548 = = = 401,548
1,090,270 28,159 26,402 8,842 1,153,673

*  The credit quality of the financial assets included in

prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered

to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no

information indicating that the financial assets had a

significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.

O OBRREERMNFOR e Rk E M E R
RereeRMEEERNABAHELEER
XPSREENEERR B MHKER
REBELN EEEAZERER

[EE]-BR 2RMEENEEER

BRER[FR]

B = H 3
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty, by geographical region and by industry
sector. There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group's trade receivables and loan and interest

receivables are widely dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from other receivables, loan
and interest receivables and trade receivables are
disclosed in notes 17, 18 and 19 to the financial

statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables, loan and interest

receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2023
—E-=

HHELEEEEERLA

36. M EMEREBERBE (&)

RBEEREE (&)
RIS ATHRFTRER

AT # A&

ERmEHRZERBERHA

3to
On Less than less than 1to5
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
=R
e =f8A TZf8A -E5E G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TERT TERT TR
Amount due to the intermediate B R EER A
holding company B 80,000 - - - 80,000
Loan advanced from a REEMBERAZ
non-controlling shareholder FEERBER
of the Group's subsidiary BRZER 71,823 - - - 71,823
Accruals JET 7R - 2,077 - - 2,077
Other payables and Hit MR R
deposits received BEkiEe 282 3,319 1,764 1,184 6,549
Lease liabilities HEAR - 34 39 - 73
152,105 5,430 1,803 1,184 160,522
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:

(continued)

2022
—E-CF

36. UK ERER B R RBUER (&)

REBE @R (&)

RIBEATHRFTRER

AT # A%

ERREHRzeMBENHA - (B)

310
On Less than less than 1t05
demand 3 months 12 months years Total
={8h
B} =faR TZ{8A —Znf Gh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET FAET FAT FET
Amount due to the intermediate JER R EERAF
holding company B 40,000 - - - 40,000
Loan advanced from a REERBARZ
non-controlling shareholder JEFERR AR R
of the Group's subsidiary BRZER 71,823 - - - 71,823
Accruals JEET R - 1,836 - - 1,836
Other payables and i EARR R
deposits received BliRe 22 18,618 1511 1,447 21,598
Lease liabilities BEAE - 34 104 73 211
111,845 20,488 1,615 1,520 135,468
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. I EMEE B EREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk IR R B A% A B
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity P HE {8 4% [ e 2 i RSO 4 BIUK T R A
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels of BFEEEHMEHNERESLTE

equity indices and the value of individual securities. The
Group was exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss (note 21)
as at 31 March 2022. The Group's equity investments
were listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and
were valued at quoted market prices at the end of the

reporting period.

The market equity index for the following stock exchange,
at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the
year to the end of the reporting period, and its respective

highest and lowest points during the year were as

ETHKHERR R_ZT=_=_F=AH
=t+—RH AEEFMEYEHREBKE
BRESEARATEBET ABENR
RRENERIRERE (Mi21) - &
ERRERENBBBIA LT R
HBERRIBZTIGIMELRTE -

RBEHARNBEAR I BEERBER
B TIEBAERGAONTISREEE
UERAFEEZEEN RS KRN
T

follows:
31 March High/low 31 March High/low
2023 2023 2022 2022
—EB-=F B/ —T-—F =,/ &
=H=+—AH —E-= =A=+—¢H —E-=
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index & /& —1E4 152 20,400 22,701/ 21,997 29,491/

14,597 18,235



36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair values of the equity investments
of the Group, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying

amounts at the end of the reporting period.

2022

Equity investments listed

in Hong Kong

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -
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Carrying
amount of

equity investments

&R E
HRRE &5
HK$'000
FET
—E- -
RER LT
BRERE 80,075

31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

Increase/
(decrease)

in fair value

AVEE
=i,/ (R5)

%

36. UK ERER B R RBUER (&)

B M4 L B ()
T RE AT A2 BAR T2 T A
R REBEOCALEN - RER

BEENREMRIEESE  BA%
BEERE 2 N FEESHER10%E
ZHREE -

Decrease/
(increase) in
loss after

tax and
increase/
(decrease) in
retained profits
Rt B
w4 )
RARE &
#m,/ CRd)
HK$'000
THET

6,686
(6,686)
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 36. I EMEE B EREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management EXxERE

The primary objectives of the Group's capital REFBERER T ZEBEABRAS
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to ERELENE I RERFEREAN X
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy I FHEBTIREREEE -

capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEBREBEEEIGEEARIEBEERR
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic BB EREREBIL INAFE -
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying BERIABREREE  AEETHE
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the PR 2RSS - MARRIRE & R #1T
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, AL - REBTZINBE b2 EFER
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The HERS -HE_Z-_=ZFN_FT -
Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital FZA=1+—HILFE BHEEER
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, BWER  BORSURIZW E|HIB LT -

policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is

total indebtedness divided by equity attributable to

owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to

maintain the gearing ratio below 50%. Total

indebtedness represents a loan advanced from a non-

controlling shareholder of the Group’s subsidiary, an

amount due to the intermediate holding company and

lease liabilities. The gearing ratios as at 31 March 2023

and 31 March 2022 were as follows:

Loan advanced from a
non-controlling shareholder
of the Group's subsidiary

Amount due to the intermediate
holding company

Lease liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Gearing ratio

AEEWMERRZ
FEERBR
BNZER

J& A+ R T 4 B
NCIE/Q5]

HEAE

ARBEE AR

"

1

Bk

\\\\\\

B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

36. UK ERER B R RBUER (&)

EXEE (&)

AEBMAEAEBELRRERE
R BEXREABLERREEBRIARAD
AIEAAELER AEEZBRERARE
BAREE B RBEFES0%UT - BEB
BAREEIB AR FERBRRARMN 2
BN BAREERARDREUALRES
BE-RZE_=F=A=+—AHAk=

T —FZA=Z+—HZEAREHEELL
KM -

2023 2022

—ZE_= —_E_-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHETT

71,823 71,823

80,000 40,000

72 206

151,895 112,029

1,548,147 1,579,704

9.8% 7.1%
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AR5 R R EE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Equity investment designated
at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Lease liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Due to subsidiaries

Total current liabilities

FRBEE
ME - BEIRE
RITE LR ZRE
BERBRAVEER
H b 2 W s 1
A

FRBEERE

RBEE
FEWE 5 B K
BNRE - Re R
H Al FE Y AR R
WA FEERA
Ba A RERE
RelBReEEY

mBE EREE
REBAE
HERE

H A FE 5 BR SR N2 B

JE A Bl /BB 2 B R IA

mB R EREE

HHELEEEEERLA

37. A2 B B B S AR R R

BRAARRR®EHROTHARRKED

R

2023 2022
—E_=H —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FABT
252 2,634
1,091,913 1,030,502

A
2,985 2,040
1,095,150 1,035,176
14 4,545
1,640 1,154
= 41,672
184,227 210,120
185,881 257,491
= 2,321
5T FRIA 2,630 1,694
575,244 574,787
577,874 578,802
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

Information about the statement of financial position of

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows: (continued)

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital

Reserves (Note)

Total equity

REBAEEFE

BEFE

=

BT
it (P 3E)

FHLEEFTEERQA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R EE

31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

37. A DB B B AR R & (8])

BRAARRR®EHROT BRI KD

BRT : (8)

2023 2022
—E_-=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
(391,993) (321,311)
703,157 713,865
14,451 14,451
688,706 699,414
703,157 713,865
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A ¥R R EE
31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

37. A2 B M B B AR R & (4])

B &
RRABFEEBRENT
Share
option  Contributed Fair value Retained
reserve surplus reserve profits Total
BRE BA AVEE RE
i B i A &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

5,862 162,587 2,677 184,855 710,974

- - (1417)  (10,143)  (11,560)

Share
premium
account
&5
RER
HK$'000
TEL
At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FMA—AH 354,993
Total comprehensive loss AEEEE
for the year BReE -
At 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=A
and at 1 April 2022 =F-BER

“T--FWA—H 354,993
Total comprehensive income/  AEE2E W,/

5,862 162,587 1,260 174,712 699,414

(loss) for the year (&) &8 - - - 945 (11,653) (10,708)
Transfer of share option reserve 7 B3 1 5 25
upon the lapse of share BEBRERE
options (note 26) (Fi7E26) - (794) - - 794 -
At 31 March 2023 R-ZZ==%Z=ZA
Sr=l 354,993 5,068 162,587 2,205 163,853 688,706
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B ¥R R MR

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. AR AW BN & (&)

COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued) MisE ()

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from: KRB ZEHAEGBKA :

(i) the reorganisation mentioned in note 27(i), representing () ME27()FFtz EERARRIRER
the excess of the nominal value of the Company's shares SEEMAMETIRMDEERBME
issued under the Group's reorganisation and the then MEBARER e EEFEIBY
consolidated net assets value of the acquired subsidiaries; M
and

(i) a transfer from the share premium account pursuant to the (i) BE-NWANFSNAZBETZERA
capital restructuring on 2 June 1999. EHEME RN EERPEDL -

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the BEEEEQBIERTE) (KRB @ &£

contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to ZOEBIESMERTM 2 BETBERT AR A2

shareholders in certain circumstances prescribed by section 54 BEHAEBAIDIRTRR -

thereof.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share BRERZEREDEL  BETEZERE

options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further ZRFEE FBRYBERERMT2.4U0K

explained in the accounting policy for share-based payments in MAEERONRZEHBRE—THE -5

note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount will either be BRBERERTER  FEsBEeEEE

transferred to the share premium account when the related A& 19 0% (B B8R - i fiv B B 1 AR A FE o sl R UK
options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should B AlESREBERTREER -

the related options expire or be forfeited.
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BA RS R R aE

31 March 2023
—E-=F=ZA=+—H

38.

39.

40.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 28 April 2023, the Group entered into a sale and

purchase agreement for the disposal of all of its equity
and beneficial interest in KML, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company as at 31 March 2023,
to a third party for a total consideration of S$7,650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$44,982,000). KML is
solely engaged in cruise ship charter services business
and its principal asset is a cruise ship. In the opinion of
the directors, the gain on disposal before tax is expected
to be approximately HK$9,834,000. Further details of the
disposal were included in the Company’s announcement
dated 28 April 2023.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative statement of profit or loss has been re-
represented as if the operation discontinued during the
current year had been discontinued at the beginning of

the comparative period (note 10).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the board of directors on 27 June 2023.

HHELEEEEERLA

38. REHIEREIE

39.

40.

RZTZ=FWA=Z+N\R  KNEHF]
BEEWHZE UWBERZ-ZT==F=A
T—B REAQABz—HEEFELZE
B B8 A BIKMLE) 2 3B 7R & B % i 4 H
ETFE=7 #KER7650000% T
(85 7 #944,982,000/8 7T) ° KMLIE 1t
EMHREERBES MEFZEEER
— MR  EERA HHRUALE
I 25 #759,8340008 L - B H & F
Ez —SHBEERERRBHAZ
Z=EFMAZFNBZAE -

H/t%

\

il

R F

hBRIBERDEMINGR  BUOREFE
BRIMEEMEBRR LRI E & 1E
g (MsE10) -

MBHRR AL E

BHREREN T -_=FA-1++H
EESSERRERNEE-



A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial

years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements, is set out below.

RESULTS

REVENUE FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
FROM A DISCONTINUED
OPERATION

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited -

BRECERKEL
SON

FEERELE
EBELENET

FEE-HEKL
REXBELW
wH/ (E8])

FRARBA
BEXEE
wH/ (E])

FHLEEFTEERQA

Annual Report 2023 Fk

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFUBME

ERMBEHRERD

%IE.

ZRESABENT

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+-BLFE

AEEBEREMBFRAREC TENE
XE EE- -ABMFE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZR-=f T - CZEZT-BFE _E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TET
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(mE5) (l=351) (E=5) (mE5)

(Note 1) (Note 1) (Note 1) (Notes 1 and 2)

(FtzE1) (B&E1) (a1 (M R2)

80,068 80,741 100,360 81,189 93,995
16,855 49,614 32,390 7,878 37,290
(60,743) (56,449)  (112,325) 40,757 51,293
(36,866) (1,501) (56,712) 15,461 47,492
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AFPRBHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements, is set out below. (continued)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

AEEBEREMKFRAZREC ENE
BV BBRERNGERE BEE ABMFE

ERESOBENT - (8)

EE-RERFERER

At 31 March
R=ZA=+-H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-zf —T--F —T--F —T-TFE —T-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TEX TER
(Restated)
(& E5)
(Note 2)
(Fi3E2)
TOTAL ASSETS EEAT 2,081,374 2,071,036 2,130,282 2,168,656 2,880,876
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAE (201,900) (153,282) (164,390) (152,196) (376,759)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS i M3 (331,327) (338,050) (383,351) (399,233) (370,930)
1,548,147 1,579,704 1,582,541 1,617,227 2,133,187

Notes: B E -

1. The financial information for the years ended 31 March 2022,
31 March 2021, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 have
been restated to reflect the effect of a discontinued operation
during the year ended 31 March 2023.

2.  The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2019 has
been restated to reflect the effect of adoption of merger
accounting for common control acquisition during the year
ended 31 March 2020.

1. BE-_Z-_—_F#=ZA=+—H ZF=_—%F
=A=+—H8 —E-_ZEF=A=t+—-HE
—E-NFZA=t+—BLEFENHBKEH

EREN URMRBE_T—

=F=H

=Tt HULEFE-HERKLREXRBHZE -

2. BEZ-NAF="A=t—"RLEFENIHK
BHERED  URRRBEE_ZT_TF=
A=1t—HALFERARZEHWRBRE S 6

oEENTE -



INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Description

R

Shop No. 23A,

Ground Floor (Level 2),
Kwai Chung Plaza,

7-11 Kwai Foo Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong
ERMREBEERT- 115

HEOBEST (F2/8) 23A%

Ground Floor including its cockloft,

Chi Fu Building,

No. 301 Portland Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

BB AMEE30195
EEEHT (BREAEE)

Shop 5, Ground Floor,
Dundas Square,

No. 43H Dundas Street,
Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
BEIEREAEIT THA3H%R
B+ Eim i R 5R

New Century Group Hong Kong Limited - $Ttt £ S EEF B E R 2 7
Annual Report 2023 Fk

PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
YZEFTE

31 March 2023

—E-=F=ZAF=+—H

REME

Percentage

Use Nature of interest

EREEZ

A& FR BaL

Commercial Medium-term 100
[SES leasehold
FRHIFE

Commercial Medium-term 100
[EES leasehold
FRHIFRE

Commercial Medium-term 100
[HES leasehold
FRHEIEE
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EUE 23 1

31 March 2023

—E-=F=AH1

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Description

R

Shop 3, Groun

=+-8

d Floor,

Dundas Square,
No. 43H Dundas Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

EENEEAEIT L EHAZHKRE
BT ES T35

762/764/766/768

North Bridge Road,
Singapore 198730/198732/
198734/198736

15th Floor, Katherine House,
Nos. 53-55 Chatham Road South,

Tsim Sha Tsui,
Hong Kong

EANBERY
FRP015

Kowloon,

NH 3 B 2B FI 53 = 5555

HHELEEEEERLA

REWME (&)

Use Nature

A% X
Commercial Medium-term
EES leasehold
FREIEE

Commercial Freehold
EES I
Commercial Medium-term
EES leasehold
FREIEE

Percentage
of interest
ISz
B

100

100

60
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